
TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 1 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 2 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 3 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 4 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 5 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 6 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 7 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 8 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 9 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 10 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 11 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 12 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 13 of 268



V
O

L
.
 

V
,
 
 

P
G
.
 
4

3
7
 

D
.

R
.

B
A

R
T

E
L

L
 

S
U

B
D
.

L
O

T
 

6

V
O

L
.
 

V
,
 
 

P
G
.
 
4

3
7
 

D
.

R
.

B
A

R
T

E
L

L
 

S
U

B
D
.

L
O

T
 

7

F
L

O
O

D
 

Z
O

N
E
 

X

FLOOD ZONE X

FLOOD ZONE A

F
L

O
O

D
 

Z
O

N
E
 

A

WW

CR 202

SURVEY LINE

C
R
 
2
0
2

281.19 ACRE REMAINDER

VOLUME 256, PAGE 852 O.R.

H. ROADES, INC.

N
5
3
°
1
3
'
0
0
"

E
 
 
 
 
1
9
7
9
.
3
5
'

N87°37'48"E 1049.36'

A
S

P
H

A
L

T
 

R
O

A
D

WT

U
.S
. 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y
 
5
9

BARNB
A

R
N

BARN

WT PENS
CATTLE

CG

V
O

L
U

M
E
 
4
1
4
,
 

P
A

G
E
 
8
5
9
 

O
.

R
.

E
T

C
 

T
E

X
A

S
 

P
I

P
E

L
I

N
E
,
 

L
T

D
.

2
0
'
 

A
C

C
E

S
S
 

R
O

A
D
 

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

I
T

E
M
 
1
0
p

375.00'

S87°55'34"W

3
6

0
.

0
0
'

S
0

2
°

2
2
'

1
2

"
E

114.65 ACRES

VOLUME 389, PAGE 400 O.R.

BART L. HAJOVSKY AND KAREN HAJOVSKY

S71°
33'

17"
W 

1247.
10'

C 
CREEK

L

C
 

C
R

E
E

K

L

N65°40'32"W 555.63'

35.78'

N88°46'53"W

N88°57'17"W 724.72'

S
5
4
°
4
6
'
4
5
"

E
 
1
7
1
8
.
6
8
'

DAOR LEVARG

79.55'

N73°58'17"W

65.03'

N58°59'11"W

180.44'

N26°19'19"W

82.65'

N37°51'00"W

77.90'

N55°20'00"W

103.82'

N81°10'00"W

8
"
 

F
C

P

S82°55'00"W 729.86'

59.78'

N72°31'00"W24.21'

N45°40'00"W

BEGINNING

POINT OF

SHED

SHEDS
WW

8
3
3
.
5
0
3
 

A
C

R
E
 

T
R

A
C

T

A
T
 

T
H

E
 

N
W
 

C
O

R
N

E
R
 

O
F

F
R

O
M
 
5
/
8
"
 
I

R
O

N
 

R
O

D

S
5
3
°
1
3
'
0
0
"

W
 
2
1
6
7
.
1
7
'

70.00 ACRES

833.503 ACRE REMAINDER

TRACT ONE:

VOLUME 237, PAGE 111 O.R.

JANUARY 1, 2004

SCOTT HERIN SACHTLEBEN

TO

GARY OLSON, ET AL

WARRANTY DEED

TRACT TWO: 9.78 ACRES

VOLUME 237, PAGE 111 O.R.

SCOTT HERIN SACHTLEBEN

TRACT THREE: 1.39 AC

VOLUME 237, PAGE 111 O.R.

SCOTT HERIN SACHTLEBEN

ABSTRACT NO. 16

JOHN DAVIS SURVEY

BARN

HOUSE
CAMP

HOUSE
CAMPST

ST

TRACT 4: 7.58 ACRES

VOLUME 237, PAGE 111 O.R.

SCOTT HERIN SACHTLEBEN

DETAIL "A"

HOUSE-SEE

DETAIL "B"
HOUSE-SEE

ABSTRACT NO. 29

HEARD SURVEY

JOHN M.

  - OVERHEAD ELECTRIC E

    OTHERWISE NOTED

  - 5/8" IRON ROD SET UNLESS

WW  - WATER WELL

  - FENCE

FCP  - EXISTING FENCE CORNER POST

  - OVERHEAD ELECTRIC E

WW  - WATER WELL

  - FENCE

FCP  - EXISTING FENCE CORNER POST

LEGENDLEGEND

WT

CG

  - WATER TROUGH

  - CATTLE GAURD

    OTHERWISE NOTED

  - 5/8" IRON ROD FOUND UNLESS

PP  - POWER POLE

GA  - GUY ANCHOR

ST  - SEPTIC TANK

PB  - PHONE BOX

AC  - AIR CONDITIONING UNIT

D
E

E
D
 

L
I

N
E

SURVEY LINE

BRIDGE

E

E

K
A

N
S

A
S
 

C
IT

Y
 
S

O
U
T

H
E

R
N
 

R
.R
. 
 (
10

0
' 

R
.O
.W
.)

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 14 of 268



V
O

L
.
 

V
,
 
 

P
G
.
 
4

3
7
 

D
.

R
.

B
A

R
T

E
L

L
 

S
U

B
D
.

L
O

T
 

1
0

V
O

L
.
 

V
,
 
 

P
G
.
 
4

3
7
 

D
.

R
.

B
A

R
T

E
L

L
 

S
U

B
D
.

L
O

T
 

1
1

V
O

L
.
 

V
,
 
 

P
G
.
 
4

3
7
 

D
.

R
.

B
A

R
T

E
L

L
 

S
U

B
D
.

L
O

T
 

9

V
O

L
.
 

V
,
 
 

P
G
.
 
4

3
7
 

D
.

R
.

B
A

R
T

E
L

L
 

S
U

B
D
.

L
O

T
 

6

V
O

L
.
 

V
,
 
 

P
G
.
 
4

3
7
 

D
.

R
.

B
A

R
T

E
L

L
 

S
U

B
D
.

L
O

T
 

7

F
L

O
O

D
 

Z
O

N
E
 

X

F
L

O
O

D
 

Z
O

N
E
 

A
E

F
L

O
O

D
 

Z
O

N
E
 

X

F
L

O
O

D
 

Z
O

N
E
 

A
E

F
L

O
O

D
 

Z
O

N
E
 

X

YAWDOOLF EA ENOZ DOOLF

F
L

O
O

D
 

Z
O

N
E
 

A

6 ACRES

VOLUME 256, PAGE 864 O.R.

ROADES, INC.
13.91 ACRES

VOLUME 406, PAGE 909 O.R.

TENIA M. HICKS

17,012 ACRES

VOLUME 180, PAGE 500 O.R.

LAVACA-NAVIDAD RIVER AUTHORITY

68.9817 ACRES

VOLUME 143, PAGE 653 O.R.

ELEIZABETH B. HOLUB

12.58 ACRES

VOLUME 351, PAGE 751 O.R.

AND KAREN HAJOVSKY

BART L. HAJOVSKY

114.65 ACRES

VOLUME 389, PAGE 400 O.R.

BART L. HAJOVSKY AND KAREN HAJOVSKY

9.78 ACRES

TRACT TWO:

7.58 ACRES

TRACT 4:

N87°31'23"E 3429.71'

2074.75'

70.03 ACRES

VOLUME 337, PAGE 54 O.R.

BART L. HAJOVSKY AND KAREN HAJOVSKY

MUSTANG CREEK

1.39 AC

TRACT THREE:

I
P
F

I
P
F

I
P
F

I
P
F

I
P

F

I
P

F

I
P
F

I
P
F

I
P
F

I
P
F

I
P
F

I
P
F

I
P
F

I
P
F

I
P
F

221.30' (TOTAL)

N84°20'22"W

1
0
"
 
F

C
P

6
"
 
F

C
P

I
P
F

8
"
 
F

C
P

1244.96'

123.44'

97.86'

166.23'

S03°58'57"E

7
1
3
.
7
7
'

S
5
6
°
1
8
'
4
4
"

W

416.56'

N84°49'41"W

9
0
1
.
5
8
'

S
4
3
°
0
7
'
4
6
"

W

5
5
2
.
9
1
'

N
5
3
°
2
9
'
0
9
"

W

370.34'

S64°27'02"W

270.07'

S34°29'42"W

216.20'

S84°32'57"W

158.79'

S82°54'06"W

338.83'

S14°29'41"E

373.36'

S78°36'12"W
671.6

6'S77°07'5
9"W

6
4

7
.

1
4
'

N
0

2
°

4
1
'

0
2
"

W
8

7
0
.

8
1
'

N
0

2
°

3
0
'

5
1
"

W
8

0
6
.

2
9
'

N
0

2
°

3
5
'

1
7
"

W

6
1

1
.

3
7
'

N
0

2
°

1
9
'

2
6
"

W

240.22'

N02°23'36"W

N
0

2
°

0
8
'

2
4
"

W
 

1
7

3
5
.

0
8
'

L1

L2 L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L14

L15 L16

L18

L17

L19

L20 L21 L22
L23

L24

L25

L26

L27

L28

L29

L30

L31

L32

L33

L34

L35

L36

L37

L39

L40

L41

L42

L43

L44

L45

L46

L47

L48

L49

L50

L51

L52

743.35 ACRES

U
.S
. 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y
 
5
9

POND

281.19 ACRE REMAINDER

VOLUME 256, PAGE 852 O.R.

H. ROADES, INC.

820.04'

S87°55'34"W

N
5
4
°
4
6
'
4
5
"

W
 
1
7
1
8
.
6
8
'

110.00'

1049.36'

S87°37'48"W

360.00'

N02°22'12"W

L1: S47°35'40"E 48.84'

L2: S75°54'21"E 125.13'

L3: S51°46'35"E 66.10'

L4: S31°40'17"E 40.79'

L5: S20°00'00"W 68.84'

L6: S02°48'24"E 227.24'

L7: S21°46'40"E 80.70'

L8: S61°52'12"E 71.88'

L9: N78°24'55"E 32.37'

L10: S83°00'07"E 47.25'

L11: S32°23'12"E 95.04'

L12: S11°56'09"E 94.70'

L13: S08°26'57"E 105.93'

L14: S18°20'04"E 88.39'

L15: S39°35'59"E 62.97'

L16: S63°33'09"E 161.10'

L17: S51°31'32"E 88.95'

L18: S74°28'10"E 48.09'

L19: S79°04'35"E 72.59'

L20: S87°44'31"E 157.71'

L21: N88°23'19"E 223.04'

L22: S80°07'11"E 230.00'

L23: S82°38'39"E 145.61'

L24: S60°10'02"E 89.37'

L25: S34°29'35"E 128.88'

L26: S22°06'29"E 187.35'

L27: S03°24'58"E 338.41'

L28: S04°54'28"W 232.68'

L29: S10°27'55"W 86.96'

L30: S26°29'57"W 165.50'

L31: S58°09'52"W 61.45'

L32: S15°59'18"W 19.51'

L33: S13°35'21"E 289.98'

L34: S40°44'34"E 132.84'

L35: S36°09'34"E 213.25'

L38

L53

L36: S25°04'37"E 317.58'

L37: S48°33'23"E 109.73'

L38: S61°46'12"E 214.06'

L39: N86°01'14"E 158.47'

L40: S83°52'34"E 157.84'

L41: S50°52'25"E 309.05'

L42: S28°48'21"E 112.40'

L43: S07°37'04"E 167.07'

L44: S33°32'42"E 260.58'

L45: S39°01'29"W 228.00'

L46: S14°01'57"W 214.41'

L47: S17°28'24"W 309.25'

L48: S21°18'20"W 92.77'

L49: S64°49'29"W 90.51'

L50: S00°26'26"E 244.29'

L51: S33°56'25"E 149.90'

L52: S23°21'25"E 176.60'

L53: S07°42'10"E 157.77'

LINEAR DATA

G
R

A
V

E
L
 

R
O

A
D

A
S

P
H

A
L

T
 

R
O

A
D

GRAVEL ROAD

WW

WW

WT

WT

WT

WT
PENS

CATTLE

BARNBARN

BARN

PENS
CATTLE

WT

WT

WT

CG

CG

CG

CG

CG

CG

CG

CG

CG

HOUSE

HOUSE

WTCR 202

C
R
 
2
0
2

CR 203

SURVEY LINE
SURVEY LINE

ABSTRACT NO. 29

JOHN M. HEARD SURVEY

ABSTRACT NO. 87

T.J. WINSTON SURVEY

ABSTRACT NO. 51

FRANCIS MENEFEE SURVEY

K
E

E
R

C
 

G
N

A
T

S
U

M
 

CL

K
E

E
R

C
 

G
N

A
T

S
U

M
 

C L

 

PLM

PLM

N
5
3
°
1
3
'
0
0
"

E
 
 
 
 
2
1
6
7
.
1
7
'

ABSTRACT NO. 16

SURVEY

JOHN DAVIS

  - CALCULATED POINT

  - OVERHEAD ELECTRIC E

    OTHERWISE NOTED

  - 5/8" IRON ROD SET UNLESS

  - EXISTING PIPELINE

WW  - WATER WELL

  - FENCE

FCP  - EXISTING FENCE CORNER POST

  - CALCULATED POINT

  - OVERHEAD ELECTRIC E

  - EXISTING PIPELINE

WW  - WATER WELL

  - FENCE

FCP  - EXISTING FENCE CORNER POST

LEGENDLEGEND

YAWDOOLF EA ENOZ DOOLF

V
O

L
U

M
E
 
4
1
4
,
 

P
A

G
E
 
8
5
9
 

O
.

R
.

E
T

C
 

T
E

X
A

S
 

P
I

P
E

L
I

N
E
,
 

L
T

D
.

3
0
'
 

P
I

P
E

L
I

N
E
 

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

i
t
e

m
 
1
0
p

V
O

L
U

M
E
 
4
1
4
,
 

P
A

G
E
 
8
5
9
 

O
.

R
.

E
T

C
 

T
E

X
A

S
 

P
I

P
E

L
I

N
E
,
 

L
T

D
.

2
0
'
 

A
C

C
E

S
S
 

R
O

A
D
 

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

I
T

E
M
 
1
0
p

VOLUME 237, PAGE 492 O.R.

TEPPCO CRUDE PIPELINE, L.P.

30' PIPELINE EASEMENT

item 10o.

107.36'

S34°49'39"W

514.27'

S66°14'44"W

PARCEL 3: 1.3 ACRES

VOL. 543, PG. 495 D.R.

FLOWAGE EASEMENT

item 10l

PARCEL 2: 1.2 ACRES

VOL. 543, PG. 495 D.R.

FLOWAGE EASEMENT

item 10l

PARCEL : 1.2 ACRES

VOL. 543, PG. 495 D.R.

FLOWAGE EASEMENT

item 10l

PARCEL 5: 1.7 ACRES

VOL. 543, PG. 495 D.R.

FLOWAGE EASEMENT

item 10l PARCEL 6: 0.7 ACRE

VOL. 543, PG. 495 D.R.

FLOWAGE EASEMENT

item 10l

C 
CREEK

L

BEGINNING

POINT OF

OF TESORO PIPELINE

APPROX. LOCATION

IPF  - IRON PIPE FOUND

WT

WV

  - WATER TROUGH

  - WATER VALVE

    OTHERWISE NOTED

  - 5/8" IRON ROD FOUND UNLESS

WV

WV

WV

WV

WV

WV

WV

WV

WV

WV

WV

WV

CG  - CATTLE GAURD

833.503 ACRE REMAINDER

TRACT ONE:

VOLUME 237, PAGE 111 O.R.

JANUARY 1, 2004

SCOTT HERIN SACHTLEBEN

TO

ESTATE OF JESSIE T. HERIN, ET AL

GARY OLSON, ADMINISTRATOR OF THE

WARRANTY DEED

PLM  - PIPELINE MARKER

O
A

K
 

T
R

E
E

3
6
"
 

L
I

V
E

K
A

N
S

A
S
 

C
IT

Y
 
S

O
U
T

H
E

R
N
 

R
.R
. 
 (
10

0
' 

R
.O
.W
.)

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 15 of 268



Disclaimer: The records, files, and documents maintained by the Texana Groundwater Conservation District (District) contain data
and information from many sources. The District cannot guarantee the accuracy or validity of such data and information. The District
specifically disclaims any warranty or guarantee relating to the accuracy or validity of any such data and information. All users of such
data and information should conduct such investigation and review as necessary to independently determine the accuracy or validity
of such data and information.

Permitting Data

Layers for Confirmation of Contiguous Tracts Atlas

PRC Boundary

Water Wells

Permitting Request Cases

Reference

Google

Reference

OpenStreetMap

LEGEND

Scale:

Vicinity Map

Printed Date: April 18, 2023

Texana Groundwater Conservation District
 P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957
Phone:  (361) 781-0624 | FAX: (361) 781-0453
admin@texanagcd.org

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 16 of 268



Disclaimer: The records, files, and documents maintained by the Texana Groundwater Conservation District (District) contain data
and information from many sources. The District cannot guarantee the accuracy or validity of such data and information. The District
specifically disclaims any warranty or guarantee relating to the accuracy or validity of any such data and information. All users of such
data and information should conduct such investigation and review as necessary to independently determine the accuracy or validity
of such data and information.

Permitting Data

Layers for Confirmation of Contiguous Tracts Atlas

Ownership Tracts - Land

Water Wells [1188]

Ownership Tracts - Land: Filtered for Confirmation Map [1]

Permitting Request Cases [1]

Reference

Tax Parcels

OpenStreetMap

Reference

OpenStreetMap

LEGEND

Scale:

Vicinity Map

Printed Date: April 18, 2023

Texana Groundwater Conservation District
 P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957
Phone:  (361) 781-0624 | FAX: (361) 781-0453
admin@texanagcd.org

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 17 of 268



Disclaimer: The records, files, and documents maintained by the Texana Groundwater Conservation District (District) contain data
and information from many sources. The District cannot guarantee the accuracy or validity of such data and information. The District
specifically disclaims any warranty or guarantee relating to the accuracy or validity of any such data and information. All users of such
data and information should conduct such investigation and review as necessary to independently determine the accuracy or validity
of such data and information.

Permitting Data

Layers for Confirmation of Contiguous Tracts Atlas

Ownership Tracts - Groundwater

Water Wells [1188]

Ownership Tracts - Groundwater: Filtered for Confirmation Map [1]

Permitting Request Cases [1]

Reference

Tax Parcels

OpenStreetMap

Reference

OpenStreetMap

LEGEND

Scale:

Vicinity Map

Printed Date: April 18, 2023

Texana Groundwater Conservation District
 P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957
Phone:  (361) 781-0624 | FAX: (361) 781-0453
admin@texanagcd.org

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 18 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 19 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells St., Suite 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 

Working to Conserve, Preserve, Protect, and Prevent Waste of Groundwater Resources Within Jackson 
County for the Benefit of Jackson County's Landowners, Citizens, Economy, and Environment 

 

March 24, 2023 
 
Via email: mkubecka@homegrownseafood.com 
Via CMRRR: 7021 0350 0000 2786 0674 
 
Bowers and Saha Aquaculture LLC 
24781 SH 35 S 
Palacios, Texas 77465 
 
RE:  Notice of Intent to Contest Application 
 
Mr. Bowers, 
 
The district has received the application you submitted requesting amendment of permit AP-
20121203-14. The application has been assigned the following identification number: AAPC-
20230321-01. The application is being processed under permitting request case PRC-20230321-
01. 
 
Upon initial review of the permitting request case and related permit, the District has determined 
that the request is logically inconsistent and therefore contests the request.   
 
The request, as specified in application AAPC-20230321-01, seeks to alter permit AP-20121203-
14 by eliminating "weekly groundwater testing requirements" and “curtailment requirements".  
However, the permit does not contain 1) "weekly groundwater testing requirements", or 2) 
"curtailment requirements". 
 
Based on discussions with Mr. Mark Kubecka, I suspect that your intention was to request an 
amendment to permit OPWF-20191219-01 and waiver WV-20191219-01 to eliminate certain 
monitoring and curtailment requirements within that affect the operation of the subject well field.  
If this is accurate, you should submit an application to amend the permit and waiver to that effect. 
 
The district wishes, if possible, to resolve the identified issues prior to scheduling the matter for 
consideration by the Board of Directors of the District.  The next meeting of the Board of Directors 
of the Texana Groundwater Conservation District is scheduled for April 20, 2023.  Therefore, the 
district must submit the hearing notice regarding permitting request cases to be considered at the 
meeting no later than April 4, 2023.   
 
If you wish to discuss or have any question regarding this matter, please contact the district at 
your earliest convenience.. 
 
Regards, 
 
 
 
Tim Andruss 
General Manager 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 20 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 21 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 22 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 23 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 24 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 25 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 26 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 27 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 28 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 29 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 30 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 31 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 32 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 33 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 34 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 35 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 36 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 37 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 38 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 39 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 40 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 41 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 42 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 43 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 44 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 45 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 46 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells St., Suite 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 

Working to Conserve, Preserve, Protect, and Prevent Waste of Groundwater Resources Within Jackson 
County for the Benefit of Jackson County's Landowners, Citizens, Economy, and Environment 

 

March 30, 2023 
 
Via email: mkubecka@homegrownseafood.com 
Via CMRRR: 7021 0350 0000 2786 0681 
 
Bowers and Saha Aquaculture LLC 
24781 SH 35 S 
Palacios, Texas 77465 
 
RE:  Notice of Intent to Contest Application 
 
Mr. Bowers, 
 
The district has received the revised application you submitted requesting amendment of waiver 
WV-20191219-01. The application has been assigned the following identification number: AAPC-
20230329-01 and will be processed as a substitute application for AAPC-20230321-01. The 
application is being processed under permitting request case PRC-20230321-01. 
 
Upon initial review of the permitting request case and related waiver, the District has determined 
that the request is logically inconsistent with the policies of the board as specified within the 
subject waiver.   
 
The next meeting of the Board of Directors of the Texana Groundwater Conservation District is 
scheduled for April 20, 2023.   
 
If you wish to discuss or have any question regarding this matter, please contact the district at 
your earliest convenience. 
 
Regards, 
 
 
 
Tim Andruss 
General Manager 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 47 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 48 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 49 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 50 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 51 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 52 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 53 of 268



AOW-20230609-01

6/23/2023

Tim Andruss, General Manager

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 54 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 55 of 268



STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
COUNTY OF JACKSON § 
 

ENFORCEMENT ORDER IN THE MATTER OF CANDIDO SAENZ, CAUSE NO. ECV-
20230421-01 

On this _____day of ________, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Texana Groundwater 
Conservation District convened an enforcement hearing in compliance with Section 36.102, Water 
Code, and the Texas Open Meetings Act, in the above styled and numbered cause.  Based upon the 
evidence presented, the Board of Directors finds as follows:  

 

1. Candido Saenz appeared/did not appear at the hearing.  

2. Candido Saenz has committed a violation of District Rule 2.6 REPORTING 
REQUIREMENT RELATED TO NON-EXEMPT USE WELLS by failing to 
report groundwater production for calendar year 2022 for non-exempt well GW-
00547 and that such violation is continuing. Each day of continued failure to report 
the groundwater production for calendar year 2022 constitutes a separate violation.  

3. The penalty for this violation is assessed at $______________. Additional penalties 
are assessed at $___________ per day for each day following adoption of this order 
until the groundwater production for 2022 is properly reported.  

4. Further, any associated permit with well No. GW-00547 is hereby cancelled and 
further production is prohibited from the well until said permit is reinstated by the 
district. District staff is ordered to place a seal upon the well to prevent further 
production. 

5. Legal Counsel is hereby instructed to file suit if necessary to enforce this order.  

 

READ and ADOPTED this ________ day of ______________, 2023 by a vote of ________ ayes 
and _________ nays. 

       ____________________________________  
Presiding Officer,  
Texana Groundwater Conservation District 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________________  
Secretary, Texana Groundwater Conservation District 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 56 of 268



 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 57 of 268



STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
COUNTY OF JACKSON § 
 

ENFORCEMENT ORDER IN THE MATTER OF THE RANCHES AT MUSTANG CREEK, 
CAUSE NO. ECV-20230421-02 

On this _____day of ________, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Texana Groundwater 
Conservation District convened an enforcement hearing in compliance with Section 36.102, Water 
Code, and the Texas Open Meetings Act, in the above styled and numbered cause.  Based upon the 
evidence presented, the Board of Directors finds as follows:  

 

1. The Ranches at Mustang Creek appeared/did not appear at the hearing.  

2. The Ranches at Mustang Creek has committed a violation of District Rule 2.6 
REPORTING REQUIREMENT RELATED TO NON-EXEMPT USE WELLS by 
failing to report groundwater production for calendar year 2022 for non-exempt 
well GW-00569 and that such violation is continuing. Each day of continued failure 
to report the groundwater production for calendar year 2022 constitutes a separate 
violation.  

3. The penalty for this violation is assessed at $______________. Additional penalties 
are assessed at $___________ per day for each day following adoption of this order 
until the groundwater production for 2022 is properly reported.  

4. Further, any associated permit with well No. GW-00569 is hereby cancelled and 
further production is prohibited from the well until said permit is reinstated by the 
district. District staff is ordered to place a seal upon the well to prevent further 
production. 

5. Legal Counsel is hereby instructed to file suit if necessary to enforce this order.  

 

READ and ADOPTED this ________ day of ______________, 2023 by a vote of ________ ayes 
and _________ nays. 

       ____________________________________  
Presiding Officer,  
Texana Groundwater Conservation District 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________________  

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 58 of 268



Secretary, Texana Groundwater Conservation District 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 59 of 268



STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
COUNTY OF JACKSON § 
 

ENFORCEMENT ORDER IN THE MATTER OF ALICE M. COMBS, CAUSE NO. ECV-
20230421-07 

On this _____day of ________, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Texana Groundwater 
Conservation District convened an enforcement hearing in compliance with Section 36.102, Water 
Code, and the Texas Open Meetings Act, in the above styled and numbered cause.  Based upon the 
evidence presented, the Board of Directors finds as follows:  

 

1. Alice M. Combs appeared/did not appear at the hearing.  

2. Alice M. Combs has committed a violation of District Rule 2.6 REPORTING 
REQUIREMENT RELATED TO NON-EXEMPT USE WELLS by failing to 
report groundwater production for calendar year 2022 for non-exempt well GW-
00363 and that such violation is continuing. Each day of continued failure to report 
the groundwater production for calendar year 2022 constitutes a separate violation.  

3. The penalty for this violation is assessed at $______________. Additional penalties 
are assessed at $___________ per day for each day following adoption of this order 
until the groundwater production for 2022 is properly reported.  

4. Further, any associated permit with well No. GW-00363 is hereby cancelled and 
further production is prohibited from the well until said permit is reinstated by the 
district. District staff is ordered to place a seal upon the well to prevent further 
production. 

5. Legal Counsel is hereby instructed to file suit if necessary to enforce this order.  

 

READ and ADOPTED this ________ day of ______________, 2023 by a vote of ________ ayes 
and _________ nays. 

       ____________________________________  
Presiding Officer,  
Texana Groundwater Conservation District 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________________  
Secretary, Texana Groundwater Conservation District 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 60 of 268



 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 61 of 268



STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
COUNTY OF JACKSON § 
 

ENFORCEMENT ORDER IN THE MATTER OF ALICE M. COMBS, CAUSE NO. ECV-
20230421-08 

On this _____day of ________, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Texana Groundwater 
Conservation District convened an enforcement hearing in compliance with Section 36.102, Water 
Code, and the Texas Open Meetings Act, in the above styled and numbered cause.  Based upon the 
evidence presented, the Board of Directors finds as follows:  

 

1. Alice M. Combs appeared/did not appear at the hearing.  

2. Alice M. Combs has committed a violation of District Rule 2.6 REPORTING 
REQUIREMENT RELATED TO NON-EXEMPT USE WELLS by failing to 
report groundwater production for calendar year 2022 for non-exempt wells GW-
00357, GW-00359, GW-00360, and GW-00361 and that such violation is 
continuing. Each day of continued failure to report the groundwater production for 
calendar year 2022 constitutes a separate violation.  

3. The penalty for this violation is assessed at $______________. Additional penalties 
are assessed at $___________ per day for each day following adoption of this order 
until the groundwater production for 2022 is properly reported.  

4. Further, all associated permits with wells Nos. GW-00357, GW-00359, GW-00360, 
and GW-00361 are hereby cancelled and further production is prohibited from the 
wells until said permit are reinstated by the district. District staff is ordered to place 
a seal upon the wells to prevent further production. 

5. Legal Counsel is hereby instructed to file suit if necessary to enforce this order.  

 

READ and ADOPTED this ________ day of ______________, 2023 by a vote of ________ ayes 
and _________ nays. 

       ____________________________________  
Presiding Officer,  
Texana Groundwater Conservation District 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________________  
Secretary, Texana Groundwater Conservation District 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 62 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 63 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 64 of 268



ANALYTICAL REPORT
July 25,  2022

Victoria County GCD

Sample Delivery Group: L1514212

Samples Received: 07/13/2022

Project Number:

Description: Level 3 Baseline

Report To: Mike Benavides

2805 N Navarro St.

Ste 210

Victoria, TX  77901

Entire Report Reviewed By:

July 25,  2022

[Preliminary Report]

Lori  A Vahrenkamp
Pro ject  Manager

Results relate only to the items tested or calibrated and are reported as rounded values. This test report shall not be 
reproduced, except in full, without written approval of the laboratory. Where applicable, sampling conducted by Pace 
Analytical National is performed per guidance provided in laboratory standard operating procedures ENV-SOP-MTJL-0067 and 
ENV-SOP-MTJL-0068. Where sampling conducted by the customer, results relate to the accuracy of the information provided, 
and as the samples are received.

Pace Analytical Services, LLC -Dallas
400 W.  Bethany  Dr ive  Su i te  190   A l len ,  TX  75013   972-727- 1 123   800-767-5859  www.pacenat iona l . com

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 1 of 29

July 26,  2022

Lori  A Vahrenkamp
Pro ject  Manager

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 1 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 65 of 268

https://www.pacenational.com
mailto:admin@vcgcd.org;tim.andruss@vcgcd.org?subject=Pace Analytical National SDG: L1514212&body=Email regarding SDG: L1514212
mailto:lori.vahrenkamp@pacelabs.com?subject=Pace Analytical National SDG: L1514212&body=Email regarding SDG: L1514212
https://www.pacenational.com
mailto:lori.vahrenkamp@pacelabs.com?subject=Pace Analytical National SDG: L1514212&body=Email regarding SDG: L1514212


TABLE OF CONTENTS

  Cp: Cover Page 1

  Tc: Table of Contents 2

  Ss: Sample Summary 3

  Cn: Case Narrative 5

  Sr: Sample Results 6

      2846486296358078    L1514212-01 6

      9635500128465914    L1514212-02 8

      9637541228445014    L1514212-03 10

      9638047828465916    L1514212-04 12

      9637274128470956    L1514212-05 14

  Qc: Quality Control Summary 16

      Gravimetric Analysis by Method 2540C 16

      Wet Chemistry by Method 2320B 17

      Wet Chemistry by Method 9040C 18

      Wet Chemistry by Method 9050 20

      Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A 21

      Mercury by Method 7470 22

      Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020 23

      TPH by TCEQ Method 1005 25

  Gl: Glossary of Terms 26

  Al: Accreditations & Locations 27

  Sc: Sample Chain of Custody 28

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 2 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 2 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 66 of 268



SAMPLE SUMMARY

Collected by Collected date/time Received date/time

2846486296358078  L1514212-01  GW Brent I. 07/12/22 09:22 07/13/22 09:00

Method Batch Dilution Preparation Analysis Analyst Location

date/time date/time  

Gravimetric Analysis by Method 2540C WG1895001 1 07/14/22 09:31 07/14/22 11:30 QQT Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 2320B WG1892955 1 07/18/22 12:00 07/18/22 12:00 RJP Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9040C WG1892939 1 07/18/22 14:40 07/18/22 14:40 RJP Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9050 WG1894914 1 07/14/22 08:24 07/14/22 08:24 QQT Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A WG1894499 1 07/13/22 16:22 07/13/22 16:22 EIG Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A WG1894499 1 07/13/22 20:20 07/13/22 20:20 EIG Allen, TX

Mercury by Method 7470 WG1896123 1 07/16/22 09:00 07/19/22 11:03 EJS Allen, TX

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020 WG1895977 10 07/15/22 16:21 07/22/22 12:33 EJS Allen, TX

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020 WG1895977 20 07/15/22 16:21 07/23/22 11:54 EJS Allen, TX

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020 WG1895977 3 07/15/22 16:21 07/16/22 19:46 CLK Allen, TX

TPH by TCEQ Method 1005 WG1897412 1 07/19/22 12:26 07/20/22 18:18 TTP Allen, TX

Collected by Collected date/time Received date/time

9635500128465914  L1514212-02  GW Brent I. 07/12/22 09:46 07/13/22 09:00

Method Batch Dilution Preparation Analysis Analyst Location

date/time date/time  

Gravimetric Analysis by Method 2540C WG1895001 1 07/14/22 09:31 07/14/22 11:30 QQT Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 2320B WG1892955 1 07/18/22 12:00 07/18/22 12:00 RJP Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9040C WG1897053 1 07/19/22 13:33 07/19/22 13:33 RJP Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9050 WG1894914 1 07/14/22 08:24 07/14/22 08:24 QQT Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A WG1894499 1 07/13/22 16:42 07/13/22 16:42 EIG Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A WG1894499 1 07/13/22 20:40 07/13/22 20:40 EIG Allen, TX

Mercury by Method 7470 WG1896123 1 07/16/22 09:00 07/19/22 11:05 EJS Allen, TX

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020 WG1895977 10 07/15/22 16:21 07/22/22 12:40 EJS Allen, TX

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020 WG1895977 3 07/15/22 16:21 07/16/22 19:53 CLK Allen, TX

TPH by TCEQ Method 1005 WG1897412 1 07/19/22 12:26 07/19/22 23:15 TTP Allen, TX

Collected by Collected date/time Received date/time

9637541228445014  L1514212-03  GW Brent I. 07/12/22 10:41 07/13/22 09:00

Method Batch Dilution Preparation Analysis Analyst Location

date/time date/time  

Gravimetric Analysis by Method 2540C WG1895001 1 07/14/22 09:31 07/14/22 11:30 QQT Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 2320B WG1892955 1 07/18/22 12:00 07/18/22 12:00 RJP Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9040C WG1897053 1 07/19/22 13:33 07/19/22 13:33 RJP Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9050 WG1894914 1 07/14/22 08:24 07/14/22 08:24 QQT Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A WG1894499 1 07/13/22 17:02 07/13/22 17:02 EIG Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A WG1894499 1 07/13/22 21:00 07/13/22 21:00 EIG Allen, TX

Mercury by Method 7470 WG1896123 1 07/16/22 09:00 07/19/22 11:08 EJS Allen, TX

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020 WG1895977 3 07/15/22 16:21 07/16/22 20:00 CLK Allen, TX

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020 WG1895977 5 07/15/22 16:21 07/22/22 12:47 EJS Allen, TX

TPH by TCEQ Method 1005 WG1897412 1 07/19/22 12:26 07/19/22 23:47 TTP Allen, TX

Collected by Collected date/time Received date/time

9638047828465916  L1514212-04  GW Brent I. 07/12/22 11:06 07/13/22 09:00

Method Batch Dilution Preparation Analysis Analyst Location

date/time date/time  

Gravimetric Analysis by Method 2540C WG1895001 1 07/14/22 09:31 07/14/22 11:30 QQT Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 2320B WG1892955 1 07/18/22 12:00 07/18/22 12:00 RJP Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9040C WG1897053 1 07/19/22 13:33 07/19/22 13:33 RJP Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9050 WG1894914 1 07/14/22 08:24 07/14/22 08:24 QQT Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A WG1894499 1 07/13/22 17:22 07/13/22 17:22 EIG Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A WG1894499 1 07/13/22 21:19 07/13/22 21:19 EIG Allen, TX

Mercury by Method 7470 WG1896123 1 07/16/22 09:00 07/19/22 11:10 EJS Allen, TX

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 3 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 3 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 67 of 268



SAMPLE SUMMARY

Collected by Collected date/time Received date/time

9638047828465916  L1514212-04  GW Brent I. 07/12/22 11:06 07/13/22 09:00

Method Batch Dilution Preparation Analysis Analyst Location

date/time date/time  

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020 WG1895977 3 07/15/22 16:21 07/16/22 20:07 CLK Allen, TX

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020 WG1895977 5 07/15/22 16:21 07/22/22 12:55 EJS Allen, TX

TPH by TCEQ Method 1005 WG1897412 1 07/19/22 12:26 07/20/22 00:18 TTP Allen, TX

Collected by Collected date/time Received date/time

9637274128470956  L1514212-05  GW Brent I. 07/12/22 11:31 07/13/22 09:00

Method Batch Dilution Preparation Analysis Analyst Location

date/time date/time  

Gravimetric Analysis by Method 2540C WG1895001 1 07/14/22 09:31 07/14/22 11:30 QQT Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 2320B WG1892955 1 07/18/22 12:00 07/18/22 12:00 RJP Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9040C WG1897053 1 07/19/22 13:33 07/19/22 13:33 RJP Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9050 WG1894914 1 07/14/22 08:24 07/14/22 08:24 QQT Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A WG1894499 1 07/13/22 17:42 07/13/22 17:42 EIG Allen, TX

Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A WG1894499 1 07/13/22 21:39 07/13/22 21:39 EIG Allen, TX

Mercury by Method 7470 WG1896123 1 07/16/22 09:00 07/19/22 11:12 EJS Allen, TX

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020 WG1895977 3 07/15/22 16:21 07/16/22 20:14 CLK Allen, TX

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020 WG1895977 5 07/15/22 16:21 07/22/22 13:02 EJS Allen, TX

TPH by TCEQ Method 1005 WG1897412 1 07/19/22 12:26 07/20/22 00:49 TTP Allen, TX

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 4 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 4 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 68 of 268



CASE NARRATIVE

All sample aliquots were received at the correct temperature, in the proper containers, with the 
appropriate preservatives, and within method specified holding times, unless qualified or notated within
the report.  Where applicable, all MDL (LOD) and RDL (LOQ) values reported for environmental samples
have been corrected for the dilution factor used in the analysis.  All Method and Batch Quality Control 
are within established criteria except where addressed in this case narrative, a non-conformance form 
or properly qualified within the sample results. By my digital signature below, I affirm to the best of my 
knowledge, all problems/anomalies observed by the laboratory as having the potential to affect the 
quality of the data have been identified by the laboratory, and no information or data have been 
knowingly withheld that would affect the quality of the data.

[Preliminary Report]

Lor i  A Vahrenkamp
Pro jec t  Manager

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 5 of 29

Lor i  A Vahrenkamp
Pro jec t  Manager

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 5 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 69 of 268

mailto:lori.vahrenkamp@pacelabs.com?subject=Pace Analytical Services, LLC -Dallas SDG: L1514212&body=Email regarding SDG: L1514212
mailto:lori.vahrenkamp@pacelabs.com?subject=Pace Analytical National SDG: L1514212&body=Email regarding SDG: L1514212


SAMPLE RESULTS - 01
L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2

2846486296358078
C o l l e c t e d  d a t e / t i m e :   0 7 / 1 2 / 2 2  0 9 : 2 2

Gravimetric Analysis by Method 2540C

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Total Dissolved Solids 3500 250 1 07/14/2022 11:30 WG1895001

Wet Chemistry by Method 2320B

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Alkalinity 262 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Alkalinity,Bicarbonate 262 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Alkalinity,Carbonate <20.0 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Alkalinity,Hydroxide <20.0 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Phenolphthalein Alkalinity <20.0 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Wet Chemistry by Method 9040C

 Result Qualifier Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte su date / time

pH 8.16 T8 1 07/18/2022 14:40 WG1892939

Sample Narrative: 

     L1514212-01 WG1892939: 8.16 at 19.2C

Wet Chemistry by Method 9050

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte umhos/cm umhos/cm date / time

Specific Conductance 5810 1.00 1 07/14/2022 08:24 WG1894914

Sample Narrative: 

     L1514212-01 WG1894914: at 25C

Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Bromide 10.9 J6 0.400 1 07/13/2022 16:22 WG1894499

Chloride 1640 J6 0.800 1 07/13/2022 20:20 WG1894499

Fluoride <0.500 0.500 1 07/13/2022 16:22 WG1894499

Nitrate <0.500 0.500 1 07/13/2022 16:22 WG1894499

Sulfate <0.700 0.700 1 07/13/2022 16:22 WG1894499

Mercury by Method 7470

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Mercury <0.000200 0.000200 1 07/19/2022 11:03 WG1896123

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Arsenic 0.00158 0.00150 3 07/16/2022 19:46 WG1895977

Barium 2.55 0.00900 3 07/16/2022 19:46 WG1895977

Cadmium <0.00300 0.00300 3 07/16/2022 19:46 WG1895977

Calcium 63.8 5.00 10 07/22/2022 12:33 WG1895977

Chromium <0.00900 0.00900 3 07/16/2022 19:46 WG1895977

Lead 0.0125 0.00150 3 07/16/2022 19:46 WG1895977

Magnesium 28.4 0.0600 3 07/16/2022 19:46 WG1895977

Potassium 5.25 1.50 3 07/16/2022 19:46 WG1895977

Selenium <0.0150 0.0150 3 07/16/2022 19:46 WG1895977

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 6 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 6 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 70 of 268



SAMPLE RESULTS - 01
L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2

2846486296358078
C o l l e c t e d  d a t e / t i m e :   0 7 / 1 2 / 2 2  0 9 : 2 2

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Silver <0.00150 0.00150 3 07/16/2022 19:46 WG1895977

Sodium 1170 10.0 20 07/23/2022 11:54 WG1895977

TPH by TCEQ Method 1005

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

TPH C6 - C12 <0.900 0.900 1 07/20/2022 18:18 WG1897412

TPH C12 - C28 <0.900 0.900 1 07/20/2022 18:18 WG1897412

TPH C28 - C35 <0.900 0.900 1 07/20/2022 18:18 WG1897412

TPH C6 - C35 1.55 0.900 1 07/20/2022 18:18 WG1897412

    (S) o-Terphenyl 106 70.0-130 07/20/2022 18:18 WG1897412

    (S) 1-chlorooctane 91.6 70.0-130 07/20/2022 18:18 WG1897412

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 7 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 7 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 71 of 268



SAMPLE RESULTS - 02
L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2

9635500128465914
C o l l e c t e d  d a t e / t i m e :   0 7 / 1 2 / 2 2  0 9 : 4 6

Gravimetric Analysis by Method 2540C

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Total Dissolved Solids 2430 71.5 1 07/14/2022 11:30 WG1895001

Wet Chemistry by Method 2320B

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Alkalinity 250 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Alkalinity,Bicarbonate 250 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Alkalinity,Carbonate <20.0 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Alkalinity,Hydroxide <20.0 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Phenolphthalein Alkalinity <20.0 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Wet Chemistry by Method 9040C

 Result Qualifier Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte su date / time

pH 8.06 T8 1 07/19/2022 13:33 WG1897053

Sample Narrative: 

     L1514212-02 WG1897053: 8.06 at 20.6C

Wet Chemistry by Method 9050

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte umhos/cm umhos/cm date / time

Specific Conductance 4800 1.00 1 07/14/2022 08:24 WG1894914

Sample Narrative: 

     L1514212-02 WG1894914: at 25C

Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Bromide 8.32 0.400 1 07/13/2022 16:42 WG1894499

Chloride 1260 0.800 1 07/13/2022 20:40 WG1894499

Fluoride 0.809 0.500 1 07/13/2022 16:42 WG1894499

Nitrate <0.500 0.500 1 07/13/2022 16:42 WG1894499

Sulfate <0.700 0.700 1 07/13/2022 16:42 WG1894499

Mercury by Method 7470

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Mercury <0.000200 0.000200 1 07/19/2022 11:05 WG1896123

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Arsenic 0.0113 0.00150 3 07/16/2022 19:53 WG1895977

Barium 2.10 0.00900 3 07/16/2022 19:53 WG1895977

Cadmium <0.00300 0.00300 3 07/16/2022 19:53 WG1895977

Calcium 44.5 5.00 10 07/22/2022 12:40 WG1895977

Chromium <0.00900 0.00900 3 07/16/2022 19:53 WG1895977

Lead <0.00150 0.00150 3 07/16/2022 19:53 WG1895977

Magnesium 24.4 0.0600 3 07/16/2022 19:53 WG1895977

Potassium 3.10 1.50 3 07/16/2022 19:53 WG1895977

Selenium <0.0150 0.0150 3 07/16/2022 19:53 WG1895977

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 8 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 8 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 72 of 268



SAMPLE RESULTS - 02
L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2

9635500128465914
C o l l e c t e d  d a t e / t i m e :   0 7 / 1 2 / 2 2  0 9 : 4 6

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Silver <0.00150 0.00150 3 07/16/2022 19:53 WG1895977

Sodium 877 5.00 10 07/22/2022 12:40 WG1895977

TPH by TCEQ Method 1005

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

TPH C6 - C12 <0.900 0.900 1 07/19/2022 23:15 WG1897412

TPH C12 - C28 <0.900 0.900 1 07/19/2022 23:15 WG1897412

TPH C28 - C35 <0.900 0.900 1 07/19/2022 23:15 WG1897412

TPH C6 - C35 <0.900 0.900 1 07/19/2022 23:15 WG1897412

    (S) o-Terphenyl 101 70.0-130 07/19/2022 23:15 WG1897412

    (S) 1-chlorooctane 86.6 70.0-130 07/19/2022 23:15 WG1897412

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 9 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 9 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 73 of 268



SAMPLE RESULTS - 03
L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2

9637541228445014
C o l l e c t e d  d a t e / t i m e :   0 7 / 1 2 / 2 2  1 0 : 4 1

Gravimetric Analysis by Method 2540C

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Total Dissolved Solids 1090 55.5 1 07/14/2022 11:30 WG1895001

Wet Chemistry by Method 2320B

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Alkalinity 244 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Alkalinity,Bicarbonate 244 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Alkalinity,Carbonate <20.0 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Alkalinity,Hydroxide <20.0 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Phenolphthalein Alkalinity <20.0 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Wet Chemistry by Method 9040C

 Result Qualifier Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte su date / time

pH 8.01 T8 1 07/19/2022 13:33 WG1897053

Sample Narrative: 

     L1514212-03 WG1897053: 8.01 at 20.8C

Wet Chemistry by Method 9050

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte umhos/cm umhos/cm date / time

Specific Conductance 2140 1.00 1 07/14/2022 08:24 WG1894914

Sample Narrative: 

     L1514212-03 WG1894914: at 25C

Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Bromide 3.27 0.400 1 07/13/2022 17:02 WG1894499

Chloride 457 0.800 1 07/13/2022 21:00 WG1894499

Fluoride 0.663 0.500 1 07/13/2022 17:02 WG1894499

Nitrate <0.500 0.500 1 07/13/2022 17:02 WG1894499

Sulfate <0.700 0.700 1 07/13/2022 17:02 WG1894499

Mercury by Method 7470

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Mercury <0.000200 0.000200 1 07/19/2022 11:08 WG1896123

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Arsenic 0.00177 0.00150 3 07/16/2022 20:00 WG1895977

Barium 0.377 0.00900 3 07/16/2022 20:00 WG1895977

Cadmium <0.00300 0.00300 3 07/16/2022 20:00 WG1895977

Calcium 15.3 2.50 5 07/22/2022 12:47 WG1895977

Chromium <0.00900 0.00900 3 07/16/2022 20:00 WG1895977

Lead <0.00150 0.00150 3 07/16/2022 20:00 WG1895977

Magnesium 11.2 0.0600 3 07/16/2022 20:00 WG1895977

Potassium 1.81 1.50 3 07/16/2022 20:00 WG1895977

Selenium <0.0150 0.0150 3 07/16/2022 20:00 WG1895977

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 10 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 10 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 74 of 268



SAMPLE RESULTS - 03
L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2

9637541228445014
C o l l e c t e d  d a t e / t i m e :   0 7 / 1 2 / 2 2  1 0 : 4 1

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Silver <0.00150 0.00150 3 07/16/2022 20:00 WG1895977

Sodium 233 2.50 5 07/22/2022 12:47 WG1895977

TPH by TCEQ Method 1005

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

TPH C6 - C12 <0.900 0.900 1 07/19/2022 23:47 WG1897412

TPH C12 - C28 <0.900 0.900 1 07/19/2022 23:47 WG1897412

TPH C28 - C35 <0.900 0.900 1 07/19/2022 23:47 WG1897412

TPH C6 - C35 <0.900 0.900 1 07/19/2022 23:47 WG1897412

    (S) o-Terphenyl 102 70.0-130 07/19/2022 23:47 WG1897412

    (S) 1-chlorooctane 87.9 70.0-130 07/19/2022 23:47 WG1897412

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 11 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 11 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 75 of 268



SAMPLE RESULTS - 04
L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2

9638047828465916
C o l l e c t e d  d a t e / t i m e :   0 7 / 1 2 / 2 2  1 1 : 0 6

Gravimetric Analysis by Method 2540C

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Total Dissolved Solids 1030 55.5 1 07/14/2022 11:30 WG1895001

Wet Chemistry by Method 2320B

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Alkalinity 262 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Alkalinity,Bicarbonate 262 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Alkalinity,Carbonate <20.0 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Alkalinity,Hydroxide <20.0 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Phenolphthalein Alkalinity <20.0 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Wet Chemistry by Method 9040C

 Result Qualifier Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte su date / time

pH 8.00 T8 1 07/19/2022 13:33 WG1897053

Sample Narrative: 

     L1514212-04 WG1897053: 8 at 20.7C

Wet Chemistry by Method 9050

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte umhos/cm umhos/cm date / time

Specific Conductance 2050 1.00 1 07/14/2022 08:24 WG1894914

Sample Narrative: 

     L1514212-04 WG1894914: at 25C

Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Bromide 2.46 0.400 1 07/13/2022 17:22 WG1894499

Chloride 420 0.800 1 07/13/2022 21:19 WG1894499

Fluoride <0.500 0.500 1 07/13/2022 17:22 WG1894499

Nitrate <0.500 0.500 1 07/13/2022 17:22 WG1894499

Sulfate <0.700 0.700 1 07/13/2022 17:22 WG1894499

Mercury by Method 7470

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Mercury <0.000200 0.000200 1 07/19/2022 11:10 WG1896123

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Arsenic 0.0109 0.00150 3 07/16/2022 20:07 WG1895977

Barium 0.303 0.00900 3 07/16/2022 20:07 WG1895977

Cadmium <0.00300 0.00300 3 07/16/2022 20:07 WG1895977

Calcium 22.9 2.50 5 07/22/2022 12:55 WG1895977

Chromium <0.00900 0.00900 3 07/16/2022 20:07 WG1895977

Lead <0.00150 0.00150 3 07/16/2022 20:07 WG1895977

Magnesium 10.2 0.0600 3 07/16/2022 20:07 WG1895977

Potassium 1.69 1.50 3 07/16/2022 20:07 WG1895977

Selenium <0.0150 0.0150 3 07/16/2022 20:07 WG1895977

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 12 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 12 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 76 of 268



SAMPLE RESULTS - 04
L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2

9638047828465916
C o l l e c t e d  d a t e / t i m e :   0 7 / 1 2 / 2 2  1 1 : 0 6

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Silver <0.00150 0.00150 3 07/16/2022 20:07 WG1895977

Sodium 370 2.50 5 07/22/2022 12:55 WG1895977

TPH by TCEQ Method 1005

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

TPH C6 - C12 1.12 0.900 1 07/20/2022 00:18 WG1897412

TPH C12 - C28 <0.900 0.900 1 07/20/2022 00:18 WG1897412

TPH C28 - C35 <0.900 0.900 1 07/20/2022 00:18 WG1897412

TPH C6 - C35 1.12 0.900 1 07/20/2022 00:18 WG1897412

    (S) o-Terphenyl 103 70.0-130 07/20/2022 00:18 WG1897412

    (S) 1-chlorooctane 88.5 70.0-130 07/20/2022 00:18 WG1897412

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 13 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 13 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 77 of 268



SAMPLE RESULTS - 05
L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2

9637274128470956
C o l l e c t e d  d a t e / t i m e :   0 7 / 1 2 / 2 2  1 1 : 3 1

Gravimetric Analysis by Method 2540C

Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Total Dissolved Solids 1240 55.5 1 07/14/2022 11:30 WG1895001

Wet Chemistry by Method 2320B

Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Alkalinity 256 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Alkalinity,Bicarbonate 256 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Alkalinity,Carbonate <20.0 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Alkalinity,Hydroxide <20.0 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Phenolphthalein Alkalinity <20.0 20.0 1 07/18/2022 12:00 WG1892955

Wet Chemistry by Method 9040C

Result Qualifier Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte su date / time

pH 8.14 T8 1 07/19/2022 13:33 WG1897053

Sample Narrative: 

     L1514212-05 WG1897053: 8.14 at 20.5C

Wet Chemistry by Method 9050

Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte umhos/cm umhos/cm date / time

Specific Conductance 2340 1.00 1 07/14/2022 08:24 WG1894914

Sample Narrative: 

     L1514212-05 WG1894914: at 25C

Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A

Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Bromide 3.59 0.400 1 07/13/2022 17:42 WG1894499

Chloride 511 0.800 1 07/13/2022 21:39 WG1894499

Fluoride 0.765 0.500 1 07/13/2022 17:42 WG1894499

Nitrate <0.500 0.500 1 07/13/2022 17:42 WG1894499

Sulfate <0.700 0.700 1 07/13/2022 17:42 WG1894499

Mercury by Method 7470

Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Mercury <0.000200 0.000200 1 07/19/2022 11:12 WG1896123

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020

Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Arsenic 0.00337 0.00150 3 07/16/2022 20:14 WG1895977

Barium 0.343 0.00900 3 07/16/2022 20:14 WG1895977

Cadmium <0.00300 0.00300 3 07/16/2022 20:14 WG1895977

Calcium 19.2 2.50 5 07/22/2022 13:02 WG1895977

Chromium <0.00900 0.00900 3 07/16/2022 20:14 WG1895977

Lead <0.00150 0.00150 3 07/16/2022 20:14 WG1895977

Magnesium 11.8 0.0600 3 07/16/2022 20:14 WG1895977

Potassium 1.83 1.50 3 07/16/2022 20:14 WG1895977

Selenium <0.0150 0.0150 3 07/16/2022 20:14 WG1895977

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 14 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 14 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 78 of 268



SAMPLE RESULTS - 05
L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2

9637274128470956
C o l l e c t e d  d a t e / t i m e :   0 7 / 1 2 / 2 2  1 1 : 3 1

Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

Silver <0.00150 0.00150 3 07/16/2022 20:14 WG1895977

Sodium 315 2.50 5 07/22/2022 13:02 WG1895977

TPH by TCEQ Method 1005

 Result Qualifier RDL Dilution Analysis Batch

Analyte mg/l mg/l date / time

TPH C6 - C12 <0.900 0.900 1 07/20/2022 00:49 WG1897412

TPH C12 - C28 <0.900 0.900 1 07/20/2022 00:49 WG1897412

TPH C28 - C35 <0.900 0.900 1 07/20/2022 00:49 WG1897412

TPH C6 - C35 <0.900 0.900 1 07/20/2022 00:49 WG1897412

    (S) o-Terphenyl 102 70.0-130 07/20/2022 00:49 WG1897412

    (S) 1-chlorooctane 87.4 70.0-130 07/20/2022 00:49 WG1897412

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 15 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 15 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 79 of 268



QUALITY CONTROL SUMMARYWG1895001
G r a v i m e t r i c  A n a l y s i s  b y  M e t h o d  2 5 4 0 C L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2 - 0 1 , 0 2 , 0 3 , 0 4 , 0 5

Method Blank (MB)

(MB) R3815292-1  07/14/22 11:30

 MB Result MB Qualifier MB MDL MB RDL

Analyte mg/l mg/l mg/l

Total Dissolved Solids <25.0 25.0 25.0

L1514212-01 Original Sample (OS) • Duplicate (DUP)

(OS) L1514212-01  07/14/22 11:30 • (DUP) R3815292-3  07/14/22 11:30

 Original Result DUP Result Dilution DUP RPD DUP Qualifier DUP RPD 
Limits

Analyte mg/l mg/l % %

Total Dissolved Solids 3500 3360 1 4.08 5

L1514212-02 Original Sample (OS) • Duplicate (DUP)

(OS) L1514212-02  07/14/22 11:30 • (DUP) R3815292-4  07/14/22 11:30

 Original Result DUP Result Dilution DUP RPD DUP Qualifier DUP RPD 
Limits

Analyte mg/l mg/l % %

Total Dissolved Solids 2430 2450 1 0.697 5

Laboratory Control Sample (LCS)

(LCS) R3815292-2  07/14/22 11:30

 Spike Amount LCS Result LCS Rec. Rec. Limits LCS Qualifier

Analyte mg/l mg/l % %

Total Dissolved Solids 2440 2690 110 85.0-115

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 16 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 16 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 80 of 268



QUALITY CONTROL SUMMARYWG1892955
W e t  C h e m i s t r y  b y  M e t h o d  2 3 2 0 B L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2 - 0 1 , 0 2 , 0 3 , 0 4 , 0 5

Method Blank (MB)

(MB) R3816222-1  07/18/22 12:00

 MB Result MB Qualifier MB MDL MB RDL

Analyte mg/l mg/l mg/l

Alkalinity <20.0 20.0 20.0

Alkalinity,Bicarbonate <20.0 20.0 20.0

Alkalinity,Carbonate <20.0 20.0 20.0

Alkalinity,Hydroxide <20.0 20.0 20.0

Phenolphthalein Alkalinity <20.0 20.0 20.0

L1513259-02 Original Sample (OS) • Duplicate (DUP)

(OS) L1513259-02  07/18/22 12:00 • (DUP) R3816222-3  07/18/22 12:00

 Original Result DUP Result Dilution DUP RPD DUP Qualifier DUP RPD 
Limits

Analyte mg/l mg/l % %

Alkalinity <20.0 <20.0 1 0.000 20

L1514212-02 Original Sample (OS) • Duplicate (DUP)

(OS) L1514212-02  07/18/22 12:00 • (DUP) R3816222-4  07/18/22 12:00

 Original Result DUP Result Dilution DUP RPD DUP Qualifier DUP RPD 
Limits

Analyte mg/l mg/l % %

Alkalinity 250 252 1 0.797 20

Laboratory Control Sample (LCS)

(LCS) R3816222-2  07/18/22 12:00

 Spike Amount LCS Result LCS Rec. Rec. Limits LCS Qualifier

Analyte mg/l mg/l % %

Alkalinity 250 244 97.6 90.0-110

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 17 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 17 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 81 of 268



QUALITY CONTROL SUMMARYWG1892939
W e t  C h e m i s t r y  b y  M e t h o d  9 0 4 0 C L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2 - 0 1

L1513246-09 Original Sample (OS) • Duplicate (DUP)

(OS) L1513246-09  07/18/22 14:40 • (DUP) R3816310-2  07/18/22 14:40

 Original Result DUP Result Dilution DUP RPD DUP Qualifier DUP RPD 
Limits

Analyte su su % %

pH 9.12 9.14 1 0.219 20

Sample Narrative: 

     OS: 9.12 at 19.5C

     DUP: 9.14 at 19.5C

L1513259-02 Original Sample (OS) • Duplicate (DUP)

(OS) L1513259-02  07/18/22 14:40 • (DUP) R3816310-3  07/18/22 14:40

 Original Result DUP Result Dilution DUP RPD DUP Qualifier DUP RPD 
Limits

Analyte su su % %

pH 6.91 6.92 1 0.145 20

Sample Narrative: 

     OS: 6.91 at 18.9C

     DUP: 6.92 at 19C

Laboratory Control Sample (LCS)

(LCS) R3816310-1  07/18/22 14:40

 Spike Amount LCS Result LCS Rec. Rec. Limits LCS Qualifier

Analyte su su % %

pH 6.00 6.02 100 99.0-101

Sample Narrative: 

     LCS: 6.02 at 21.5C

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 18 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 18 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 82 of 268



QUALITY CONTROL SUMMARYWG1897053
W e t  C h e m i s t r y  b y  M e t h o d  9 0 4 0 C L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2 - 0 2 , 0 3 , 0 4 , 0 5

L1514212-03 Original Sample (OS) • Duplicate (DUP)

(OS) L1514212-03  07/19/22 13:33 • (DUP) R3816833-2  07/19/22 13:33

 Original Result DUP Result Dilution DUP RPD DUP Qualifier DUP RPD 
Limits

Analyte su su % %

pH 8.01 7.96 1 0.626 20

Sample Narrative: 

     OS: 8.01 at 20.8C

     DUP: 7.96 at 20.8C

L1515593-02 Original Sample (OS) • Duplicate (DUP)

(OS) L1515593-02  07/19/22 13:33 • (DUP) R3816833-3  07/19/22 13:33

 Original Result DUP Result Dilution DUP RPD DUP Qualifier DUP RPD 
Limits

Analyte su su % %

pH 9.00 8.96 1 0.445 20

Sample Narrative: 

     OS: 9 at 18.6C

     DUP: 8.96 at 18.6C

Laboratory Control Sample (LCS)

(LCS) R3816833-1  07/19/22 13:33

 Spike Amount LCS Result LCS Rec. Rec. Limits LCS Qualifier

Analyte su su % %

pH 6.00 5.98 99.7 99.0-101

Sample Narrative: 

     LCS: 5.98 at 21.6C

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 19 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 19 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 83 of 268



QUALITY CONTROL SUMMARYWG1894914
W e t  C h e m i s t r y  b y  M e t h o d  9 0 5 0 L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2 - 0 1 , 0 2 , 0 3 , 0 4 , 0 5

Method Blank (MB)

(MB) R3814578-1  07/14/22 08:24

 MB Result MB Qualifier MB MDL MB RDL

Analyte umhos/cm umhos/cm umhos/cm

Specific Conductance <1.00 1.00 1.00

Sample Narrative: 

     BLANK: at 25C

L1513115-01 Original Sample (OS) • Duplicate (DUP)

(OS) L1513115-01  07/14/22 08:24 • (DUP) R3814578-3  07/14/22 08:24

 Original Result DUP Result Dilution DUP RPD DUP Qualifier DUP RPD 
Limits

Analyte umhos/cm umhos/cm % %

Specific Conductance 2320 2320 1 0.000 20

Sample Narrative: 

     OS: at 25C

     DUP: at 25C

Laboratory Control Sample (LCS)

(LCS) R3814578-2  07/14/22 08:24

 Spike Amount LCS Result LCS Rec. Rec. Limits LCS Qualifier

Analyte umhos/cm umhos/cm % %

Specific Conductance 200 204 102 80.0-120

Sample Narrative: 

     LCS: at 25C

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 20 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 20 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 84 of 268



QUALITY CONTROL SUMMARYWG1894499
W e t  C h e m i s t r y  b y  M e t h o d  9 0 5 6 A L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2 - 0 1 , 0 2 , 0 3 , 0 4 , 0 5

Method Blank (MB)

(MB) R3814674-1  07/13/22 15:43

 MB Result MB Qualifier MB MDL MB RDL

Analyte mg/l mg/l mg/l

Bromide <0.0763 0.0763 0.400

Chloride <0.0541 0.0541 0.800

Fluoride <0.198 0.198 0.500

Nitrate <0.207 0.207 0.500

Sulfate <0.199 0.199 0.700

Laboratory Control Sample (LCS)

(LCS) R3814674-2  07/13/22 16:02

 Spike Amount LCS Result LCS Rec. Rec. Limits LCS Qualifier

Analyte mg/l mg/l % %

Bromide 5.00 5.22 104 80.0-120

Chloride 5.00 4.94 98.7 80.0-120

Fluoride 5.00 4.70 94.0 80.0-120

Nitrate 5.00 5.09 102 80.0-120

Sulfate 5.00 5.51 110 80.0-120

L1514212-01 Original Sample (OS) • Matrix Spike (MS) • Matrix Spike Duplicate (MSD)

(OS) L1514212-01  07/13/22 20:20 • (MS) R3814674-3  07/13/22 18:21 • (MSD) R3814674-4  07/13/22 18:41

 Spike Amount Original Result MS Result MSD Result MS Rec. MSD Rec. Dilution Rec. Limits MS Qualifier MSD Qualifier RPD RPD Limits

Analyte mg/l mg/l mg/l mg/l % % % % %

Chloride 1000 1640 2440 2430 80.4 79.4 1 80.0-120 J6 0.412 20

L1514212-01 Original Sample (OS) • Matrix Spike (MS) • Matrix Spike Duplicate (MSD)

(OS) L1514212-01  07/13/22 16:22 • (MS) R3814674-5  07/13/22 19:40 • (MSD) R3814674-6  07/13/22 20:00

 Spike Amount Original Result MS Result MSD Result MS Rec. MSD Rec. Dilution Rec. Limits MS Qualifier MSD Qualifier RPD RPD Limits

Analyte mg/l mg/l mg/l mg/l % % % % %

Bromide 5.00 10.9 12.4 12.4 30.1 29.5 1 80.0-120 J6 J6 0.221 20

Fluoride 5.00 <0.500 4.52 4.46 82.6 81.5 1 80.0-120 1.28 20

Nitrate 5.00 <0.500 5.20 5.09 104 102 1 80.0-120 2.32 20

Sulfate 5.00 <0.700 5.22 5.15 104 103 1 80.0-120 1.47 20

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 21 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 21 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 85 of 268



QUALITY CONTROL SUMMARYWG1896123
M e r c u r y  b y  M e t h o d  7 4 7 0 L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2 - 0 1 , 0 2 , 0 3 , 0 4 , 0 5

Method Blank (MB)

(MB) R3816699-1  07/19/22 10:52

 MB Result MB Qualifier MB MDL MB RDL

Analyte mg/l mg/l mg/l

Mercury <0.0000430 0.0000430 0.000200

Laboratory Control Sample (LCS)

(LCS) R3816699-2  07/19/22 10:55

 Spike Amount LCS Result LCS Rec. Rec. Limits LCS Qualifier

Analyte mg/l mg/l % %

Mercury 0.00250 0.00251 100 80.0-120

L1513966-01 Original Sample (OS) • Matrix Spike (MS) • Matrix Spike Duplicate (MSD)

(OS) L1513966-01  07/19/22 10:57 • (MS) R3816699-3  07/19/22 10:59 • (MSD) R3816699-4  07/19/22 11:01

 Spike Amount Original Result MS Result MSD Result MS Rec. MSD Rec. Dilution Rec. Limits MS Qualifier MSD Qualifier RPD RPD Limits

Analyte mg/l mg/l mg/l mg/l % % % % %

Mercury 0.00250 <0.000200 0.00222 0.00223 88.8 89.2 1 80.0-120 0.449 20

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 22 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 22 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 86 of 268



QUALITY CONTROL SUMMARYWG1895977
M e t a l s  ( I C P M S )  b y  M e t h o d  6 0 2 0 L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2 - 0 1 , 0 2 , 0 3 , 0 4 , 0 5

Method Blank (MB)

(MB) R3816507-1  07/16/22 18:34

 MB Result MB Qualifier MB MDL MB RDL

Analyte mg/l mg/l mg/l

Arsenic <0.000140 0.000140 0.000500

Barium <0.000340 0.000340 0.00300

Cadmium <0.000220 0.000220 0.00100

Chromium <0.000470 0.000470 0.00300

Lead <0.0000900 0.0000900 0.000500

Magnesium <0.00860 0.00860 0.0200

Potassium <0.0757 0.0757 0.500

Selenium <0.00152 0.00152 0.00500

Silver <0.0000700 0.0000700 0.000500

Method Blank (MB)

(MB) R3818389-1  07/22/22 11:28

 MB Result MB Qualifier MB MDL MB RDL

Analyte mg/l mg/l mg/l

Calcium <0.0534 0.0534 0.500

Sodium <0.384 0.384 0.500

Laboratory Control Sample (LCS)

(LCS) R3816507-2  07/16/22 18:41

 Spike Amount LCS Result LCS Rec. Rec. Limits LCS Qualifier

Analyte mg/l mg/l % %

Arsenic 0.100 0.0864 86.4 80.0-120

Barium 0.100 0.0920 92.0 80.0-120

Cadmium 0.100 0.101 101 80.0-120

Chromium 0.100 0.0998 99.8 80.0-120

Lead 0.100 0.0945 94.5 80.0-120

Magnesium 1.00 1.01 101 80.0-120

Potassium 1.00 0.966 96.6 80.0-120

Selenium 0.100 0.0920 92.0 80.0-120

Silver 0.0500 0.0506 101 80.0-120

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 23 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 23 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 87 of 268



QUALITY CONTROL SUMMARYWG1895977
M e t a l s  ( I C P M S )  b y  M e t h o d  6 0 2 0 L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2 - 0 1 , 0 2 , 0 3 , 0 4 , 0 5

Laboratory Control Sample (LCS)

(LCS) R3818389-2  07/22/22 11:36

 Spike Amount LCS Result LCS Rec. Rec. Limits LCS Qualifier

Analyte mg/l mg/l % %

Calcium 1.00 0.986 98.6 80.0-120

Sodium 1.00 1.04 104 80.0-120

L1513016-01 Original Sample (OS) • Matrix Spike (MS) • Matrix Spike Duplicate (MSD)

(OS) L1513016-01  07/16/22 18:48 • (MS) R3816507-3  07/16/22 18:55 • (MSD) R3816507-4  07/16/22 19:02

 Spike Amount Original Result MS Result MSD Result MS Rec. MSD Rec. Dilution Rec. Limits MS Qualifier MSD Qualifier RPD RPD Limits

Analyte mg/l mg/l mg/l mg/l % % % % %

Arsenic 0.100 <0.00150 0.0917 0.0909 91.7 90.9 3 75.0-125 0.874 20

Barium 0.100 0.231 0.324 0.314 93.6 83.6 3 75.0-125 3.13 20

Cadmium 0.100 <0.00300 0.102 0.0987 102 98.7 3 75.0-125 3.05 20

Chromium 0.100 <0.00900 0.101 0.100 101 100 3 75.0-125 1.09 20

Lead 0.100 <0.00150 0.0935 0.0914 93.5 91.4 3 75.0-125 2.25 20

Magnesium 1.00 8.91 9.94 9.63 103 72.6 3 75.0-125 V 3.15 20

Potassium 1.00 5.96 6.85 6.69 89.0 72.8 3 75.0-125 V 2.39 20

Selenium 0.100 <0.0150 0.0980 0.0998 98.0 99.8 3 75.0-125 1.87 20

Silver 0.0500 <0.00150 0.0501 0.0499 100 99.8 3 75.0-125 0.428 20

L1513016-01 Original Sample (OS) • Matrix Spike (MS) • Matrix Spike Duplicate (MSD)

(OS) L1513016-01  07/22/22 11:43 • (MS) R3818389-3  07/22/22 11:50 • (MSD) R3818389-4  07/22/22 11:57

 Spike Amount Original Result MS Result MSD Result MS Rec. MSD Rec. Dilution Rec. Limits MS Qualifier MSD Qualifier RPD RPD Limits

Analyte mg/l mg/l mg/l mg/l % % % % %

Calcium 1.00 71.1 71.0 70.2 0.000 0.000 3 75.0-125 V V 1.22 20

Sodium 1.00 74.2 74.6 73.2 36.2 0.000 3 75.0-125 V V 1.92 20

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 24 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 24 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 88 of 268



QUALITY CONTROL SUMMARYWG1897412
T P H  b y  T C E Q  M e t h o d  1 0 0 5 L 1 5 1 4 2 1 2 - 0 1 , 0 2 , 0 3 , 0 4 , 0 5

Method Blank (MB)

(MB) R3817128-1  07/19/22 17:43

 MB Result MB Qualifier MB MDL MB RDL

Analyte mg/l mg/l mg/l

TPH C6 - C12 <0.752 0.752 0.900

TPH C12 - C28 <0.467 0.467 0.900

TPH C28 - C35 <0.467 0.467 0.900

TPH C6 - C35 <0.467 0.467 0.900

    (S) o-Terphenyl 89.4   70.0-130

    (S) 1-chlorooctane 96.6   70.0-130

Laboratory Control Sample (LCS) • Laboratory Control Sample Duplicate (LCSD)

(LCS) R3817128-2  07/19/22 18:28 • (LCSD) R3817128-3  07/19/22 19:10

 Spike Amount LCS Result LCSD Result LCS Rec. LCSD Rec. Rec. Limits LCS Qualifier LCSD Qualifier RPD RPD Limits

Analyte mg/l mg/l mg/l % % % % %

TPH C6 - C12 41.6 37.9 39.0 91.1 93.8 75.0-125 2.86 20

TPH C12 - C28 41.6 42.9 43.6 103 105 75.0-125 1.62 20

TPH C6 - C35 83.1 80.8 82.6 97.2 99.4 75.0-125 2.20 20

    (S) o-Terphenyl    101 103 70.0-130     

    (S) 1-chlorooctane    103 105 70.0-130     

L1514843-01 Original Sample (OS) • Matrix Spike (MS) • Matrix Spike Duplicate (MSD)

(OS) L1514843-01  07/20/22 15:00 • (MS) R3817413-1  07/20/22 15:37 • (MSD) R3817413-2  07/20/22 16:17

 Spike Amount Original Result MS Result MSD Result MS Rec. MSD Rec. Dilution Rec. Limits MS Qualifier MSD Qualifier RPD RPD Limits

Analyte mg/l mg/l mg/l mg/l % % % % %

TPH C6 - C12 39.9 14.9 24.4 96.6 23.8 204 2 75.0-125 J6 J3 J5 119 20

TPH C12 - C28 39.9 294 129 344 0.000 125 2 75.0-125 V J3 90.9 20

TPH C6 - C35 79.7 608 153 441 0.000 0.000 2 75.0-125 V J3 V 97.0 20

    (S) o-Terphenyl     36.1 176  70.0-130 J2 J1   

    (S) 1-chlorooctane     55.8 185  70.0-130 J2 J1   

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 25 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 25 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 89 of 268



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Guide to Reading and Understanding Your Laboratory Report

The information below is designed to better explain the various terms used in your report of analytical results from the Laboratory.  This is not 
intended as a comprehensive explanation, and if you have additional questions please contact your project representative.

Results Disclaimer - Information that may be provided by the customer, and contained within this report, include Permit Limits, Project Name, 
Sample ID, Sample Matrix, Sample Preservation, Field Blanks, Field Spikes, Field Duplicates, On-Site Data, Sampling Collection Dates/Times, and 
Sampling Location. Results relate to the accuracy of this information provided, and as the samples are received.

Abbreviations and Definitions

MDL Method Detection Limit.

RDL Reported Detection Limit.

Rec. Recovery.

RPD Relative Percent Difference.

SDG Sample Delivery Group.

(S)
Surrogate (Surrogate Standard) - Analytes added to every blank, sample, Laboratory Control Sample/Duplicate and 
Matrix Spike/Duplicate; used to evaluate analytical efficiency by measuring recovery. Surrogates are not expected to be 
detected in all environmental media.

Analyte The name of the particular compound or analysis performed. Some Analyses and Methods will have multiple analytes 
reported.

Dilution

If the sample matrix contains an interfering material, the sample preparation volume or weight values differ from the 
standard, or if concentrations of analytes in the sample are higher than the highest limit of concentration that the 
laboratory can accurately report, the sample may be diluted for analysis. If a value different than 1 is used in this field, the 
result reported has already been corrected for this factor.

Limits
These are the target % recovery ranges or % difference value that the laboratory has historically determined as normal 
for the method and analyte being reported. Successful QC Sample analysis will target all analytes recovered or 
duplicated within these ranges.

Original Sample The non-spiked sample in the prep batch used to determine the Relative Percent Difference (RPD) from a quality control 
sample. The Original Sample may not be included within the reported SDG.

Qualifier
This column provides a letter and/or number designation that corresponds to additional information concerning the result
reported. If a Qualifier is present, a definition per Qualifier is provided within the Glossary and Definitions page and 
potentially a discussion of possible implications of the Qualifier in the Case Narrative if applicable.

Result

The actual analytical final result (corrected for any sample specific characteristics) reported for your sample. If there was 
no measurable result returned for a specific analyte, the result in this column may state “ND” (Not Detected) or “BDL” 
(Below Detectable Levels). The information in the results column should always be accompanied by either an MDL 
(Method Detection Limit) or RDL (Reporting Detection Limit) that defines the lowest value that the laboratory could detect 
or report for this analyte.

Uncertainty 
(Radiochemistry) Confidence level of 2 sigma.

Case Narrative (Cn)
A brief discussion about the included sample results, including a discussion of any non-conformances to protocol 
observed either at sample receipt by the laboratory from the field or during the analytical process. If present, there will 
be a section in the Case Narrative to discuss the meaning of any data qualifiers used in the report.

Quality Control 
Summary (Qc)

This section of the report includes the results of the laboratory quality control analyses required by procedure or 
analytical methods to assist in evaluating the validity of the results reported for your samples. These analyses are not 
being performed on your samples typically, but on laboratory generated material.

Sample Chain of 
Custody (Sc)

This is the document created in the field when your samples were initially collected. This is used to verify the time and 
date of collection, the person collecting the samples, and the analyses that the laboratory is requested to perform. This 
chain of custody also documents all persons (excluding commercial shippers) that have had control or possession of the 
samples from the time of collection until delivery to the laboratory for analysis.

Sample Results (Sr)
This section of your report will provide the results of all testing performed on your samples. These results are provided 
by sample ID and are separated by the analyses performed on each sample. The header line of each analysis section for
each sample will provide the name and method number for the analysis reported.

Sample Summary (Ss) This section of the Analytical Report defines the specific analyses performed for each sample ID, including the dates and
times of preparation and/or analysis.

Qualifier Description

J1 Surrogate recovery limits have been exceeded; values are outside upper control limits.

J2 Surrogate recovery limits have been exceeded; values are outside lower control limits.

J3 The associated batch QC was outside the established quality control range for precision.

J5 The sample matrix interfered with the ability to make any accurate determination; spike value is high.

J6 The sample matrix interfered with the ability to make any accurate determination; spike value is low.

T8 Sample(s) received past/too close to holding time expiration.

V The sample concentration is too high to evaluate accurate spike recoveries.

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 26 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 26 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 90 of 268



 

Pace Analytical Services, LLC -Dallas    400 W. Bethany Drive Suite 190 Allen, TX 75013
Arkansas 88-0647  Kansas E10388

Florida E871118  Texas T104704232-22-37

Iowa 408  Oklahoma 8727

Louisiana 30686    

ACCREDITATIONS & LOCATIONS

 

¹ Drinking Water   ² Underground Storage Tanks   ³ Aquatic Toxicity   ⁴ Chemical/Microbiological   ⁵ Mold   ⁶ Wastewater      n/a Accreditation not applicable

* Not all certifications held by the laboratory are applicable to the results reported in the attached report. 

* Accreditation is only applicable to the test methods specified on each scope of accreditation held by Pace Analytical.

1

Cp

2

Tc

3

Ss

4

Cn

5

Sr

6

Qc

7

Gl

8

Al

9

Sc

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/25/22 12:28 27 of 29

ACCOUNT: PROJECT: SDG: DATE/TIME: PAGE:

Victoria County GCD L1514212 07/26/22 16:20 27 of 29

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 91 of 268

https://www.pacenational.com/technical/accreditations


TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 92 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 93 of 268



GROUNDWATER
INFORMATION SYSTEM

Dramatically expand and simplify 
groundwater measurement, analysis 

and reporting 

PROBLEM: WATER UNCERTAINTY SOLUTION: WELLNTEL

• How much water is available and where? 
• Where is the risk? 
• Are we in compliance? 
• How do we minimize impact and 

sustainably manage? 
• How should we engage stakeholders?

• Sensor-agnostic platform brings all water 
data into one place 

• Real-time, continuous, data collection 
minimizes data gaps 

• Local, regional and basin-wide understanding 
and decision-support 

• Intuitive visual and analytical tools provide on-
the-fly insight 

• Actionable alerts

WELLNTEL
CONNECTED WATER INTELLIGENCE

For more information or to schedule a demonstration, email info@wellntel.com  or call (844) 935-5426 
TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 94 of 268

mailto:dmurlakis@wellntel.com


WELLNTEL SENSOR TECHNOLOGY

• Non-invasive, nothing touches water 
• Transform submersible pump wells into real-time 

monitoring points 
• Meets USGS BMP 0.1’ accuracy 
• “Tags” identify pump influence, enable filtering 
• Installs < 1 hour

ANALYTICS DASHBOARD

• Secure and complete information all in one place 
• Real-time and upload ingestion of all types of water “bank 

account” data 
• Integrate publicly available data (NOAA, USGS)  
• Rigorous analytical tools and tailored data exports  
• Streamlined compliance reporting

FOOD & BEVERAGE
• Access all water budget data 

in one platform 
• More monitoring points for 

higher resolution and better 
basin characterization 

• Quantify water conservation 
benchmarks 

• Track progress toward 
sustainability metrics 

AGRICULTURE
• Monitor directly on irrigation 

and supply wells 
• Separate pumping from 

environmental impact 
• Understand seasonal trends 

to inform planning 
• Streamline compliance 

reporting

RURAL WATER UTILITIES
• Measure directly on 

production wells 
• Alert on operating 

changes 
• View water supply 

change and trends 
• Automate permit 

reporting

WELLNTEL GROUNDWATER INFORMATION SYSTEM

rain

groundwatersurface water

gallons

APPLICATIONS

For more information or to schedule a demonstration, email info@wellntel.com  or call (844) 935-5426 
TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 95 of 268

mailto:dmurlakis@wellntel.com


With a non-invasive groundwater-level sensor and a sensor-agnostic cloud-based 
analysis platform, the Wellntel Groundwater Information System dramatically expands 
and streamlines measurement and reporting.

• Designed to transform submersible pumping wells - 
residential, agriculture and industry - into real-time 
monitoring locations 

• Non-invasive acoustic technology ensures nothing 
touches water or disrupts pump operation 

• Typical installations are online in less than 1 hour 

• Installs in existing 1/2” NPT well seal ports 

• Intelligently tracks pumping activity and “tags” 
measurements to allow for filtering  

• Meets USGS BMP of 0.1’ or better accuracy 

• Local or cellular telemetry options available 

• Private dashboard engages well-owner volunteers

SENSOR

ANALYTICS DASHBOARD 

• Secure and complete - all water data in one place 

• Sensor and data type agnostic - any sensor (flow meter, 
pressure transducer, precipitation station, etc) 

• Real-time integration of publicly available data (NOAA, 
USGS, state monitoring networks) 

• Upload and store all history and manual measurements  

• Intuitive visual and analytics tools tailored to minimize 
spreadsheet jockeying 

• Designed for flexibility to meet the needs of water 
professionals as well as operating teams 

• Real-time, continuous, tailored metrics at fingertips  

• Local, regional and enterprise understanding and 
decision-support 

• Customers include Agencies, Consultants, Industrial and 
Agriculture firms

Western/ Southern States 
Well Seal Installation 

(not to scale)

WELLNTEL GROUNDWATER INFORMATION SYSTEM

6”

Sensor 
9”

Vent 
Adaptation 
11”

co
nn

ec
te

d 
w

at
er

 in
te

llig
en

ce

For more information or to schedule a demonstration, 
email info@wellntel.com  or call (844) 935-5426

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 96 of 268

mailto:info@wellntel.com


Wellntel Introduction
Water information system to inform operations and sustainable 
resource management

June 2023

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 97 of 268



Water managers need to answer important 
questions

● How much water is available and where?

● Where are we at risk?

● Are we in compliance?

● How do we know and manage water throughout the supply chain?

● How should we engage stakeholders and show progress?

● How do we minimize impact and manage sustainably?

2TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 98 of 268



Data challenges make answers difficult, increase risk

• Water measurement and monitoring is complex and expensive

• Data is sparse, siloed and difficult to access across a myriad of 

laptops, report binders, databases and websites

• Serial data gathering/ analysis processes slow down action, 

waiting for sufficient evidence to be accumulated

3TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 99 of 268



4

● 16M private domestic, 
business and agriculture 
wells

● Leverage existing well 
and broadband 
infrastructure

● Exploit remote sensing 
and cloud processing 
advances

Nature Sustainability: Deeper well drilling an unsustainable stopgap to 
groundwater depletion, Perrone and Scott, 2019

Wellntel initially focused where data gap was 
greatest - groundwater - with a new idea …

4TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 100 of 268



… to cost-effectively turn production wells into 
real-time monitoring points…

5

● Acoustic monitoring 
technology - nothing 
touches water

● Minimizes operating 
disruptions 

● Plug and play 
installation < 1 hour

● USGS-tested 0.1’ 
accuracy

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 101 of 268



… that are deployed in networks for better basin 
characterization and insight

6TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 102 of 268



Wellntel sensors intelligently track pump activity to show 
impact and filter for trends …

77

all readings - timed, pump start, pump 
stop, pump recovery

timed “static” readings only

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 103 of 268



Local 
telemetry

Cellular 
telemetry

● Encrypted radio communication 
between Wellntel Sensor and Gateway

● Local telemetry and remote cellular 
options for real-time, continuous 
monitoring

● No WIFI or network login needed

● Local telemetry available when well is 
within 1,800’ of broadband router

● Cellular carrier agnostic

… with local or remote cellular telemetry options 

8TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 104 of 268



But groundwater can’t be understood in isolation

9

● Understanding of all aspects of 
water “bank account”

○ Deposits: rain, snow melt and 
recharge

○ Withdrawls: pumping and 
evaporation

○ Balance: water in ground, 
surface storage

○ Health: water quality

Flow and Pumping

Groundwater

Surface Water

Precipitation

Water Quality

9TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 105 of 268



So Wellntel built a sensor and data-type agnostic 
water information system …

10

Wellntel Sensors
Any Water Sensor

Flow Meter, Pressure 
Transducer, Precip, etc

Public Data
USGS, NOAA, State 
Monitoring Networks

Manual 
Measurements and 

History
SCADA

COLLECT directly, via API, Upload, Gateway 

WAREHOUSE
storage for current or future use 

ANALYZE

Wellntel 
Dashboard

API  to other 
systems

REPORT

Scheduled 
Email Reports

Public 
Websites Downloads Alerts

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 106 of 268



… to streamline and simplify the work 
to get to understanding & take action

● Flexibly designed to meet the needs of water 
professionals and operating teams

● Customers include Agencies, Consultants, 
Industrial and Agriculture firms

● Secure and complete, in one place

● Real-time, continuous, tailored metrics at 
fingertips 

● Intuitive visual and analytical tools 

● Local, regional and enterprise understanding and 
decision-support11TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 107 of 268



Monitoring today across dozens of states

++ ++

++

++
++ ++

++
++ ++

++

++

++
++

++++

++

++

++++
++
++

++

++

++++
++

++

++

++

++

++

++

++

++
++

++

++
++
++

++

++
++

++

++

++ ++

++

12TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 108 of 268



Analytics Dashboard 
Sample Screenshots

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 109 of 268



● Private well owner 
dashboard provides 
insight into own water 
supply

● Programmable alerts 
available to protect 
operations

Well owners are engaged and informed around their 
own private dashboard

14TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 110 of 268



● Cloud-based analytics 
provide quick insight so 
water managers can 
decide where/ when to 
analyze deeper

● Embeddable charts 
bring real-time insight to 
customers’ websites

Water managers monitor across the basin and 
specific monitoring points

15TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 111 of 268



Landing page shows regions, all monitoring 
locations - realtime and history

16TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 112 of 268



Option to search and upload publicly available data 

17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 113 of 268



Compare 2 types of data on a chart
- water level in a well v. NOAA precip station 1 year

18TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 114 of 268



Compare 2 types of data on a chart
- water level in a well v. NOAA precip station 5 years

19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 115 of 268



Water level change 
- example showing 2 years of water level change

20TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 116 of 268



Water level change 
- using same wells + 9 years of tapedown history

21TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 117 of 268



Water level change from a shared zero point across 
wells …

22TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 118 of 268



… across user defined “groups

23TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 119 of 268



Health monitoring for Wellntel systems and, 
optionally, non-Wellntel sensors

24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 120 of 268



Embedded website 
chart example for 
Uvalde Underground 
Water Conservation 
District

25

Chart: 
https://connect.wellntel.com/uvalde-
byler-ranch-well/Embedded_Plot_F
rame.html 

Website:
https://www.uvaldecountyuwcd.org/ 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 121 of 268

https://connect.wellntel.com/uvalde-byler-ranch-well/Embedded_Plot_Frame.html
https://connect.wellntel.com/uvalde-byler-ranch-well/Embedded_Plot_Frame.html
https://connect.wellntel.com/uvalde-byler-ranch-well/Embedded_Plot_Frame.html
https://www.uvaldecountyuwcd.org/


www.wellntel.com
TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 122 of 268



Victoria, Texana, Calhoun and Refugio County Monitoring Networks

4 Well Monitoring Network each
Date: 26 June 2023

Valid until: 1 August 2023

Wellntel ST System - Battery powered 20" SP4
- sensor and gateway system, includes typical plumbing adaptations 4 $1,500 $6,000
Cellular Base Station - solar powered (optional)
assumes no local telemetry available - AT&T or Verizon, each per sensor 4 $2,800 $11,200

Analytics Dashboard
includes up to 3 Dashboard seats, upload of any available historic data to keep all relevant in
one place, API to client destination as needed 1 $1,800 $1,800
Cellular Data Services
- includes remote monitoring and data services 4 $180 $720

Installation & Calibration
- includes sensor install and base station mounting 1 $3,750 $3,750

Wellntel warrants that the product will be free from defects in materials and workmanship for a period of one (1) year from the date of
delivery.

: Wellntel takes data privacy and security very seriously. Our systems are designed for end to end security and privacy with device-level
encryption. Network owners control privacy and sharing settings.

: Budget Estimates do not include replacement components (batteries, etc) after the period of warranty

Item Quantity Ea Total
Example District Budget Estimate:

Sensors:

Data Service - Annual

Installation:

Per District Year 1 Budget Estimate $23,470
Year 2 Data Services $2,520

4 District Budget Estimate
$92,380

Year 2 Data Services $10,080

Warranty: 

Privacy

Replacement Components

10% discount on Installation Services if combined

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 123 of 268



 

 

INTERA Incorporated 

9600 Great Hills Trail, Suite 300W 

Austin, Texas 78759 USA 

512.425.2000 

 

California | Colorado | Florida | Hawai’i | Indiana | New Mexico | Texas | Washington | France | Switzerland 

July 13, 2023 
 
 
Mr. Tim Andruss 
Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
2805 N. Navarro Street, Suite 210 
Victoria, TX 77901 

RE: Proposal to Apply Geostatistical Techniques to Interpret Measured 2022 Water Levels  

Dear Mr. Andruss, 

INTERA Incorporated (INTERA) proposes to apply geostatistical techniques to interpret measured 2022 
water level in Calhoun County GCD, Refugio GCD, Texana GCD and Victoria County GCD.  The proposed 
work will expand the analysis of measured water levels performed by Young and others (2021) 
[Application of Geostatistical Techniques to Quantify Changes in Water Levels] and INTERA (2022) 
[memorandum :Application of Geostatistical Techniques to Interpret Measured 2021 Water Levels,  dated 
June 29, 2022] to include measured water levels in 2022.   

The proposed work will accomplish the following:  

• Generate contours hydraulic head using ordinary Kriging of measured 2022 water levels that have 
been detrended using the methods described by Young and others (2021) for the Chicot Aquifer, 
Evangeline Aquifer, and combined Chicot & Evangeline aquifers.  

• Determine change in average water levels over time from 2000 to 2022 and update the tables and 
figures contained in Chapter 5 of Young and others (2021) for the Chicot Aquifer, Evangeline 
Aquifer, and combined Chicot & Evangeline aquifers. 

• Prepare four presentation that presents the results for each of the four GCDs 

• Prepare a memorandum that documents the application of geostatistical techniques to interpret 
measured 2022 water levels and provides the figures and tables discussed above.   The 
memorandum will mimic the format, information, graphs, and tables provided by INTERA (2022) 
for analysis of the 2021 water level data.  

The cost for performing the completing the work is $15,000. The project will be fixed priced. The 
presentations and the memorandum will be completed by December 4, 2023.  The memorandum will be 
similar in its content and figures to the INTERA (2022) memorandum that provided an analysis of the 2021 
water level data.   

I look forward to discussing the proposal with you.  

 

Sincerely,  

 
Steven C Young, PhD, PE, PG 
Principal Geoscientist 
INTERA, Inc   

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 124 of 268



AOS ID: __DISTRICT USE ONLY___ 
 

Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 

www.texanagcd.org 

Award of Sponsorship 
Revision: 20230427 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

AWARD OF SPONSORSHIP 

 

The Texana Groundwater Conservation District awards a sponsorship to: 

 

________________________________________________________________  

 

in the amount of $_________________ for activities described in  

 

Application to Request Sponsorship ARS_______________________________. 

 

 

_______________________________________   ______________ 
Signature of the District Official     Date  

 

_______________________________________ 
Printed Name and Title of District Official 

Dr. Jared Duncum, Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum and Instruction, Palacios ISD

700.00

-20230608-01

6/21/2023

Tim Andruss, General Manager

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 125 of 268



ARS-20230608-01

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 126 of 268



GMA 15 - Bylaws of the GMA-15 Committee - Rev 20230413 | Page 1 of 5 

BY-LAWS OF THE GMA-15 COMMITTEE  

Each district with jurisdiction within Groundwater Management Area 15 adopting these by-laws 
shall adopt a resolution to that effect and forward a copy of the fully-executed resolution to the 
GMA-15 Administrator. 

 

SECTION 1:  INTENT AND PURPOSES 
1.01 It is the intent and purpose of the Member Districts to fulfill the applicable requirements of 

Texas Water Code § 36.108, 36.1083, 36.1084, and 36.1086, including establishing desired 
future conditions (DFCs) for the relevant aquifers within Groundwater Management Area 15. 

1.02 In order to fulfill such requirements, Member Districts recognize the need to adopt by-laws 
as authorized by Texas Water Code §36.057 and Government Code chapter 791 to 
authorize the Representatives of the Member Districts to perform joint planning as the GMA-
15 Committee and the designation of a GMA-15 Administrator. 

1.03 Representatives of the Member Districts shall participate in joint planning activities in a 
manner that best represents the interest of their respective Member Districts. Therefore, 
each Representative of a Member District shall have approval from their respective Board of 
Directors for the following: 

a. Commitment of district funds in accordance with an budget established by the 
GMA-15 Committee, for payment of governmental functions or services provided under 
these by-laws provided that any payments or funds used to perform governmental 
functions or services must come from current revenues available to the Member Districts. 
b. Decisions related to the establishment of the "Desired Future Conditions of the 
Aquifers" within the management area. 

1.04 Each Representative of a Member District shall report to their respective Board of Directors 
at least quarterly on the progress of joint planning and shall include a financial report, if a 
financial report was made available at the previous meeting of the GMA-15 Committee. 

 

SECTION 2:  JOINT PLANNING 
2.01 The GMA-15 Committee shall meet at least annually to review the management plans of 

Member Districts, the accomplishments of the management area, and proposals to adopt 
new or amend an existing Desired Future Condition. In reviewing the management plans, 
the GMA-15 Committee shall consider the issues required by Texas Water Code § 36.108(c). 

2.02 At least every five years after the adoption or amendment of a DFC, the GMA-15 Committee 
shall consider groundwater availability models and other data or information related to the 
management area and shall propose for adoption Desired Future Conditions for the relevant 
aquifers within the management area. 

2.03 As part of the process for developing a Desired Future Condition Proposed for Adoption, the 
GMA-15 Committee shall consider the issues required by Texas Water Code § 36.108(d), 
36.108(d-1) and (d-2) for each Desired Future Condition for Consideration. 

2.04 The designation of a Desired Future Condition for Consideration as a Desired Future 
Condition for Distribution must be adopted by a two-thirds vote of the members of GMA-15 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 127 of 268



GMA 15 - Bylaws of the GMA-15 Committee - Rev 20230413 | Page 2 of 5 

Committee. The GMA-15 Administrator shall distribute each Desired Future Condition for 
Distribution to each Member District which shall begin a 90-day comment period as required 
by Texas Water Code § 36.108(d-2). 

2.05 After the earlier of  1) the date on which each Member District has submitted a district 
summary for a Desired Future Condition for Distribution or 2) the expiration of the 90-day 
public comment period for a Desired Future Condition for Distribution, the GMA-15 
Committee shall hold a meeting to review the summaries, consider any suggested revisions 
to a Desired Future Condition for Distribution submitted by a Member District, and consider 
the designation of a Desired Future Condition for Distribution as a Desired Future Condition 
Proposed for Adoption. 

2.06 A Desired Future Condition Proposed for Adoption shall be adopted by resolution approved 
by two-thirds of members of the GMA-15 Committee. 

2.07 The GMA-15 Committee shall produce an explanatory report for each approved Desired 
Future Condition that includes the items required by Texas Water Code § 36.108(d-3). The 
GMA 15 Administrator shall submit each explanatory report, proof that notice was posted for 
the Joint Planning Meeting described in Subsection 2.06, and the resolution approving the 
Desired Future Condition to the Texas Water Development Board and each Member District 
not later than the 60th day after the date on which the GMA-15 Committee adopted the 
approved Desired Future Condition. 

2.08 The GMA-15 Committee may request that the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
and the Texas Water Development Board make technical staff available to serve in a non-
voting, advisory capacity to assist with the development of Desired Future Conditions. 
Further, the GMA-15 Committee may establish a non-voting, advisory subcommittee as 
authorized by Texas Water Code § 36.1081(b). 

2.09 In the event that a petition under Texas Water Code § 36.1083 is filed regarding an approved 
Desired Future Condition, the Member Districts responding to the challenged Desired Future 
Condition may participate in a joint response through the GMA-15 Administrator. The GMA-
15 Administrator may participate in defending the challenged Desired Future Condition and 
shall take actions required by Texas Water Code § 36.1083. 

 

SECTION 3:  POWERS AND DUTIES 
3.01 The GMA-15 Committee shall have only the power granted by Texas Water Code § 36.108, 

36.1083, 36.1084, and 36.1086 necessary to carry out the purposes of these by-laws. 
3.02 The GMA-15 Committee shall have no duty to take any action, except as specifically 

provided for in these by-laws, as it may be amended by written agreement. 
3.03 By approval of these by-laws, the Member Districts agree to comply with and abide by these 

by-laws. 
3.04 All actions shall be approved by majority vote by the GMA-15 Committee present at a 

meeting, each Member District having one vote. Exceptions to this requirement are for votes 
on approving a financial commitment of the GMA-15 Committee, which shall be approved 
by a two-thirds vote of the GMA-15 Committee present.. 

3.05 The Member Districts have the authority to contract with third parties as provided by Texas 
Water Code § 36.1086 for the purposes authorized in Texas Water Code § 36.1086. 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 128 of 268



GMA 15 - Bylaws of the GMA-15 Committee - Rev 20230413 | Page 3 of 5 

 

SECTION 4:  ADMINISTRATION 
4.01 The GMA-15 Committee shall elect a Chairman, Vice Chairman, and Treasurer at a meeting 

of the Representatives of Member Districts.  The Chairman shall preside at meetings of 
Representatives of Member Districts, appoint special committees and sub-committees, and, 
with input from the Member Districts, schedule meetings of Representatives of Member 
Districts, and set the agenda for meetings. An election may be held for Chairman, Vice 
Chairman, and Treasurer of the GMA-15 Committee at any meeting of the Representatives 
of Member Districts. 

4.02 The GMA-15 Committee shall elect a Representative of Member Districts to the Region K, 
Region L, Region N, and Region P Regional Water Planning Groups at a meeting of 
Representatives of Member Districts. In determining individuals who are eligible to serve in 
these positions, the GMA-15 Committee shall follow the guidelines established by the Texas 
Water Development Board. An election may be held for representatives to regional water 
planning groups at any meeting of the Representatives of Member Districts. 

4.03 The GMA-15 Committee may select an administrator to perform such administrative duties 
as shall be required including providing notice for meetings for the GMA-15 Committee, 
preparing meeting minutes, and maintaining the records of the GMA-15 Committee. The 
GMA-15 Administrator may be an individual, a Member District, or another entity. The 
selection of the GMA-15 Administrator may occur at any meeting of the Representatives of 
Member Districts 

4.04 If the GMA-15 Committee resolves to hire an entity to serve as the GMA-15 Administrator, 
the duties and compensation of such an entity shall be determined by the GMA-15 
Committee. 

4.05 Meetings of the GMA-15 Committee shall be held in accordance with the Texas Open 
Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Government Code. The GMA-15 Administrator shall be 
responsible for providing notice of a meeting. Notice of meetings shall be provided in 
accordance with Texas Water Code § 36.108 (e) - (e-3). Each Member District shall give 
notice of each meeting in accordance with the Texas Water Code § 36.108 (e)- (e-3). 

4.06 The GMA-15 Committee may establish a fiscal year, adopt an annual budget, and establish 
an equitable method for the Member Districts to fund the joint planning activities. 

4.07 The GMA-15 Committee may adopt procedures that more fully describe the administrative 
responsibilities and procedures of the GMA-15 Committee and GMA-15 Administrator.  
These by-laws prevail as the established policy of the GMA-15 Committee in any conflict 
between these by-laws and the administrative procedures. 

 

SECTION 5:  MISCELLANEOUS 
5.01 Except as provided in these by-laws, these by-laws shall not be amended or modified other 

than by resolution approved by a two-thirds vote of the Member Districts. 
5.02 These by-laws are entered into and executed in the State of Texas and all questions 

pertaining to their validity or construction shall be determined in accordance with laws of the 
State of Texas. 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 129 of 268



GMA 15 - Bylaws of the GMA-15 Committee - Rev 20230413 | Page 4 of 5 

5.03 In case any provision of these by-laws is held illegal or invalid for any reason, said illegality 
or invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions of these By-Laws. 

5.04 These by-laws become effective on the date on which at least two-thirds of the districts 
subject to Texas Water Code chapter 36 located wholly or partially within Groundwater 
Management Area 15 have adopted and executed the attached Resolution. 

 

SECTION 7:  DEFINITIONS 

These terms shall have the following meaning when used in these By-Laws and the attached 
Resolution.  The use of the singular covers the plural and the use of the plural covers the singular. 

Desired Future Condition shall have the same meaning as defined in Texas Water Code§ 
36.001(30).  

Desired Future Condition Proposal shall mean a statement regarding future conditions of a 
relevant aquifer proposed by a Representative of a Member District for consideration by the GMA-
15 Committee. 

Desired Future Condition for Consideration shall mean a Desired Future Condition Proposal 
approved by the GMA-15 Committee for impact evaluation including the factors identified in Texas 
Water Code § 36.108(d)(1-9), 

Desired Future Condition for Distribution shall mean a Desired Future Condition for 
Consideration that the GMA-15 Committee approves for distribution to Member Districts. 

Desired Future Condition Proposed for Adoption shall mean a Desired Future Condition for 
Distribution for which district summaries have been submitted to the GMA-15 Administrator and 
the GMA-15 Committee approves to be considered for adoption. 

GMA-15 Administrator shall mean a Member District that Representatives of Member Districts 
elect to complete administrative tasks related to the joint planning efforts of Groundwater 
Management Area 15, including posting meeting notices and transmitting correspondence to the 
Member Districts.  

GMA-15 Committee shall mean the association of all of the Representatives of a Member District 
and the Member Districts that adopt a resolution confirming these by-laws. 

Member District shall mean a district subject to Texas Water Code Chapter 36 with jurisdiction 
within the boundary of Groundwater Management Area 15. 

Representative of a Member District shall mean the presiding officer of the Board of Directors 
of a Member District or his designee, if authorized in writing. 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 130 of 268



GMA 15 - Bylaws of the GMA-15 Committee - Rev 20230413 | Page 5 of 5 

 

RESOLUTION: ________________________ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE BY-LAWS OF THE GMA-15 COMMITTEE  

 

WHEREAS, the GMA-15 Committee has been organized by the Member Districts to fulfill the 

requirements of Texas Water Code § 36.108, 36.1083, 36.1084, and 36.1086 including 

establishing" desired future conditions for the relevant aquifers" within GMA-15; 

WHEREAS, the Member Districts of the GMA-15 Committee desire to fulfill the requirements of 

Texas Water Code § 36.108, 36.1083, 36.1084, and 36.1086 through mutual cooperation; 

WHEREAS, the Member Districts of the GMA-15 Committee recognize that Groundwater 

Management Area 15 includes a geographically and hydrologically diverse area with a variety of 

land uses and a variety of water users; and 

WHEREAS, the Member Districts of the GMA-15 Committee recognize the importance of 

coordinating their activities under these by-laws and sharing the expense of such activities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the attached By-Laws of the GMA-15 Committee are hereby approved on 

this _________ day of ____________________20____, by the 

_______________________________________________________ District. 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

Board President      Secretary 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 131 of 268



GMA 15 - Interlocal Agreement for Cost-Sharing - Rev 20230413a | Page 1 of 4 Pages 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR COST-SHARING BY  
MEMBER DISTRICTS OF THE GMA-15 COMMITTEE 

 

This interlocal agreement is entered into, among, and between the undersigned Groundwater 
Conservation Districts in accordance with Chapter 791, Texas Government Code ("Interlocal 
Cooperation Act"). Each district shall, by resolution, adopt this agreement and forward a copy of 
the fully-executed resolution to the GMA-15 Administrator. 

 

SECTION 1:  INTENT 
1.01 Each member district of the GMA-15 Committee, as defined by the By-Laws of the GMA-15 

Committee, intends to fulfill the applicable requirements of Texas Water Code § 36.108, 
36.1083, 36.1084, and 36.1086, including establishing desired future conditions (DFCs) for 
the relevant aquifers within Groundwater Management Area 15. 

1.02 In order to fully evaluate a desired future condition, the member districts of the GMA-15 
Committee recognize the need to retain the services of a professional consultant specializing 
in groundwater hydrology and groundwater modeling ("Professional Consultant"). 

1.03 Each member district of the GMA-15 Committee is authorized by Chapter 36, Texas Water 
Code, and the Interlocal Cooperation Act to enter into an interlocal agreement whereby each 
district may cooperate with other local government entities to achieve common goals and 
share certain governmental functions and services. 

1.04 The costs and expenses associated with the provision of professional consulting services 
along with other governmental functions covered by the interlocal agreement are more 
efficiently born through cooperative efforts between groundwater conservation districts. 

 

SECTION 2:  PURPOSE OF THIS AGREEMENT AND GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS AND 
SERVICES PROVIDED 

2.01 The purpose of this agreement is to secure funding from member districts of the GMA-15 
Committee to retain the services of a professional consultant as described in Section 2. 

2.02 In order to assist the member districts of the GMA-15 Committee in developing a desired 
future condition through the joint planning processes of the GMA-15 Committee, the member 
districts of the of the GMA-15 Committee shall engage a professional specialized in 
groundwater hydrology and groundwater modeling to assist the Member Districts in 
developing a technical record to support the adoption of one or more desired future 
conditions during the 5-year joint planning cycle that will conclude on or before January 1, 
2027. 

2.03 Professional Consultants shall be selected in accordance with Chapter 2254, subchapter A, 
Texas Government Code (Texas Professional Procurement Act). 

2.04 The tasks to be performed by selected professional consultants include:  
a. Modeling pumping scenarios using the current groundwater availability model 
(GAM) for Groundwater Management Area 15 with variations to the distribution of 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 132 of 268



GMA 15 - Interlocal Agreement for Cost-Sharing - Rev 20230413a | Page 2 of 4 Pages 

pumping, both spatial and temporal, requested by the GMA-15 Committee as defined in 
the By-Laws of the GMA-15 Committee; 
b. Prepare and present an explanatory report for review and approval that documents 
the consideration of the factors required under Texas Water Code § 36.108(d-3).  

2.05 Professional Consultants shall be required to submit a budget and the total of all budgets 
shall not exceed the amounts obligated to be paid in Section 3.   

2.06 The final decision on an agreement to retain a professional consultant shall be approved by 
a majority vote of the GMA-15 Committee present at a meeting at which at least two-thirds 
of the members of the GMA-15 Committee are in attendance. 

 

SECTION 3:  DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF MEMBER DISTRICTS 
3.01 The member districts of the GMA-15 Committee shall be obligated to pay the following 

minimum amounts: 

Bee Groundwater Conservation District  $3,750.00 

Calhoun County Groundwater Conservation District  $7,500.00 

Coastal Bend Groundwater Conservation District  $7,500.00 

Coastal Plains Groundwater Conservation District  $7,500.00 

Colorado County Groundwater Conservation District  $7,500.00 

Corpus Christi ASR Conservation District  $3,750.00 

Evergreen Underground Water Conservation District  $3,750.00 

Fayette County Groundwater Conservation District  $3,750.00 

Goliad County Groundwater Conservation District  $7,500.00 

Pecan Valley Groundwater Conservation District  $7,500.00 

Refugio Groundwater Conservation District  $7,500.00 

Texana Groundwater Conservation District  $7,500.00 

Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District  $7,500.00 

Total $82,500.00 

 
 

3.02 All payments from a member district to the GMA-15 Committee Joint Planning Fund shall be 
made from funds available to the member district. 

3.03 All payments from a member district shall be made by January 9, 2024, by check addressed 
to the Treasurer of the GMA 15 Committee and shall be deposited in a separate bank 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 133 of 268



GMA 15 - Interlocal Agreement for Cost-Sharing - Rev 20230413a | Page 3 of 4 Pages 

account for the GMA-15 Committee Joint Planning Fund.  The deposited funds shall be 
designated for the purposes described in this agreement. Professional consultants may be 
engaged even if one or more of the member districts have not paid the amounts provided in 
paragraph 3.01. The total amount to be paid to all professional consultants shall be limited 
to the actual amount funded by member districts to the GMA-15 Committee Joint Planning 
Fund. 

3.04 A contract with a professional consultant may be executed by the GMA-15 Administrator on 
behalf of the GMA-15 Committee. Checks written on behalf of the GMA-15 Committee to 
pay for professional consultant services must be approved by the Chairman and Treasurer 
of GMA-15 Committee. 

3.05 Upon termination of this agreement and payment of outstanding obligations of the GMA-15 
Committee, any remaining GMA-15 Committee Joint Planning Funds shall be distributed to 
the member districts of the GMA-15 Committee pro rata based on the total contributions by 
member districts of the GMA-15 Committee by the Treasurer of the GMA-15 Committee. 

 

SECTION 4:  MISCELLANEOUS 
4.01 Except as provided in this agreement, this agreement shall not be amended or modified 

other than by a written agreement approved by resolution of and signed by all of the member 
districts of the GMA-15 Committee that approved this agreement originally. 

4.02 This agreement is entered into and executed in the State of Texas and all questions 
pertaining to its validity or construction shall be determined in accordance with laws of the 
State of Texas. 

4.03 In case any provision of this agreement is held illegal or invalid for any reason, said illegality 
or invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions of this agreement. 

4.04 This agreement becomes effective when at least two thirds of the member districts of the 
GMA-15 Committee have adopted and executed the attached resolution and the agreement 
is approved by a two-thirds vote of the member districts of the GMA-15 Committee present 
at a public meeting of the GMA-15 Committee. 

4.05 This agreement shall end December 31, 2026, unless extended in writing or terminated 
sooner as provide herein. 

4.06 This agreement may be terminated prior to December 31, 2026, by agreement of a majority 
of the member districts of the GMA-15 Committee required to make a payment under section 
3.01 subject to payment of any outstanding fees of any professional consultant retained in 
accordance with this agreement. 

 

 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 134 of 268



GMA 15 - Interlocal Agreement for Cost-Sharing - Rev 20230413a | Page 4 of 4 Pages 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR COST-SHARING BY 
MEMBER DISTRICTS OF THE GMA-15 COMMITTEE  

WHEREAS, the engagement and payment of a professional consultant specializing in 

groundwater hydrology and modeling is authorized under the Interlocal Agreement for Cost-

Sharing by Member Districts of the GMA-15 Committee to fulfill the requirements of Texas 

Water Code § 36.108, 36.1083, 36.1084, and 36.1086 including establishing "desired future 

conditions for the relevant aquifers" within Groundwater Management Area 15; 

WHEREAS, the member districts of the GMA-15 Committee desire to fulfill the requirements of 

Texas Water Code § 36.108, 36.1083, 36.1084, and 36.1086 through mutual cooperation; 

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Agreement for Cost-Sharing by Member Districts of the GMA-15 

Committee becomes effective when at least two thirds of the member districts of the GMA-15 

Committee have adopted this resolution authorizing the agreement and the agreement has been 

approved by unanimous vote of the member districts of the GMA-15 Committee present at a 

public meeting of the GMA-15 Committee; 

WHEREAS, no professional consultant shall be retained on behalf of the GMA-15 Committee 

prior to the effective date of Interlocal Agreement for Cost-Sharing by Member Districts of the 

GMA-15 Committee; and 

WHEREAS, the member districts of the GMA-15 Committee recognize the importance of 

coordinating their activities under the Interlocal Agreement for Cost-Sharing by Member Districts 

of the GMA-15 Committee and sharing the expense of such activities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the attached Interlocal Agreement for Cost-Sharing by Member Districts of 

the GMA-15 Committee is hereby approved on this ____ day of 

_____________________________20____, by the 

___________________________________________________ District. 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

Board President      Secretary /Treasurer 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 135 of 268



DRAFT

VCGCD - RFP for Technical Services for GMA 15 | Page 1 of 9 

Request for Proposals 

Technical Services related to Development and 
Adoption of Desired Future Conditions for Aquifers 
within Groundwater Management Area 15 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 136 of 268



DRAFT

VCGCD - RFP for Technical Services for GMA 15 | Page 2 of 9 

Purpose of this Request for Proposals 

The Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District (District) is soliciting detailed proposals 
from qualified parties (respondents) regarding their recommended approach to and qualifications 
for supporting the GMA-15 Committee (Committee) in its efforts to conduct all necessary and 
appropriate activities to develop and adopt desired future conditions (DFCs) for the relevant 
aquifers within Groundwater Management Area 15 (GMA 15) during the 4th Joint Planning Cycle. 

The Committee will use the responsive proposals to (1) develop required budgets, (2) solicit 
funding from member districts, (3) develop a project plan for the completion of a finalized scope 
of work, and (4) identify preferred respondents. 

 

GMA-15 Committee  

The Committee is comprised of districts subject to the Texas Water Code Chapter 36 located 
completely or partially with the geographic boundaries of GMA 15 as defined by the Texas Water 
Development Board that have adopted, by October 12, 2023, the By-Laws of the GMA-15 
Committee and the Interlocal Agreement for Cost-Sharing by Member Districts of the GMA-15 
Committee. The following entities are eligible for inclusion in the Committee: 

1. Bee Groundwater Conservation District,  
2. Calhoun County Groundwater Conservation District,  
3. Coastal Bend Groundwater Conservation District,  
4. Coastal Plains Groundwater Conservation District,  
5. Colorado County Groundwater Conservation District,  
6. Corpus Christi Aquifer Storage and Recovery Conservation District,  
7. Evergreen Underground Water Conservation District,  
8. Fayette County Groundwater Conservation District,  
9. Goliad County Groundwater Conservation District,  
10. Pecan Valley Groundwater Conservation District,  
11. Refugio Groundwater Conservation District,  
12. Texana Groundwater Conservation District, and  
13. Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District.  

 

Scope of Work 

The following schedule of tasks identifies the work to be completed by the technical consultant of 
the Committee: 

Task 1. Attend meetings of Groundwater Management Area 15 on a quarterly basis. 

a. Develop and present written reports to the Committee describing the status of work tasks 
and identify any obstacles or issues adversely affecting the completion of tasks according 
to the work schedule approved by the Committee.  

b. Provide technical support and guidance to the Committee regarding parameters to be 
specified by the Committee to establish predictive runs of the approved groundwater 
availability model for GMA 15. 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 137 of 268



DRAFT

VCGCD - RFP for Technical Services for GMA 15 | Page 3 of 9 

c. Provide technical support and guidance to the Committee regarding approaches to 
evaluate predictive runs of the approved groundwater availability model for GMA 15. 

d. Compile and document the specifications of the Committee, including spatial and temporal 
distribution of pumping and related modeling assumptions, to be used to complete 
predictive runs of the approved groundwater availability model for GMA 15.  

e. Develop and present written reports to the Committee describing the results of the 
predictive runs of the approved groundwater availability model for GMA 15. 

 

Task 2. Model groundwater availability associated with proposed DFCs  

a. Obtain the appropriate files and information from the Texas Water Development Board to 
model groundwater availability within Groundwater Management Area 15 that would result 
from the adoption and implementation of proposed DFCs developed by the GMA-15 Joint 
Planning Committee.  

b. Input all necessary parameters to model groundwater availability of proposed DFCs.  

c. After soliciting input from the Committee on a draft report, present a written report 
regarding groundwater availability related to proposed DFCs at a Committee meeting.  

 

Task 3. Document aquifer uses and conditions within Groundwater Management Area 15 
(36.108(d)(1))  

a. Gather necessary information from member districts and other sources to describe aquifer 
uses and conditions.  

b. Identify aquifer conditions or uses that substantially differ by geographic area.  

c. After soliciting input from the Committee on a draft report, present a written report 
regarding aquifer use and conditions at a Committee meeting.  

 

Task 4. Document water supply needs and water management strategies in the state water plan 
(36.108(d)(2))  

a. Gather necessary information associated with Groundwater Management Area 15 to 
describe water supply needs and water management strategies in the state water plan.  

b. Identify the water supply needs and water management strategies directly related to 
groundwater resources in Groundwater Management Area 15.  

c. After soliciting input from the Committee on a draft report, present a written report 
regarding water supply needs and water management strategies at a Committee meeting.  

 

Task 5. Document hydrological conditions within Groundwater Management Area 15 
(36.108(d)(3))  

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 138 of 268



DRAFT

VCGCD - RFP for Technical Services for GMA 15 | Page 4 of 9 

a. Gather necessary information to describe hydrological conditions within Groundwater 
Management Area 15 including total estimated recoverable storage as provided by the 
executive administrator, the average annual recharge, inflows, and discharge.  

b. Identify hydrological conditions that differ substantially by geographic area.  

c. Determine and describe hydrological conditions for each county, or portions of counties, 
within Groundwater Management Area 15.  

d. After soliciting input from the Committee on a draft report, present a written report 
regarding the hydrological conditions within Groundwater Management Area 15 at a 
Committee meeting.  

 

Task 6. Document environmental impacts of proposed DFCs (36.108(d)(4))  

a. Gather necessary information to describe environmental impacts including impacts on 
spring flow and interactions between groundwater and surface water that would be caused 
by the adoption and implementation of proposed DFCs.  

b. Identify the environmental impacts within Groundwater Management Area 15 caused by 
the adoption and implementation of proposed DFCs.  

c. After soliciting input from the Committee on a draft report, present a written report 
regarding the environmental impacts within Groundwater Management Area 15 at a 
Committee meeting.  

 

Task 7. Document impacts on subsidence of proposed DFCs (36.108(d)(5))  

a. Gather necessary information to describe impacts on subsidence that would be caused 
by the adoption and implementation of proposed DFCs.  

b. Identify the impacts on subsidence within Groundwater Management Area 15 caused by 
the adoption and implementation of proposed DFCs.  

c. After soliciting input from the Committee on a draft report, present a written report 
regarding impacts on subsidence within Groundwater Management Area 15 at a 
Committee meeting.  

 

Task 8. Document socioeconomic impacts reasonably expected to occur with the adoption and 
implementation of proposed DFCs (36.108(d)(6))  

a. Gather necessary information to describe socioeconomic impacts reasonably expected to 
occur by the adoption and implementation of proposed DFCs.  

b. Identify the socioeconomic impacts reasonably expected to occur within Groundwater 
Management Area 15 by the adoption and implementation of proposed DFCs.  

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 139 of 268



DRAFT

VCGCD - RFP for Technical Services for GMA 15 | Page 5 of 9 

c. After soliciting input from the Committee on a draft report, present a written report 
regarding socioeconomic impacts reasonably expected to occur with the adoption and 
implementation of proposed DFCs within Groundwater Management Area 15 at a 
Committee meeting.  

 

Task 9. Document impacts on the interests and rights in private property by the adoption and 
implementation of proposed DFCs (36.108(d)(7))  

a. Gather necessary information to describe impacts on the interests and rights in private 
property, including ownership and the rights of management area landowners and their 
lessees and assigns in groundwater as recognized under Section 36.102, by the adoption 
and implementation of proposed DFCs.  

b. Identify the impacts on the interests and rights in private property by the adoption and 
implementation of proposed DFCs.  

c. After soliciting input from the Committee on a draft report, present a written report 
regarding impacts on the interests and rights in private property by the adoption and 
implementation of proposed DFCs within Groundwater Management Area 15 at a 
Committee meeting.  

 

Task 10. Document the feasibility of achieving proposed DFCs (36.108(d)(8))  

a. Gather necessary information to describe the feasibility of achieving proposed DFCs.  

b. Identify the feasibility of achieving proposed DFCs.  

c. After soliciting input from the Committee on a draft report, present a written report 
regarding the feasibility of achieving proposed DFCs within Groundwater Management 
Area 15 at a Committee meeting.  

 

Task 11. Document other information relevant to proposed DFCs (36.108(d)(9))  

a. Gather other necessary information relevant to proposed DFCs.  

b. After soliciting input from the Committee on a draft report, present a written report 
regarding other information relevant to proposed DFCs within Groundwater Management 
Area 15 at a Committee meeting.  

 

Task 12. Document relevant comments and proposed revisions received by member districts 
during the public comment period and public hearings (36.108(d-2))  

a. Gather district summary reports from each member district in the Committee.  

b. Organize and develop a report of relevant comments, proposed revisions, and the basis 
for the proposed revisions contained within the member district summary reports.  

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 140 of 268



DRAFT

VCGCD - RFP for Technical Services for GMA 15 | Page 6 of 9 

c. After soliciting input from the Committee on a draft report, present a written report 
regarding all relevant comments Groundwater Management Area 15 at a Committee 
meeting.  

 

Task 13. Development of the DFC explanatory report (36.108(d-3))  

a. Gather information necessary to draft an explanatory report for the proposed DFCs that 
adequately describes and documents:  

i. each proposed DFC,  

ii. the policy and technical justifications for each proposed DFC,  

iii. the consideration of factors listed in 36.108(d) by the Committee,  

iv. the discussion of how the adopted DFC impact the factors listed in 36.108(d),  

v. other DFCs considered and the reason those DFCs were not adopted, and 

vi. the reasons why recommendations made by advisory committees and relevant 
public comments received by member districts were or were not incorporated in 
the proposed DFCs.  

b. After soliciting input from the Committee on a draft report, present a written DFC 
explanatory report to Groundwater Management Area 15 at a Committee meeting.  

 

Task 14. Technical support to Committee after the adoption of DFC 

a. Provide technical assistance and support to the Committee in the event the adopted DFC 
is petitioned.  

b. Attend meetings and hearings associated with the preparation for and response to 
petitions of the adopted DFC.  

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 141 of 268



DRAFT

VCGCD - RFP for Technical Services for GMA 15 | Page 7 of 9 

Required Information for Proposal to be Considered Responsive 

Respondents shall provide two, unbound, hard copies of their proposal and one digital copy of 
their proposal to the District before the submittal deadline.   

Respondents shall include within its proposal a detailed description of the approaches, methods, 
and activities the respondent, as the technical consultant to the Committee, would employ to 
complete the scope of work. Each task of the scope of work shall be addressed by the respondent 
and shall include an estimation of the cost, duration, timing, deliverables, and responsibilities and 
requirements of other parties.  

Respondents shall include within its proposal the names and qualifications of individuals proposed 
to provide technical services to the Committee including appropriate state registrations or 
licenses.  

Respondents shall include within its proposal a list of relevant projects and clients including 
contact information for those clients that may be contacted for reference and verification of 
background.  

Respondents shall include within its proposal a listing of customers to whom the respondent is 
currently or has previously supplied the same or similar services identified within this RFP.  

Respondents shall include within its proposal a portfolio of past work related and relevant to the 
scope of work described within this RFP.  

Respondents shall include within its proposal a written description of the opportunities and 
constraints involved with the delivery of the services identified within this RFP. In particular, the 
Committee is interested in the Respondent’s views and professional judgment regarding the 
scope of work described and any need to expand or reduce the scope of work to successfully and 
efficiently accomplish the requirements associated with adopted in DFCs as established by 
Chapter 36 of the Texas Water Code.  

To be considered a responsive submittal, the District must receive the complete proposal in the 
number and form requested by the submittal deadline.  

 

Selection of Preferred Respondents and Alternate Preferred Respondents 

The District shall submit all responsive proposals to the Committee for review and consideration 
at a meeting of GMA 15.   

The Committee, or an approved subcommittee of the Committee, shall review the responsive 
proposal for the purpose of identifying preferred respondents that offer, in total, the highest 
combination of expertise, skills, qualifications, and experience related to successfully providing 
the services identified within this RFP.  

The Committee, or an approved subcommittee of the Committee, may interview the individuals 
or firms that submitted responsive proposals for the purpose of identifying preferred respondents.  

The Committee reserves the right to identify preferred respondents for each of the tasks identified 
under the Scope of Work.  

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 142 of 268



DRAFT

VCGCD - RFP for Technical Services for GMA 15 | Page 8 of 9 

The Committee reserves the right to identify alternate preferred respondents for each of the tasks 
identified under the Scope of Work.  

The Committee shall evaluate the responsive proposals on various criteria including but not 
limited to the following:  

a. the quality and value of services proposed by the respondent for each task described in 
the scope of work,  

b. the quality of past projects, proposal, and presentation materials provided by the 
respondent, 

c. the ability, skill, and capacity of the respondent to complete the proposed tasks within 
required timeline for adopting DFCs,  

d. the experience and success of the respondent with similar or related projects,  

e. the past performance and prior dealings of the respondent with the member districts of the 
Committee, 

f. the feedback from references of the respondent, and  

g. the character, integrity, reputation, judgment, experience, location, and efficiency of the 
respondent.  

 

Process and Timeline  

The timeline presented below is based on future events and is subject to change.  

Posting of RFP:  July 17, 2023. 
Submittal Deadline:  September 15, 2023, at 3:00 PM. 
Submittal Evaluation:  September 18, 2023, to October 12, 2023. 
Identification of Preferred Respondents:  October 12, 2023. 

Respondents should read and follow the instructions and requirements provided below. Failure 
to follow the instructions or satisfy the requirements may result in a rejection of a submittal as not 
responsive. Respondent bears the risk of delays in delivery. 

Respondents shall mark and deliver submittals, by mail or hand delivery, no later than September 
15, 2023, at 3:00 PM to Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District, 2805 N. Navarro St. 
Ste. 210, Victoria, Texas 77901.  Late submittals will not be accepted.  

Respondents shall not provide a submittal as an agent for another person or company unless the 
respondent specifies in the submittal that they are submitting as an agent.  

Respondents are limited to those persons or firms qualified and engaged in a full-time business 
and can assume liabilities for any performance or warranty service required.  

Respondents must disclose any financial interest or professional relationship with any member 
districts of GMA 15.  

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 143 of 268



DRAFT

VCGCD - RFP for Technical Services for GMA 15 | Page 9 of 9 

Any questions regarding this RFP shall be directed, by mail, to the Tim Andruss, GMA 15 
Administrator c/o Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District, 2805 N. Navarro St., Ste 
210, Victoria, Texas 77901 or, by electronic mail, at admin@vcgcd.org.  

The GMA 15 Administrator shall post any clarifications or amendments to this RFP deemed 
appropriate by the GMA 15 Administrator or the District at the following web address: 
https://www.vcgcd.org/groundwater-management-area-15.  

The GMA 15 Administrator shall post any clarifications or amendments to this RFP after August 
31, 2023. 

 

Award  

The Committee may select one or more preferred respondents based on the evaluation of criteria 
contained in this RFP.   

The Committee shall request that the District negotiate the terms of an agreement with one or 
more preferred respondents for the purpose of obtaining the technical services specified within 
this RFP for the Committee. 

The District shall, only after receiving of the funds from member districts of the Committee 
committed to the joint planning effort of GMA 15 with the approval and adoption of the Interlocal 
Agreement for Cost-Sharing by Member Districts of the GMA-15 Committee, enter negotiations 
with preferred respondents to establish mutually agreeable terms for the provision of the services 
requested through this RFP and proposed in the proposal of the preferred respondents.  

The District shall, only after failing to negotiate mutually agreeable terms and conditions with the 
preferred respondents, enter negotiations with alternate preferred respondents to establish 
mutually agreeable terms for the provision of the services requested through this RFP and 
proposed in the proposal of the alternate preferred respondents.  

The Board of Directors of the District shall only consider and adopt agreements with preferred 
respondents that contain terms and provisions that are mutually agreed upon by the staff and 
legal counsel of the District and the respondent. 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 144 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 1 of 23 

 
The meeting of the Texana Groundwater Conservation District Board of Directors 
convened at 411 N. Wells, Edna, Texas 77957 on Thursday, April 20, 2023, at 8:30 AM. 
 
The following representatives of Texana Groundwater Conservation District attended the 
meeting: 

Precinct 1: Kenneth Koop Absent 
Precinct 2: Michael Skalicky Present 
Precinct 3: Clifford Born Present 
Precinct 4: Robert Gendke Jr.  Absent 
At Large: Jim Revel Present 
At Large: Johnny Dugger Absent 
At Large: Fredrick Woodland  Present 
General Manager: Tim Andruss Present 
Legal Counsel: Jim Allison of Allison, Bass & Magee, LLP Present 

 
Agenda Item 1:  Call the meeting to order and welcome guests. 
 

Meeting Discussion:  Mr. Skalicky called the meeting to order at approximately 
8:30 AM.  
 
Board Action:  None. 

 
Agenda Item 2:  Receive public comments. 
 

Meeting Discussion:  Mr. Skalicky offered to accept public comment from 
attendees. 
 
No comments were made at this time. 
 
Board Action: None. 
 

Agenda Item 3:  Consideration of and possible action on matters related to 
groundwater management including the efforts and activities of the District 
regarding permitting, complaints, investigations, violations, and enforcement 
cases associated with permitting. 
 

3.0 – Report regarding Groundwater Management 
 
Meeting Discussion:  Mr. Andruss explained as of April 18, 2023, staff had 
received 85 well registration applications (ARWs) and 13 Notices of Intent to Drill 
a Well (NIDWs) since October 1, 2022. 
 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 145 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 2 of 23 

As of April 18, 2023, staff had received 3 production permit renewal requests 
(ARPPs) since October 1, 2022. 
  
As of April 18, 2023, staff had initiated 86 permitting request cases (PRCs) since 
October 1, 2022, and 5 permitting request cases remain pending. 
 
As of April 18, 2023, staff have processed 199 groundwater production reports for 
calendar year 2022 reporting 25,854 acre-feet of groundwater production.  (TWDB 
estimated the volume of groundwater produced for rural domestic, livestock, 
mining, and rig supply exempt uses in Jackson County in Year 2020 was 1,581 
acre-feet. 
 
As of April 18, 2023, the volume of groundwater production authorized under 148 
active or approved production permits totals 167,437 acre-feet per year. 
 
As of April 18, 2023, staff had 2 open investigations related to groundwater 
management (i.e., permitting). 
 
As of April 18, 2023, staff had 2 open enforcement cases related to groundwater 
management (i.e., permitting). 
 
Board Action: None. 
 
3.0.1 – Review of Permitting Request Cases 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained as of April 18, 2023, the District has 
initiated 81 permitting request cases (PRCs) since January 1, 2023. 
 
As of April 18, 2023, the District has 10 permitting request cases pending. 
 
Board Action: None. 
 
3.1 – Permit Hearing for PRC-20220928-01 – Ranches at Mustang Creek LLC 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained Mr. Darryl R. Hammond for The 
Ranches at Mustang Creek, LLC seeks, under permitting request case PRC-
20220928-01, a historic use production permit authorizing production of 
groundwater for irrigation of crops and lake maintenance at rates not to exceed 
2,500 gallons per minute or 945 acre-feet per year from grandfathered well GW-
00569. The subject well is be located on a 322.65-acre tract of land near the 
intersection of U.S. Highway 59 North and County Road 202 in Jackson County, 
Texas.   
 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 146 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 3 of 23 

The applications and supplemental information associated with this permitting 
request case are considered administratively complete and contain sufficient 
information to evaluate the request relative to the Rules of the District.  Provided 
the resulting permit is properly conditioned, the operation of the existing well would 
satisfy the requirements as established within the Rules of the District without a 
waiver or variance. 
 
The application states that the "[w]ell has been used for at least 28 years."  The 
application indicates groundwater produced from well GW-00569 was used for 
irrigation of corps and maintaining water level in a lake. The volume of historic use 
from well GW-00569 is estimated to be 945 acre-feet per year. The volume of 
historic use for grass irrigation is estimated to be 933 acre-feet per year.  The 
volume of historic use for maintaining lake levels is estimated to be 12 acre-feet 
per year. The application includes affidavits from Mr. Darryl R. Hammond and Mr. 
Karl Reckaway. The District confirmed the existence of the pond on aerial imagery 
dated 1/23/1996 and 4/11/2007 from Google Earth. 
 
On October 5, 2022, the public notice related to the consideration of the permit 
case was completed. 
    
As of October 18, 2022, the District had not received notice of intent to contest the 
permitting request.   
    
On February 20, 2023, the District received an affidavit from affiant Karl Reckaway 
regarding historic use of groundwater for irrigation and pond maintenance 
purposes on the J-Bar Ranch.  The affidavit appears to: 

1. revise the annual period of time the well was historically operated for 
irrigation uses from "to October" to "through October", 

2. specify that the well was used to "fill the pond that tis located on the 
Property.", and 

3. specify that the pond was "used for various purposes on the property." 
 

On March 3, 2023, the District completed the process of publishing the public 
notice for the hearing scheduled at this meeting. 
 
On April 13, 2023, the district requested confirmation of the boundaries of the 
contiguous tracts of groundwater ownership and landownership. 
    
On April 13, 2023, Mr. Bridges of Urban Engineering provided to documents 
representing the boundary surveys of the tracts that comprise The Ranches at 
Mustang Creek Subdivision. 
 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 147 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 4 of 23 

On March 18, 2023, staff reviewed the submitted information and revised the 
associated boundary for PRC-20220928-01 and the boundaries of the boundaries 
of the contiguous tracts of groundwater ownership and landownership. 
 
On March 18, 2023, staff compared the list of parcels within the boundaries 
associated with the PRC to the information available on the JCAD website.  All of 
the parcels are shown to be owned by The Ranches at Mustang Creek. 
 
Board Action: The public hearing was opened at approximately 9:43 AM. Mr. 
Revel moved to leave the hearing open. Mr. Born seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
3.2 – Investigation INV-20221107.1343 regarding Failure to Satisfy Permit 
Condition. 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on November 18, 2022, the Board 
passed a motion that included conditions to settle permitting violation requiring 
suspension of fresh groundwater production unless temperatures fell below 42 
degrees Fahrenheit for 3 or more days and required permitting request intended 
to address the recurring exceedances of the performance conditions established 
by waiver WV-20191219-01 by April 2023.   
 
On March 21, 2023, Mr. Kubecka submitted an application to the district seeking 
to amend permit AP-201203-14 on behalf of Bowers and Saha Aquaculture LLC.  
The application has been assigned the following identification number: AAPC-
20230321-01. The application is being processed under permitting request case 
PRC-20230321-01. 
 
With the submittal of the application on March 21, 2023, the district considers the 
violation settled and resolved. 
 
Board Action: None. 
 
3.3 – Permit Hearing for PRC-20230321-01 – Bowers and Saha LLC 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on March 21, 2023, Mr. Kubecka 
submitted an application to the district seeking to amend permit AP-201203-14 on 
behalf of Bowers and Saha Aquaculture LLC.  The application has been assigned 
the following identification number: AAPC-20230321-01. The application is being 
processed under permitting request case PRC-20230321-01 
 
Although the application is administratively complete (i.e., contains adequate 
information to evaluate the request relative to the rules of the district), staff 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 148 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 5 of 23 

determined that the request is logically inconsistent and therefore contested the 
request.  The request, as specified in application AAPC-20230321-01, seeks to 
alter permit AP-20121203-14 by eliminating "weekly groundwater testing 
requirements" and “curtailment requirements". However, the permit does not 
contain 1) "weekly groundwater testing requirements", or 2) "curtailment 
requirements". 
 
On March 24, 2023, staff notified Mr. Kubecka of the identified issues with the 
application and the District's intent to contest the application as submitted.  The 
notice of intent to contest the application was sent to Bowers and Saha 
Aquaculture LLC by certified mail.   
 
On March 29, 2023, Mr. Kubecka submitted a revised application. 
 
On March 30, 2023, the general manager reviewed the application submitted on 
March 29, 2023, and issued a notice of intent to contest the application. 
 
Mr. Kubecka gave a presentation and answered questions. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Revel moved to: 

1. designate the permitting request case contested; 
2. authorize the general manager to engage and pay for services rendered by 

a qualified technical consultant for the review of application and supporting 
documentation for the purposes of expressing an opinion regarding the 
validity of the technical statements within the application and degree to 
which the "DiSorbo Report" and monitoring data supports technical claims 
by Bower and Saha; and 

3. schedule a meeting for the purpose of receiving a report from the technical 
consultant and continue the contested case proceedings. 

4. grant Bowers and Saha LLC forbearance authorizing a) pumping of 30% of 
their permitted groundwater volume in the fresh zone, and their full 
permitted volume in the brackish zone so long as water levels in monitoring 
wells do not decline more than 20 feet below the initial condition of the of 
the monitoring well, b) authorization to produce groundwater from the fresh 
zone while air temperature falls below 40 degrees for two or more 
consecutive days, c) elimination of weekly monitoring requirements by the 
permitted entity, until the review of the amendment request by the District is 
completed, and presented to the board, or otherwise withdrawn by the 
board. 

Mr. Skalicky seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
3.4 – Groundwater Production Reporting for CY2022 
 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 149 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 6 of 23 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on December 28, 2022, staff 
produced a set of courtesy notices for those wells for which the required reporting 
for CY2022. 
 
On February 21, 2023, staff started the internal QC work on reported groundwater 
production for CY2022. 
    
On March 6, 2023, staff reviewed the groundwater production reporting for CY2022 
and produced a set of courtesy notices for those wells for which the required 
reporting for CY2022 had not been received.   
 
On March 6, 2023, the general manager initiated the investigation regarding 
potential violations of the rules of the district related to groundwater production 
reporting. 
 
As of April 18, 2023, staff have processed 199 groundwater production reports for 
calendar year 2022 reporting 25,854 acre-feet of groundwater production. 
 
Board Action: None. 
 
3.5 – INV-20230306.1132 – Failure to Report Groundwater Production 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained as of April 18, 2023, the District has 
identified 12 wells under investigation INV-20230306.1132- Failure to Satisfy 
Rules of the District - Production Reporting for CY2022 - Active that have 
potentially violated RULE 2.6: REPORTING REQUIREMENT RELATED TO NON-
EXEMPTUSE WELLS by failing to report the volume of groundwater produced 
from the non-exempt-use well for the previous calendar year (January 1 to 
December 31) during January of the current calendar year. 
 
On March 6, 2023, the general manager initiated the investigation. 
    
On April 18, 2023, the general manager developed a list of wells and ownership 
information related to wells that appear to currently have not satisfied the 
requirement to report groundwater production for CY2022. 
 
The district has classified the potential violators based on landownership into the 
following groups based the provisions of RULE 11.10: PENALTIES of the Rules of 
the District: 
 

Group 1: Persons with one violation and no previous violations: 
1. SAENZ CANDIDO (Candido Saenz); 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 150 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 7 of 23 

2. THE RANCHES AT MUSTANG CREEK, LLC (The Ranches at 
Mustang Creek, LLC); 

3. EPS VENTURES LLC (Mirage Industrial Group, LLC); 
4. SALINAS, HECTOR, Sr. (Hector Salinas); 
5. ROGERS, MAURITZ S & WILSON B & JOHN S (Mauritz S. Rogers); 
6. ROGERS, ELIZABETH (Elizabeth C. Rogers); 
7. ENGELMOHR, CODY WADE & MELINDA / ENGELMOHR, HARRY 

ALTON (Alice Combs) 
 

Group: 2: Persons with previous violation of the related rule in the previous 
5-year period: 

1. COMBS ALICE M (Alice Combs) 
1. ECV-20210712-11 - Level 1 - Failure to Report Groundwater 

Production for CY2020 - Resolved 
2. ECV-20210712-13 - Level 1 - Failure to Report Groundwater 

Production for CY2020 - Resolved 
3. ECV-20210712-14 - Level 1 - Failure to Report Groundwater 

Production for CY2020 - Resolved 
4. ECV-20210712-15 - Level 1 - Failure to Report Groundwater 

Production for CY2020 - Resolved 
5. ECV-20210712-17 - Level 1 - Failure to Report Groundwater 

Production for CY2020 – Resolved 
 

If the boards find that violations have occurred in the instances identified in file 
TGCD - List of Wells and Ownership Data - Potential Failure to Report 
Groundwater Production - 20230418.pdf and instruct staff to proceed with 
enforcement efforts, staff will: 

a) mail 1st notice of violation and any approved settlement offer to the 
landowner associated with the appraisal district tax parcel by CMRRR and 
to the registered well owner by regular mail by May 1, 2023; 

b) mail the 2nd notice of violation and any approved settlement offer to the 
landowner associated with the appraisal district tax parcel by CMRRR and 
to the registered well owner by regular mail by June 1, 2023,  

c) mail the notice of need to file suit and any approved settlement offer to the 
landowner associated with the appraisal district tax parcel by CMRRR and 
to the registered well owner by regular mail by June 30, 2023,  

d) publish an enforcement hearing notice for any unresolved violations for the 
July 20, 2023, board meeting by July 6, 2023, and  

e) present any unresolved violations to the board at the July 20, 2023, meeting 
with a recommendation that board: 1) confirm the findings of violation and 
penalties and 2) referred to the violations to legal counsel for filing suit 
before the meeting scheduled for October 19, 2023. 

 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 151 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 8 of 23 

Board Action: For Persons with one violation and no previous violations Mr. 
Revel moved to:  
 
1. find that SAENZ CANDIDO (Candido Saenz) violated RULE 2.6: REPORTING 
REQUIREMENT RELATED TO NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the Rules of the 
District related to well GW-00547 unless evidence to the contrary or evidence of 
relevant extenuating circumstances is submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case regarding the 
violation;  
3. set a $100.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 9.6: Rule Enforcement of the 
Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if SAENZ CANDIDO (Candido Saenz) consents to 
the following conditions: 

  1. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2023;  
  2. pays a settlement fee of $0.00 by June 30, 2023; and  

3. submits an administratively complete groundwater production report for 
calendar year 2022 by June 30, 2023. 

 
1. find that THE RANCHES AT MUSTANG CREEK, LLC (The Ranches at 
Mustang Creek, LLC) violated RULE 2.6: REPORTING REQUIREMENT 
RELATED TO NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the Rules of the District related to 
well GW-00569 unless evidence to the contrary or evidence of relevant 
extenuating circumstances is submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case regarding the 
violation;  
3. set a $100.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 9.6: Rule Enforcement of the 
Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if THE RANCHES AT MUSTANG CREEK, LLC (The 
Ranches at Mustang Creek, LLC) consents to the following conditions: 

  1. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2023;  
  2. pays a settlement fee of $0.00 by June 30, 2023; and  

3. submits an administratively complete groundwater production report for 
calendar year 2022 by June 30, 2023. 

 
1. find that EPS VENTURES LLC (Mirage Industrial Group, LLC) violated RULE 
2.6: REPORTING REQUIREMENT RELATED TO NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of 
the Rules of the District related to well NW-00477 unless evidence to the contrary 
or evidence of relevant extenuating circumstances is submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case regarding the 
violation;  
3. set a $100.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 9.6: Rule Enforcement of the 
Rules of the District; and 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 152 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 9 of 23 

4. offer to settle the violation if EPS VENTURES LLC (Mirage Industrial Group, 
LLC) consents to the following conditions: 

  1. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2023;  
  2. pays a settlement fee of $0.00 by June 30, 2023; and  

3. submits an administratively complete groundwater production report for 
calendar year 2022 by June 30, 2023. 

 
1. find that SALINAS, HECTOR, Sr. (Hector Salinas) violated RULE 2.6: 
REPORTING REQUIREMENT RELATED TO NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the 
Rules of the District related to well NW-00585 unless evidence to the contrary or 
evidence of relevant extenuating circumstances is submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case regarding the 
violation;  
3. set a $100.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 9.6: Rule Enforcement of the 
Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if SALINAS, HECTOR, Sr. (Hector Salinas) consents 
to the following conditions: 

  1. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2023;  
  2. pays a settlement fee of $0.00 by June 30, 2023; and  

3. submits an administratively complete groundwater production report for 
calendar year 2022 by June 30, 2023. 

 
1. find that ROGERS, MAURITZ S & WILSON B & JOHN S (Mauritz S. Rogers) 
violated RULE 2.6: REPORTING REQUIREMENT RELATED TO NON-
EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the Rules of the District related to well GW-00358 unless 
evidence to the contrary or evidence of relevant extenuating circumstances is 
submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case regarding the 
violation;  
3. set a $100.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 9.6: Rule Enforcement of the 
Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if ROGERS, MAURITZ S & WILSON B & JOHN S 
(Mauritz S. Rogers) consents to the following conditions: 

  1. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2023;  
  2. pays a settlement fee of $0.00 by June 30, 2023; and  

3. submits an administratively complete groundwater production report for 
calendar year 2022 by June 30, 2023. 

 
1. find that ROGERS, ELIZABETH (Elizabeth C. Rogers) violated RULE 2.6: 
REPORTING REQUIREMENT RELATED TO NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the 
Rules of the District related to well GW-00362 unless evidence to the contrary or 
evidence of relevant extenuating circumstances is submitted to the District; 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 153 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 10 of 23 

2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case regarding the 
violation;  
3. set a $100.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 9.6: Rule Enforcement of the 
Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if ROGERS, ELIZABETH (Elizabeth C. Rogers) 
consents to the following conditions: 

  1. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2023;  
  2. pays a settlement fee of $0.00 by June 30, 2023; and  

3. submits an administratively complete groundwater production report for 
calendar year 2022 by June 30, 2023. 

 
1. find that ENGELMOHR, CODY WADE & MELINDA / ENGELMOHR, HARRY 
ALTON (Alice Combs) violated RULE 2.6: REPORTING REQUIREMENT 
RELATED TO NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the Rules of the District related to 
well GW-00363 unless evidence to the contrary or evidence of relevant 
extenuating circumstances is submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case regarding the 
violation;  
3. set a $100.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 9.6: Rule Enforcement of the 
Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if ENGELMOHR, CODY WADE & MELINDA (Alice 
Combs) consents to the following conditions: 

  1. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2023;  
  2. pays a settlement fee of $0.00 by June 30, 2023; and  

3. submits an administratively complete groundwater production report for 
calendar year 2022 by June 30, 2023. 

  
Mr. Skalicky seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  
 
For persons with a previous violation of the related rule in the previous 5-year 
period, Mr. Revel moved to: 
 
1. find that COMBS ALICE M (Alice Combs) violated RULE 2.6: REPORTING 
REQUIREMENT RELATED TO NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the Rules of the 
District related to well GW-00357, GW-00359, GW-00360, and GW-00361 unless 
evidence to the contrary or evidence of relevant extenuating circumstances is 
submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case regarding the 
violation;  
3. set a $250.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 9.6: Rule Enforcement of the 
Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if COMBS ALICE M (Alice Combs) consents to the 
following conditions: 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 154 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 11 of 23 

 1. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2023;  
 2. pays a settlement fee of $20.00 by June 30, 2023; and  

3. submits an administratively complete groundwater production report for 
calendar year 2022 by June 30, 2023.  

 
 Mr. Skalicky seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Agenda Item 4: Consideration of and possible action on matters related to 
groundwater protection including complaints, investigations, violations, and 
enforcement cases related to groundwater contamination and waste. 
 
 4.0 – Report regarding Groundwater Protection 
 

Meeting Discussion:  Mr. Andruss explained as of April 18, 2023, staff had 
recorded no well inspections since October 1, 2023.  Well inspections are 
scheduled to be completed in connection with PRJ-20234100.02 - Synoptic Aquifer 
Monitoring for FY2023 (MG4:O1) (MG7:O1) - Active; PRJ-20234100.04 - Baseline 
Water Quality Aquifer Monitoring for FY2023 (MG4:O1) - Active; and PRJ-
20234100.09 - West Ranch Monitoring for FY2023 - Active. 
 
As of January 13, 2023, the District has 1 active investigation related to possible 
groundwater protection: INV-20220708.1129 - Confirmed Contamination of 
Groundwater at 629 South Well St. - Edna - Texas - 77957 - 7-Eleven - Active. 
 
On January 17, 2023, the District emailed Corbin Reyes with TCEQ to inquire 
about an update concerning the groundwater contamination site.   Per Corbin 
Reyes:  
 "The last document I reviewed from this site was the Drinking Water Survey 
Report, dated 5/17/2022. The site was referred to both our Toxicology and 
Remediation Division Impact Evaluation Team 6/9/2022. It was assessed and 
afterwards Toxicology sent out the following notifications to private drinking water 
well owners in the area, dated 7/6/2022 (see attached). and requested 
Groundwater Monitoring Report by 9/18/2023." 
    
As of April 18, 2023, staff had received 11 Notices of Intent to Place Casing in new 
wells and completed no site visits since October 1, 2022.  Project PRJ-
20236100.03 - Observation of Casing Placement for FY2023 (MG2:O1) - Active is 
no longer actively managed as notices of intent to place casing are no longer 
submitted to the district under the recently adopted rules of the district. 
      
As of April 18, 2023, staff had no open enforcement cases related to groundwater 
protection. 
 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 155 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 12 of 23 

Board Action: None. 
 
4.1 – Use and Reporting related to Well NW-00605 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on March 31, 2023, the district 
notified Mr. Brzozowski, General Manager of the Lavaca Navidad River Authority, 
that the following agenda item would be placed on the meeting notice for this 
meeting at the request of Director Dugger. The purpose of placing the item on the 
notice to afford the directors an opportunity to consider the use of well NW-00605 
as it relates to the definition of waste within the rules of the district and Chapter 36 
of the Texas Water Code. 
   
The subject well, NW-00605, is located outside of and adjacent to the dam of Lake 
Texana. The was operated by LNRA to investigate potential issues and remedies 
to the water seepage occurring at the dam of the lake. 
 
The board first considered the potential need to use water wells to investigate 
water seepage below the dam of Lake Texana on May 20, 2021.  The board took 
no action regarding the matter.   
    
The district received an application to drill the proposed well and an application to 
operate the proposed well in August 2021.  The district processed the application 
under permitting request case PRC-20210823-02.  See: PRC-20210823-02 - 
ADW-20210817-02/AOW-20210817-03 - Lavaca-Navidad River Authority - 
Complete.  The district posted a hearing notice for the permitting request for the 
meeting scheduled for September 16, 2021.  The meeting was cancelled.  The 
district posted a permit issuance notice for the permitting request following the 
meeting cancellation.  On September 23, 2021, the board was notified of the permit 
issuance notices posted for the requested drilling permit and production permit.  
The board took no action regarding the matter.   
 
The district issued drilling permit DP-20210929-01 on September 29, 2021.  The 
district registered well NW-00605 on April 5, 2022.  The district issued production 
permit OPW-20210929-02 for 5 AFY for Pump Test Uses on April 22, 2022.   
     
On January 10, 2023, the district received the groundwater production report from 
LNRA for well NW-00605 reporting no production in CY2022.  On April 17, 2023, 
LNRA submitted a revised groundwater production report for CY2022 indicating 
production for well NW-00605 totaled 2.5661 acre-feet in year 2022. 
 
Under Chapter 36 of the Texas Water Code, waste is defined as: 
 (8)  "Waste" means any one or more of the following: 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 156 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 13 of 23 

(A)  withdrawal of groundwater from a groundwater reservoir at a rate 
and in an amount that causes or threatens to cause intrusion into the 
reservoir of water unsuitable for agricultural, gardening, domestic, or stock 
raising purposes; 

(B)  the flowing or producing of wells from a groundwater reservoir if 
the water produced is not used for a beneficial purpose; 

(C)  escape of groundwater from a groundwater reservoir to any 
other reservoir or geologic strata that does not contain groundwater; 

(D)  pollution or harmful alteration of groundwater in a groundwater 
reservoir by saltwater or by other deleterious matter admitted from another 
stratum or from the surface of the ground; 

(E)  willfully or negligently causing, suffering, or allowing groundwater 
to escape into any river, creek, natural watercourse, depression, lake, 
reservoir, drain, sewer, street, highway, road, or road ditch, or onto any land 
other than that of the owner of the well unless such discharge is authorized 
by permit, rule, or order issued by the commission under Chapter 26; 

(F)  groundwater pumped for irrigation that escapes as irrigation 
tailwater onto land other than that of the owner of the well unless permission 
has been granted by the occupant of the land receiving the discharge; or 

(G)  for water produced from an artesian well, "waste" also has the 
meaning assigned by Section 11.205. 

 
Board Action: None. 

 
Agenda Item 5: Consideration of and possible action on matters related to 
groundwater monitoring. 
 
 5.1 – Report regarding Groundwater Monitoring 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained according to the National Integrated 
Drought Information System, the U.S. Drought Monitor (USDM) is updated each 
Thursday to show the location and intensity of drought across the country using a 
five-category system, from Abnormally Dry (D0) conditions to Exceptional Drought 
(D4). The USDM is a joint effort of the National Drought Mitigation Center, USDA, 
and NOAA. 
 
The U.S. Drought Monitor (https://www.drought.gov/states/texas/county/jackson) 
indicates that 63% of Jackson County was experiencing abnormally dry conditions 
while 37% of Jackson County was experiencing drought as of April 18, 2023. 
    
Drought condition information related to the district and the surrounding region of 
Texas collected from the Water Data for Texas website  

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 157 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 14 of 23 

(https://www.waterdatafortexas.org/drought/ ) indicates that a significant portion of 
Jackson County is experiencing abnormally dry or moderate drought conditions as 
of April 18, 2023. 
 
Board Action: None. 
 
5.1 – Monitoring Instruments 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on January 19, 2023, the board 
authorized the purchase of additional continuous aquifer monitoring probes in an 
amount not to exceed $6,500.00.  The district issued purchase order PO-
20230206-01 - Solinst Canada Ltd. for the purchase of the quoted instruments.  
The district has been invoiced for the equipment. 
 
Upon receipt of the new probes, staff discovered the purchased instruments did 
not contain the required conductivity sensor.  Solinst has agreed to accept the 
return of the probes and provided a quote to the instruments with the conductivity 
sensor.  The cost for the probes with conductivity sensors is $14,590.00. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Revel moved to authorize the general manager to return the 
instruments purchased under PO-20230206-01 to Solinst Canada Ltd. and 
authorize the purchase of the instruments specified on Solinst Canada Ltd. 
Quoation Q000106020 in an amount not to exceed $14,590.00 plus shipping fees. 
Mr. Born seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
Agenda Item 6: Consideration of and possible action on matters related to 
groundwater conservation. 
 

6.0 – Report regarding Groundwater Conservation 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on December 6, 2022, Professor 
Teresa LeSage-Clements, Ed. D., submitted the final report regarding the 
University of Houston-Victoria conservation promotion project sponsored by 
RGCD, CCGCD, TGCD, and VCGCD.   
    
On April 6, 2023, Ms. LeSage-Clements submitted a preliminary proposal for 
continuing the conservation promotion project.  Suggested revisions to the 
proposal have been provided to Ms. LeSage-Clements suggesting that 1) the UHV 
PD be implemented in such a way as to connect the PD activities like water 
sampling and analysis to the relevant Texas Essential Knowledge and Skills 
(TEKS) and 2) eliminate the student camp component.  The district anticipates that 
identifying the relationships between TEKS and PD activities will serve to increase 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 158 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 15 of 23 

interest in participating in the PD by teachers and ensure the activities are relevant 
to future teaching efforts related to conservation.   
    
If the district(s) agrees to fund the UHV PD project, management recommends that 
the districts use a teacher’s participation in the UHV PD as a prerequisite to 
seeking sponsorship from the GCDs for the development and teaching of water 
conservation curriculum in their classrooms.   The development and execution of 
curriculum, lesson plans, and possibly field trips would be a responsibility of those 
teachers, if any, sponsored by the GCDs, independent of UHV.  Management 
believes the implementation of district-sponsored curriculum can serve to offset 
the negative consequences of eliminating the student camp component in the 
original UHV proposal. 
    
On April 17, 2023, at the suggestion of Director Snyder, the RGCD board of 
directors authorized the expenditure of up to $5,000.00 for sponsorship of field 
trips by 4th and 5th grade students from Refugio County to the Wetland Education 
Center located in the INVISTA Victoria Plant Wetland for the purposes of 
promoting water conservation. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Born moved to authorize the expenditure of up to $5,000.00 for 
sponsorship of field trips by 4th and 5th grade students from Jackson County to 
the Wetland Education Center located in the INVISTA Victoria Plant Wetland for 
the purposes of promoting water conservation. Mr. Revel seconded the motion. 
The motion passed unanimously. 

 
Agenda Item 7: Consideration of and possible action on matters related to 
groundwater resource planning including Groundwater Management Area 15 Joint 
Planning and regional water planning. 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the representatives of Region P met 
on March 6, 2023, to continue efforts to develop the 2026 Regional Water Plan.  
The general manager joined the meeting virtually.  The meeting focused on the 
review of demand projections in the region. 

    
The representatives of Management Area 15 met on April 13, 2023, to continue 
their joint planning efforts.  The representatives of GMA 15 1) discussed the new 
groundwater availability model being developed by TWDB for the central and 
southern portions of the Gulf Coast Aquifer, 2) reviewed management plans of 
certain member districts, 3) reviewed achievements of certain member districts, 4) 
approved for distribution draft revisions of bylaws and a cost sharing agreement, 
and 5) requested VCGCD serve as the GMA 15 Administrator for the purposes of  
a) holding the GMA 15 Joint Planning Funds, b) soliciting proposals from qualified 
entities to provide technical services 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 159 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 16 of 23 

to GMA 15 to support the development and adoption of desired future conditions 
and associated explanatory report for the 4th Joint Planning Cycle, and c) 
negotiating terms of an agreement for consulting services from the preferred 
respondent(s) identified by the GMA-15 Committee Members. 

    
The next meeting of GMA 15 is scheduled for July 13, 2023. 
 
Board Action: None. 

 
Agenda Item 8: Consideration of and possible action on matters related to 
groundwater policy including the Management Plan of the District, the proposed 
Management Plan of the District, the Rules of the District, and fee schedule. 
 
 8.0 – Report regarding Groundwater Policy 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on April 7, 2023, the staff of the 
district completed the public notice requirements related to the hearing for 
proposed management plan of the district scheduled for this meeting. 
 
The 88th regular session of the Texas Legislature began on January 9, 2023.  Staff 
have monitored legislation proposed during the session. 
 
Board Action: None. 
 
8.1 – Hearing on Proposed Management Plan of the District 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained staff prepared a draft management 
plan with the best available technical data from TWDB with the goals, objectives, 
and performance standards approved on January 19, 2023.   
 
The Management Plan of the District with proposed revisions was developed using 
the best available  data and addresses the following management goals, as 
applicable: (1) providing the most efficient use  of groundwater; (2) controlling and 
preventing waste of groundwater; (3) controlling and preventing  subsidence; (4) 
addressing conjunctive surface water management issues; (5) addressing natural  
resource issues; (6) addressing drought conditions; (7) addressing conservation, 
recharge enhancement, rainwater harvesting,  precipitation  enhancement,  or 
brush control,  where  appropriate and cost-effective; and (8) addressing  the 
desired future conditions adopted by the  district under  Section 36.108. 
    
The Management Plan of the District with proposed revisions (1) identifies the 
performance standards and management objectives  under which the district will 
operate to achieve the management goals ; (2) specifies the actions,  procedures, 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 160 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 17 of 23 

performance, and avoidance that are or may be necessary to effect the plan; (3)  
includes estimates of (A) modeled available groundwater in the district based on 
the desired future condition established under Section 36.108; (B) the amount of 
groundwater being used within the district on an annual basis; (C) the annual 
amount of recharge from precipitation, if any, to the groundwater resources within 
the district; (D) for each aquifer, the annual volume of water that  discharges from 
the aquifer to springs and any surface water bodies, including lakes, streams, and 
rivers; (E) the annual volume of flow into and out of the district within each aquifer 
and between aquifers in the district, if a groundwater availability model is available; 
(F) the projected surface water supply in the district according to the most recently 
adopted state water plan; and (G) the projected total demand for water in the 
district according to the most recently adopted state water plan; and (4) considers 
the water supply needs and water management strategies included in the adopted 
state water plan. 
    
On April 7, 2023, the staff of the district completed the public notice requirements 
related to the hearing for the proposed management plan of the district scheduled 
for this meeting. 
 
As of April 18, 2023, the district had not received comments from the public 
regarding the proposed management plan. 
    
If, after concluding the public hearing on the proposed management plan of the 
district, the board wishes to adopt the management plan without substantive 
revisions, the board should adopt the attached resolution. 
 
Board Action: The public hearing was opened at approximately 12:22 PM. The 
Board received no comments regarding the proposed management plan of the 
district. Mr. Skalicky moved to close the public hearing at approximately 12:23 PM. 
Mr. Revel seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Mr. Revel moved to adopt the proposed management plan of the district without 
substantive revisions by resolution. Mr. Born seconded the motion. The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
8.2 – 88th Regular Session of the Texas Legislature 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained as of April 14, 2023, the following 
bills with "groundwater" in the text of the bill had been added to the list of bills being 
monitored by staff. 
 
Board Action: None. 
 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 161 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 18 of 23 

Agenda Item 9: Consideration of and possible action on matters related to meeting 
management including minutes of previous meetings.  
 
 9.0 – Report on Meeting Management 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the next meetings of the Board are 
scheduled for July 20, 2023, August 17, 2023, and October 19, 2023, with each 
meeting to convene at 8:30 AM.  Special meetings may be scheduled to address 
unforeseen issues. 
 
Board Action: None. 

 
9.1 – Minutes of the Previous Meetings 

 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the minutes for the meeting held on 
January 19, 2023, were sent to the board members prior to the meeting.  
 
Board Action: Mr. Born moved to accept and approve the meeting minutes for 
January 19, 2023, as drafted. Mr. Skalicky seconded the motion. The motion 
passed unanimously. 

 
Agenda Item 10: Consideration of and possible action on matters related to 
financial management including the annual budget of the district, bank accounts, 
investments, financial reports of the district, bills and invoices of the district. 
 
 10.0 – Report on Financial Management 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the financial records for December 
2022, January and February 2023 have been compiled, reviewed, and sent to the 
board members prior to the meeting. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Revel moved to accept and approve the financial records for 
December 2022, January and February 2023. Mr. Woodland seconded the motion. 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
10.0.1 – Financial Transaction Review 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained as of April 18, 2023, since January 
14, 2023, there have been 9 accounts payable, and 12 accounts receivable 
transactions recorded. 
 
Board Action: None. 

 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 162 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 19 of 23 

 10.1 – Unpaid Accounts Payable 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the district has outstanding accounts 
payable invoices that are not considered regular and routine for which the District 
has received the goods and services billed for under the invoices. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Skalicky moved to authorize the general manager to pay the 
following items: 

1. ACCTP-20230301-01 - $540.00 - ABM Invoice 6855 
2. ACCTP-20230320-01 - $1,472.43 - JCAD Invoice No. 1027 
3. ACCTP-20230411-01 - $208.60 - Inv No. 345352_0323 
4. ACCTP-20230412-01 - $7,313.30 - VCGCD - District Invoice - January 

2023 
5. ACCTP-20230412-02 - $7,238.79 - VCGCD - District Invoice - February 

2023 
6. ACCTP-20230412-03 - $7,269.90 - VCGCD - District Invoice - March 2023 
7. ACCTP-20230412-04 - $13,750.00 - VCGCD - District Invoice - Intera Cost 

Share 
8. ACCTP-20230417-01 - $325.08 - Prosperity Bank Visa Card 

  
Mr. Woodland seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
10.2 – Investments of the District 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the investment reports for December 
2022, January and February 2023 have been sent to the board prior to the meeting.   
 
Board Action: Mr. Skalicky moved to accept the investment reports for December 
2022, January and February 2023. Mr. Born seconded the motion. The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
10.3 – Depository Services Contract 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained Prosperity Bank has offered to 
extend the depository services agreement with the district until April 30, 2024. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Skalicky moved to authorize the General Manager to execute 
the depository services agreement submitted by Prosperity Bank, dated March 16, 
2023, to extend the depository services agreement with the district until April 30, 
2024. Mr. Woodland seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
10.4 – FY2022 Financial Audit 
 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 163 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 20 of 23 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on October 20, 2022, the Board 
authorized Goldman, Hunt and Notz to conduct a financial audit of the District for 
the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. 
    
Mr. Cox of Goldman, Hunt, and Notz was in attendance and presented the findings 
of the financial audit of the District for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022, 
at this meeting. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Born moved to accept and approve the financial audit for fiscal 
year ending September 30, 2022, as presented. Mr. Revel seconded the motion. 
The motion passed unanimously. 

 
Agenda Item 11: Consideration of and possible action on matters related to office 
administration and management including management goals and objectives of 
the district, administrative policies, election of officers of the board, staffing, 
consultant agreements, interlocal cooperation agreements, and support services 
provided to and from other groundwater conservation districts. 
 
 11.0 – Report regarding Administration and Management  
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained staff continue to develop projects to 
manage the administrative tasks to be completed during the fiscal year with project 
milestones. 

 
 Board Action: None. 
  

11.1 – Report regarding Performance Management for the District for FY2022 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on April 19, 2023, compiled the 
annual performance report for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022.  Based 
on the review of the activities and projects of the Refugio Groundwater 
Conservation District between October 1, 2021, and September 30, 2022 and an 
assessment of the performance standards, management has determined that all 
goals and associated objectives established within the Management Plan of the 
District have been fully achieved during the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Skalicky moved to accept and approve the annual performance 
report for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. Mr. Revel seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
11.2 – New Printer and Copier 
 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 164 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 21 of 23 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the District presently relies on a ink-
jet printer to print internal documents and meeting packets.  The district plans to 
begin a digital archiving project this fiscal year.  The current printer is unlikely to 
be able to sustain the amount of printing to be completed under this project and 
result in significant expenses for ink.  The district has obtain a proposal from Office 
Systems for the purchase of a printer ($2,198.80) and service service fees that 
includes toner supplies ($0.02 per black print page; $0.08 per color print page).   
 
Board Action: Mr. Born moved to authorize the General Manager to purchase the 
printer and execute the service agreement with Office Systems, as proposed. Mr. 
Skalicky seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
11.3 – Website Hosting 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained presently, the website of the district 
is hosted by a service referred to as iPower and maintained using a service 
referred to a Weebly via iPower.  Staff have encountered frequent issues with the 
websites hosted and maintained via iPower.  On several occasions, the issues 
were significant and required significant time to resolve (e.g., rebuilding links and 
uploading replacement documents).  While the technical support is generally 
responsive, the resolutions sometime require long periods of time for the resolution 
to propagate through the system.   
   
In response to these issues and a general uncomfortable feeling regarding the 
reliability and maintenance of the website of the district, staff have reviewed a 
service provided by Streamline.  Streamline is a California-based firm that 
develops website and communication products for local government district. 
 
The web hosting service provides districts with a simple to use interface for building 
and maintaining a website that is designed around the needs of local government 
needs such as RGCD.  Of particular value to RGCD is the easy-to-use interface 
for maintaining/updating the district website and the in-country technical support 
provided by Streamline. 
    
Staff obtained a quote from Streamline Web for hosting the website of the district.  
The monthly cost for hosting the district website is quoted at $120 per month, 
$1,440.00 per year.   In FY2022, the district incurred expenses totaling $657.12 
for internet-related services which includes email hosting services.   
 
Board Action: Mr. Skalicky moved to authorize the general manager to switch the 
hosting of the website of the district to Streamline, make any necessary 
adjustments to other inter-related services such as email hosting services, and pay 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 165 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 22 of 23 

associated fees. Mr. Woodland seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
11.4 – Interlocal Agreement with VCGCD for FY2024 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on August 18, 2021, the board last 
considered and approved the revised interlocal agreement with VCGCD through 
which services are provided to the district by VCGCD staff.   The agreement 
establishes a monthly fee of $7,166.25 per month for services. 
    
The agreement automatically renews for an additional one (1) year period on 
October 1 of each year unless either party provides 90-day written notice of their 
intent to not renew the agreement.  The deadline to provide the notice falls on July 
3 of each year.  This district is not scheduled to meet again until after this notice 
deadline on July 17, 2023.  The VCGCD board is scheduled to meet on April 21, 
2023 and this matter will be presented for their consideration at that time. 
 
Board Action: The board chose to renew the agreement with the Victoria County 
Groundwater Conservation District.  
 
11.5 – Cybersecurity Training for FY2023 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the state requires local government 
entities to complete cyber training on an annual basis.  The training requirement 
applies to employees and elected officials (e.g., directors of the district).  While a 
number of methods are available to satisfy this requirement, the simplest method 
and least time consuming is the viewing of one of the following YouTube videos: 

1. TxDIR Cyber Security Training YouTube Video (28 minutes) 
2. TMLIRP Cyber Security Training Youtube Video (17 minutes) 

Directors are encouraged to notify staff of their completion of the training for 
reporting purposes.  The district is required to certify to the state the degree to 
which the requirements were satisfied each year. 
 
Board Action: None. 
 
Mr. Skalicky informed the general manager that he has completed his 
cybersecurity training for FY2023. 
 

Agenda Item 12: Consideration of and possible action on matters related to 
vacancy in the office of director of the Texana Groundwater Conservation District. 
 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 166 of 268



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 20, 2023 | Page 23 of 23 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on March 30, 2023, Mr. Dugger 
submitted a letter of resignation from board of directors of the Texana Groundwater 
Conservation District. 
 
Board Action: None. 

 
Agenda Item 13: Consideration of and possible action on matters related to legal 
counsel report.  
 
Agenda Item 14: Adjourn Meeting  
 
 Meeting Discussion: None. 
 

Board Action: Mr. Born moved to adjourn the meeting after concluding all the 
business of the District. Mr. Skalicky seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
 
 
 
The above and foregoing minutes were read and approved on this the ________ day of 

__________________________, _______. 

 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ _______________________________ 
District Director    District Director 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 167 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Bank Account Balance Report as of May 31, 2023

Bank Account
Reconciled Bank 
Statement

Fund
Reported Balance as of  

October 1 , 2022
Total Credits Total Debits

Calculated 
Balance

Current 
Reported 

Balance

Unreconciled 
Balance

Prosperity 7512 BS-20230531-02 Operating 78,238.13$                        100,315.71$       (88,029.50)$        90,524.34$          90,524.34$         -$               

Prosperity 9448 BS-20230531-01 Reserve 691,964.21$                      278,424.22$       (600,000.00)$      370,388.43$        370,388.43$       -$               

Prosperity CD 0515 BS-20230331-03 Reserve -$                                   250,000.00$       -$                    250,000.00$        250,000.00$       -$               

Prosperity CD 0517 BS-20230331-04 Reserve -$                                   250,000.00$       -$                    250,000.00$        250,000.00$       -$               
Total 770,202.34$                      878,739.93$       (688,029.50)$      960,912.77$        960,912.77$       

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Bank Account Balances Report Page 1 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 168 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

FDIC Insurance and Collateral Report as of May 31, 2023

Institution Type CUSIP Description
Safekeeping 
Location

Safekeeping 
Receipt

Credit 
Rating

Market Value

Prosperity Bank FDIC Insurance N/A N/A N/A N/A 250,000.00$     
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WDYL9 FNMA #AS4314 FHLB AA+ 185,531.74$     
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138X6MR3 FNMA CRA #AU6667 FHLB 130,634.05$     
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3133KYUZ0 FR #RB5100 FHLB AA+ 131,273.50$     
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418DZ54 FNMA #MA4363 FHLB AA+ 490,203.99$     
Total 1,187,643.28$  

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Collateral Report Page 2 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 169 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Budget Performance Report as of May 31, 2023
Program Function Category Budget Line Item Budget Actual Performance

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - 
Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections 1000 - Administration:1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration::0120 - Tax Collections::: 267,372.53$               267,606.07$                 233.54$                        

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - 
Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income 1000 - Administration:1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration::0130 - Interest Income::: 1,500.00$                   9,309.51$                     7,809.51$                     

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - 
Revenue Administration

0143 - District Fees - 
Permitting

1000 - Administration:1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration::0143 - District Fees - 
Permitting:::

1,000.00$                   1,824.35$                     824.35$                        

1000 - Administration
1200 - Administration - 
Election Management

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1200 - Administration - Election Management::210 - Legal Services::: (1,000.00)$                  -$                              1,000.00$                     

1000 - Administration
1200 - Administration - 
Election Management

220 - Professional and 
Technical Services

1000 - Administration:1200 - Administration - Election Management::220 - Professional and 
Technical Services:::

(2,500.00)$                  -$                              2,500.00$                     

1000 - Administration
1200 - Administration - 
Election Management

500 - Public Notices and 
Publications

1000 - Administration:1200 - Administration - Election Management::500 - Public Notices and 
Publications:::

(500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::210 - Legal Services::: (500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

221 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Auditor

1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::221 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Auditor:::

(12,500.00)$                -$                              12,500.00$                   

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

222 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Tax 
Assessor

1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::222 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Tax Assessor:::

(5,000.00)$                  (651.99)$                       4,348.01$                     

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

223 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Appraisal District

1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::223 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Appraisal District:::

(5,000.00)$                  (3,004.57)$                    1,995.43$                     

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

224 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Accountant

1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::224 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Accountant:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

500 - Public Notices and 
Publications

1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::500 - Public Notices and 
Publications:::

(1,000.00)$                  (787.40)$                       212.60$                        

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::210 - Legal Services::: (500.00)$                     (540.00)$                       (40.00)$                         

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 

410 - Equipment 1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::410 - Equipment::: (2,000.00)$                  -$                              2,000.00$                     

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 

420 - Software 1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::420 - Software::: (930.00)$                     (345.36)$                       584.64$                        

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 

430 - Technology 
Services

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::430 - Technology 
Services:::

(100.00)$                     (187.02)$                       (87.02)$                         

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 
Management

432 - Technology 
Services - Workflow 
System

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::432 - Technology 
Services - Workflow System:::

(1,200.00)$                  (639.60)$                       560.40$                        

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 
Management

434 - Technology 
Services - Website and 
Email System

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::434 - Technology 
Services - Website and Email System:::

(250.00)$                     (1,119.92)$                    (869.92)$                       

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 
Management

435 - Technology 
Services - Phone 
System

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::435 - Technology 
Services - Phone System:::

(2,000.00)$                  (549.56)$                       1,450.44$                     

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 
Management

436 - Technology 
Services - Internet

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::436 - Technology 
Services - Internet:::

(2,400.00)$                  (21.66)$                         2,378.34$                     

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 

450 - Maintenance and 
Repair

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::450 - Maintenance and 
Repair:::

(500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1500 - Administration - 
Meeting Management

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1500 - Administration - Meeting Management::210 - Legal Services::: (3,000.00)$                  (180.00)$                       2,820.00$                     

1000 - Administration
1500 - Administration - 
Meeting Management

500 - Public Notices and 
Publications

1000 - Administration:1500 - Administration - Meeting Management::500 - Public Notices and 
Publications:::

(200.00)$                     -$                              200.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::210 - Legal Services::: (750.00)$                     -$                              750.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - VCGCD:::

(11,237.50)$                (8,224.59)$                    3,012.91$                     

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

230 - Insurance and 
Bonds

1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::230 - Insurance and 
Bonds:::

(1,500.00)$                  (864.36)$                       635.64$                        

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

310 - Supplies 1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::310 - Supplies::: (400.00)$                     (1,535.41)$                    (1,135.41)$                    

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Performance - FY22 Page 3 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 170 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Budget Performance Report as of May 31, 2023
Program Function Category Budget Line Item Budget Actual Performance

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps

1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::315 - Certified Mail 
and Stamps:::

(250.00)$                     -$                              250.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

900 - Miscellaneous 1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::900 - Miscellaneous::: (500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1900 - Administration - 
Records Management

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1900 - Administration - Records Management::210 - Legal Services::: (2,000.00)$                  -$                              2,000.00$                     

1000 - Administration
1900 - Administration - 
Records Management

433 - Technology 
Services - Record 
Archival System

1000 - Administration:1900 - Administration - Records Management::433 - Technology Services - 
Record Archival System:::

(2,000.00)$                  -$                              2,000.00$                     

2000 - Groundwater 
Conservation

2100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 2000 - Groundwater Conservation:2100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

2000 - Groundwater 
Conservation

2100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

2000 - Groundwater Conservation:2100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

2000 - Groundwater 
Conservation

2100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

2000 - Groundwater Conservation:2100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - VCGCD:::

(10,237.50)$                (8,224.61)$                    2,012.89$                     

2000 - Groundwater 
Conservation

2100 - Program 
Implementation

363 - Sponsorships and 
Cost-Sharing - 
Conservation Promotion

2000 - Groundwater Conservation:2100 - Program Implementation::363 - Sponsorships and Cost-
Sharing - Conservation Promotion:::

(3,200.00)$                  (2,006.48)$                    1,193.52$                     

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: (15,000.00)$                -$                              15,000.00$                   

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Hydrogeologist

3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Hydrogeologist:::

(10,000.00)$                (10,250.00)$                  (250.00)$                       

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - VCGCD:::

(10,737.50)$                (8,224.61)$                    2,512.89$                     

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

310 - Supplies 3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::310 - Supplies::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps

3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps:::

(250.00)$                     -$                              250.00$                        

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

500 - Public Notices and 
Publications

3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::500 - Public Notices and 
Publications:::

(2,000.00)$                  (208.60)$                       1,791.40$                     

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

220 - Professional and 
Technical Services

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::220 - Professional and 
Technical Services:::

(2,000.00)$                  (233.89)$                       1,766.11$                     

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Hydrogeologist

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Hydrogeologist:::

(6,000.00)$                  (6,000.00)$                    -$                              

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - VCGCD:::

(10,737.50)$                (8,224.61)$                    2,512.89$                     

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

310 - Supplies 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::310 - Supplies::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps:::

(250.00)$                     -$                              250.00$                        

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

410 - Equipment 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::410 - Equipment::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

450 - Maintenance and 
Repair

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::450 - Maintenance and Repair::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

900 - Miscellaneous 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::900 - Miscellaneous::: (1,000.00)$                  -$                              1,000.00$                     

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4200 - Monitoring 
Network Development

210 - Legal Services 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4200 - Monitoring Network Development::210 - Legal Services::: (500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4200 - Monitoring 
Network Development

410 - Equipment 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4200 - Monitoring Network Development::410 - Equipment::: (20,000.00)$                -$                              20,000.00$                   

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4200 - Monitoring 
Network Development

450 - Maintenance and 
Repair

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4200 - Monitoring Network Development::450 - Maintenance and 
Repair:::

(2,000.00)$                  -$                              2,000.00$                     

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Performance - FY22 Page 4 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 171 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Budget Performance Report as of May 31, 2023
Program Function Category Budget Line Item Budget Actual Performance
5000 - Groundwater 
Policy

5100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 5000 - Groundwater Policy:5100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: (5,000.00)$                  -$                              5,000.00$                     

5000 - Groundwater 
Policy

5100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

5000 - Groundwater Policy:5100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and Administrative 
Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

5000 - Groundwater 
Policy

5100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

5000 - Groundwater Policy:5100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and Technical 
Services - VCGCD:::

(10,237.50)$                (8,224.61)$                    2,012.89$                     

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: (2,500.00)$                  -$                              2,500.00$                     

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Hydrogeologist

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::225 - Professional and Technical 
Services - Hydrogeologist:::

(2,500.00)$                  -$                              2,500.00$                     

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and Technical 
Services - VCGCD:::

(10,737.50)$                (8,224.61)$                    2,512.89$                     

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

310 - Supplies 6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::310 - Supplies::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps:::

(100.00)$                     -$                              100.00$                        

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

361 - Sponsorships and 
Cost-Sharing - Well 
Plugging

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::361 - Sponsorships and Cost-
Sharing - Well Plugging:::

(500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

362 - Sponsorships and 
Cost-Sharing - Borehole 
Logging

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::362 - Sponsorships and Cost-
Sharing - Borehole Logging:::

(2,500.00)$                  -$                              2,500.00$                     

7000 - Groundwater 
Research

7100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

7000 - Groundwater Research:7100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

7000 - Groundwater 
Research

7100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

7000 - Groundwater Research:7100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and Technical 
Services - VCGCD:::

(10,237.50)$                -$                              10,237.50$                   

8000 - Groundwater 
Resource Planning

8100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning:8100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: (1,000.00)$                  -$                              1,000.00$                     

8000 - Groundwater 
Resource Planning

8100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning:8100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

8000 - Groundwater 
Resource Planning

8100 - Program 
Implementation

225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Hydrogeologist

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning:8100 - Program Implementation::225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Hydrogeologist:::

(5,000.00)$                  -$                              5,000.00$                     

8000 - Groundwater 
Resource Planning

8100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning:8100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - VCGCD:::

(10,237.50)$                (9,556.04)$                    681.46$                        

8000 - Groundwater 
Resource Planning

8100 - Program 
Implementation

500 - Public Notices and 
Publications

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning:8100 - Program Implementation::500 - Public Notices 
and Publications:::

(1,200.00)$                  -$                              1,200.00$                     

54,492.53$                 190,710.43$                 

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Performance - FY22 Page 5 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 172 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Budget Performance related to Revenue Function Report as of May 31, 2023

Row Labels Sum of Budget Sum of Actual Sum of Performance
1000 - Administration 210,155.03$    260,088.49$   49,933.46$                 
2000 - Groundwater Conservation (13,437.50)$     (10,231.09)$    3,206.41$                   
3000 - Groundwater Management (37,987.50)$     (18,683.21)$    19,304.29$                 
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring (42,487.50)$     (14,458.50)$    28,029.00$                 
5000 - Groundwater Policy (15,237.50)$     (8,224.61)$      7,012.89$                   
6000 - Groundwater Protection (18,837.50)$     (8,224.61)$      10,612.89$                 
7000 - Groundwater Research (10,237.50)$     -$                10,237.50$                 
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning (17,437.50)$     (9,556.04)$      7,881.46$                   
Grand Total 54,492.53$      190,710.43$   136,217.90$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Func. Performance - FY22 Page 6 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 173 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Budget Performance by Category Report as of May 31, 2023

Row Labels Sum of Budget Sum of Actual Sum of Performance
0120 - Tax Collections 267,372.53$    267,606.07$   233.54$                      
0130 - Interest Income 1,500.00$        9,309.51$       7,809.51$                   
0143 - District Fees - Permitting 1,000.00$        1,824.35$       824.35$                      
210 - Legal Services (31,750.00)$     (720.00)$         31,030.00$                 
215 - Legislative and Administrative Action Representation Services -$                 -$                -$                           
220 - Professional and Technical Services (4,500.00)$       (233.89)$         4,266.11$                   
221 - Professional and Technical Services - Auditor (12,500.00)$     -$                12,500.00$                 
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor (5,000.00)$       (651.99)$         4,348.01$                   
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District (5,000.00)$       (3,004.57)$      1,995.43$                   
224 - Professional and Technical Services - Accountant -$                 -$                -$                           
225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist (23,500.00)$     (16,250.00)$    7,250.00$                   
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD (84,400.00)$     (58,903.68)$    25,496.32$                 
230 - Insurance and Bonds (1,500.00)$       (864.36)$         635.64$                      
310 - Supplies (400.00)$          (1,535.41)$      (1,135.41)$                 
315 - Certified Mail and Stamps (850.00)$          -$                850.00$                      
361 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Well Plugging (500.00)$          -$                500.00$                      
362 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Borehole Logging (2,500.00)$       -$                2,500.00$                   
363 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Conservation Promotion (3,200.00)$       (2,006.48)$      1,193.52$                   
410 - Equipment (22,000.00)$     -$                22,000.00$                 
420 - Software (930.00)$          (345.36)$         584.64$                      
430 - Technology Services (100.00)$          (187.02)$         (87.02)$                      
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System (1,200.00)$       (639.60)$         560.40$                      
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (2,000.00)$       -$                2,000.00$                   
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (250.00)$          (1,119.92)$      (869.92)$                    
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (2,000.00)$       (549.56)$         1,450.44$                   
436 - Technology Services - Internet (2,400.00)$       (21.66)$           2,378.34$                   
450 - Maintenance and Repair (2,500.00)$       -$                2,500.00$                   
500 - Public Notices and Publications (4,900.00)$       (996.00)$         3,904.00$                   
900 - Miscellaneous (1,500.00)$       -$                1,500.00$                   
Grand Total 54,492.53$      190,710.43$   136,217.90$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Cate. Performance - FY22 Page 7 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 174 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Bank Account, Transaction Type

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount
Prosperity 7512 12,286.21$                 

Credit 100,315.71$               
Debit (88,029.50)$               

Prosperity 9448 (321,575.78)$             
Credit 278,424.22$               
Debit (600,000.00)$             

Prosperity CD 0515 250,000.00$               
Credit 250,000.00$               

Prosperity CD 0517 250,000.00$               
Credit 250,000.00$               

Grand Total 190,710.43$               

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

202320222021

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary by Account Page 8 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 175 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Budget Program, Function, Category

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0120 - Tax Collections $267,606.07
0130 - Interest Income $9,309.51
0143 - District Fees - Permitting $1,824.35

1300 - Administration - Financial Management
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor ($651.99)
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District ($3,004.57)
500 - Public Notices and Publications ($787.40)

1400 - Administration - Information Management
210 - Legal Services ($540.00)
420 - Software ($345.36)
430 - Technology Services ($187.02)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($639.60)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($1,119.92)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($549.56)
436 - Technology Services - Internet ($21.66)

1500 - Administration - Meeting Management
210 - Legal Services ($180.00)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($8,224.59)
230 - Insurance and Bonds ($864.36)
310 - Supplies ($1,535.41)
900 - Miscellaneous $0.00

2000 - Groundwater Conservation
2100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($8,224.61)
363 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Conservation Promotion ($2,006.48)

3000 - Groundwater Management
3100 - Program Implementation

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary by Budget Page 9 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 176 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Budget Program, Function, Category

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist ($10,250.00)
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($8,224.61)
500 - Public Notices and Publications ($208.60)

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring
4100 - Program Implementation

220 - Professional and Technical Services ($233.89)
225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist ($6,000.00)
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($8,224.61)

5000 - Groundwater Policy
5100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($8,224.61)
6000 - Groundwater Protection

6100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($8,224.61)

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning
8100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($9,556.04)
Grand Total $190,710.43

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary by Budget Page 10 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 177 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount
Prosperity 7512

TR-20220923-04-D ($1,532.14)
Jackson Central Appraisal District

Operating
1000 - Administration

1300 - Administration - Financial Management
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District ($1,532.14)

TR-20221011-01-C $200.00
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0143 - District Fees - Permitting $200.00

TR-20221021-01-D ($2,006.48)
VCGCD

Operating
2000 - Groundwater Conservation

2100 - Program Implementation
363 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Conservation Promotion ($2,006.48)

TR-20221021-02-D ($2,500.00)
VCGCD

Operating
3000 - Groundwater Management

3100 - Program Implementation
225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist ($2,500.00)

TR-20221021-03-D ($864.36)
TML 

Operating
1000 - Administration

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
230 - Insurance and Bonds ($864.36)

TR-20221021-04-D ($1,002.20)
Prosperity Bank

Operating

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 11 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 178 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - Information Management

420 - Software ($57.56)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($121.72)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($63.41)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
310 - Supplies ($674.23)

Prosperity Bank Visa 
Operating

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - Information Management

432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($85.28)
TR-20221021-05-D ($6,998.87)

VCGCD
Operating

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)
2000 - Groundwater Conservation

2100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)

3000 - Groundwater Management
3100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)

5000 - Groundwater Policy
5100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)
6000 - Groundwater Protection

6100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 12 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 179 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

8100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.83)

TR-20221021-06-D ($6,911.44)
VCGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)

2000 - Groundwater Conservation
2100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)
3000 - Groundwater Management

3100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring
4100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)
5000 - Groundwater Policy

5100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)

6000 - Groundwater Protection
6100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning

8100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.34)

TR-20221031-02-C $16.55
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $16.55

TR-20221123-01-D ($364.09)
Prosperity Bank Visa 

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 13 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 180 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Operating
1000 - Administration

1400 - Administration - Information Management
430 - Technology Services ($57.56)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($85.28)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($24.65)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($80.57)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
310 - Supplies ($116.03)

TR-20221123-03-D ($125.98)
Pace Analytical 

Operating
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
220 - Professional and Technical Services ($125.98)

TR-20221123-04-D ($107.91)
Pace Analytical 

Operating
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
220 - Professional and Technical Services ($107.91)

TR-20221123-05-D ($651.99)
JCTAC 

Operating
1000 - Administration

1300 - Administration - Financial Management
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor ($651.99)

TR-20221130-02-C $11.89
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $11.89

TR-20221220-03-C $10.86

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 14 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 181 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $10.86
TR-20221222-01-D ($254.06)

Prosperity Bank Visa 
Operating

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - Information Management

420 - Software ($57.56)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($85.28)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($10.83)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($80.57)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
310 - Supplies ($19.82)

TR-20221231-02-C $11.75
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $11.75

TR-20230119-01-D ($927.78)
Prosperity Bank Visa 

Operating
1000 - Administration

1400 - Administration - Information Management
420 - Software ($57.56)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($95.94)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($633.71)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($80.57)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
310 - Supplies ($60.00)

TR-20230123-01-D ($6.00)

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 15 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 182 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Jackson County Clerk 
Operating

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - Financial Management

500 - Public Notices and Publications ($6.00)
TR-20230123-02-D ($1,472.43)

Jackson Central Appraisal District
Operating

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - Financial Management

223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District ($1,472.43)
TR-20230123-03-D ($7,309.79)

VCGCD
Operating

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)
2000 - Groundwater Conservation

2100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)

3000 - Groundwater Management
3100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)

5000 - Groundwater Policy
5100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)
6000 - Groundwater Protection

6100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning
8100 - Program Implementation

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 16 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 183 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.23)
TR-20230123-04-D ($7,266.98)

VCGCD
Operating

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)
2000 - Groundwater Conservation

2100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)

3000 - Groundwater Management
3100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)

5000 - Groundwater Policy
5100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)
6000 - Groundwater Protection

6100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning
8100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)
TR-20230123-05-D ($7,263.13)

VCGCD
Operating

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)
2000 - Groundwater Conservation

2100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 17 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 184 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

3000 - Groundwater Management
3100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)

5000 - Groundwater Policy
5100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)
6000 - Groundwater Protection

6100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning
8100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)
TR-20230123-06-D ($961.40)

Allison, Bass and Magee, L.L.P
Operating

1000 - Administration
1500 - Administration - Meeting Management

210 - Legal Services ($180.00)
Victoria Advocate

Operating
1000 - Administration

1300 - Administration - Financial Management
500 - Public Notices and Publications ($781.40)

TR-20230123-07-D ($1,331.48)
VCGCD

Operating
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning

8100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,331.48)

TR-20230131-02-C $10.71
TGCD

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 18 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 185 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $10.71

TR-20230221-01-D ($911.14)
Prosperity Bank 

Operating
1000 - Administration

1400 - Administration - Information Management
420 - Software ($57.56)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($95.94)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($81.48)
436 - Technology Services - Internet ($10.83)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
310 - Supplies ($665.33)

TR-20230228-02-C $5.77
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $5.77

TR-20230326-01-D ($614.18)
Prosperity Bank 

Operating
1000 - Administration

1400 - Administration - Information Management
430 - Technology Services ($118.80)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($95.94)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($307.13)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($81.48)
436 - Technology Services - Internet ($10.83)

TR-20230331-02-C $5.87
TGCD

Operating

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 19 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 186 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income $5.87
TR-20230404-01-C $100,000.00

TGCD
Operating

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $100,000.00
TR-20230420-01-D ($325.08)

Prosperity Bank 
Operating

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - Information Management

420 - Software ($115.12)
430 - Technology Services ($10.66)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($95.94)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($21.88)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($81.48)

TR-20230420-02-D ($13,750.00)
VCGCD

Operating
3000 - Groundwater Management

3100 - Program Implementation
225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist ($7,750.00)

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring
4100 - Program Implementation

225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist ($6,000.00)
TR-20230420-03-D ($7,269.90)

VCGCD
Operating

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.54)

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 20 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 187 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

2000 - Groundwater Conservation
2100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.56)
3000 - Groundwater Management

3100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.56)

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring
4100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.56)
5000 - Groundwater Policy

5100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.56)

6000 - Groundwater Protection
6100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.56)
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning

8100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.56)

TR-20230420-04-D ($7,238.79)
VCGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,034.13)

2000 - Groundwater Conservation
2100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,034.11)
3000 - Groundwater Management

3100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,034.11)

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring
4100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,034.11)
5000 - Groundwater Policy

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 21 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 188 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

5100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,034.11)

6000 - Groundwater Protection
6100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,034.11)
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning

8100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,034.11)

TR-20230420-05-D ($7,313.30)
VCGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.74)

2000 - Groundwater Conservation
2100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.76)
3000 - Groundwater Management

3100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.76)

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring
4100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.76)
5000 - Groundwater Policy

5100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.76)

6000 - Groundwater Protection
6100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.76)
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning

8100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.76)

TR-20230420-06-D ($540.00)
Allison, Bass and Magee, L.L.P

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 22 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 189 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Operating
1000 - Administration

1400 - Administration - Information Management
210 - Legal Services ($540.00)

TR-20230420-08-D ($208.60)
Victoria Advocate

Operating
3000 - Groundwater Management

3100 - Program Implementation
500 - Public Notices and Publications ($208.60)

TR-20230430-02-C $23.09
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $23.09

TR-20230531-02-C $19.22
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $19.22

Prosperity 9448
TR-20221011-02-C $742.83

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $742.83
TR-20221031-01-C $702.91

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 23 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 190 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

0130 - Interest Income $702.91
TR-20221109-01-C $1,303.65

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $1,303.65
TR-20221110-01-C $250.00

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0143 - District Fees - Permitting $250.00
TR-20221123-02-C $5,740.94

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $5,740.94
TR-20221130-01-C $1,115.50

TGCD
Operating

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income $1,115.50
TR-20221208-01-C $6,837.49

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $6,837.49
TR-20221208-02-C $31.16

TGCD
Reserve

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 24 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 191 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $31.16
TR-20221220-01-C $8,126.81

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $8,126.81
TR-20221220-02-C $3,992.22

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $3,992.22
TR-20221231-01-C $1,183.66

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income $1,183.66
TR-20230104-01-C $17,475.26

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $17,475.26
TR-20230111-01-C $35,936.06

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $35,936.06
TR-20230119-01-C $5,301.12

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 25 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 192 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $5,301.12
TR-20230124-01-C $8,422.01

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $8,422.01
TR-20230131-01-C $1,333.81

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income $1,333.81
TR-20230206-01-C $150,201.20

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $150,201.20
TR-20230221-01-C $13,900.16

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $13,900.16
TR-20230228-01-C $1,442.57

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 26 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 193 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

0130 - Interest Income $1,442.57
TR-20230302-01-C $1,948.21

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $1,948.21
TR-20230328-01-C $1,374.35

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0143 - District Fees - Permitting $1,374.35
TR-20230329-01-D ($500,000.00)

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

900 - Miscellaneous ($500,000.00)
TR-20230331-01-C $1,611.76

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income $1,611.76
TR-20230404-01-D ($100,000.00)

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections ($100,000.00)
TR-20230410-01-C $3,088.75

TGCD
Reserve

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 27 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 194 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $3,088.75
TR-20230424-01-C $4,070.62

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $4,070.62
TR-20230430-01-C $862.79

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income $862.79
TR-20230509-01-C $476.72

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $476.72
TR-20230531-01-C $951.66

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income $951.66
Prosperity CD 0515

TR-20230329-01-C $250,000.00
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
900 - Miscellaneous $250,000.00

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 28 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 195 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 202300703-01- Master 7/3/2023: 2:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Prosperity CD 0517
TR-20230329-02-C $250,000.00

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

900 - Miscellaneous $250,000.00
Grand Total $190,710.43

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 29 of 29TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 196 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 197 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 198 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Bank Account Balance Report as of March 31, 2023

Bank Account
Reconciled Bank 
Statement

Fund
Reported Balance as of  

October 1 , 2022
Total Credits Total Debits

Calculated 
Balance

Current 
Reported 

Balance

Unreconciled 
Balance

Prosperity 7512 BS-20230228-02 Operating 78,238.13$                        273.40$              (51,383.83)$        27,127.70$          27,127.70$         -$               

Prosperity 9448 BS-20230228-01 Reserve 691,964.21$                      268,973.68$       (500,000.00)$      460,937.89$        460,937.89$       -$               

Prosperity CD 0515 Reserve -$                                   250,000.00$       -$                    250,000.00$        250,000.00$       -$               

Prosperity CD 0517 Reserve -$                                   250,000.00$       -$                    250,000.00$        250,000.00$       -$               
Total 770,202.34$                      769,247.08$       (551,383.83)$      988,065.59$        988,065.59$       

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Bank Account Balances Report Page 1 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 199 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

FDIC Insurance and Collateral Report as of March 31, 2023

Institution Type CUSIP Description
Safekeeping 
Location

Safekeeping 
Receipt

Credit 
Rating

Market Value

Prosperity Bank FDIC Insurance N/A N/A N/A N/A 250,000.00$     
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WDYL9 FNMA #AS4314 FHLB AA+ 195,995.13$     
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138X6MR3 FNMA CRA #AU6667 FHLB 137,356.23$     
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3133KYUZ0 FR #RB5100 FHLB AA+ 135,219.78$     
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418DZ54 FNMA #MA4363 FHLB AA+ 503,541.03$     
Total 1,222,112.17$  

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Collateral Report Page 2 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 200 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Budget Performance Report as of March 31, 2023
Program Function Category Budget Line Item Budget Actual Performance

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - 
Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections 1000 - Administration:1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration::0120 - Tax Collections::: 267,372.53$               259,969.98$                 (7,402.55)$                    

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - 
Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income 1000 - Administration:1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration::0130 - Interest Income::: 1,500.00$                   7,452.75$                     5,952.75$                     

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - 
Revenue Administration

0143 - District Fees - 
Permitting

1000 - Administration:1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration::0143 - District Fees - 
Permitting:::

1,000.00$                   1,824.35$                     824.35$                        

1000 - Administration
1200 - Administration - 
Election Management

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1200 - Administration - Election Management::210 - Legal Services::: (1,000.00)$                  -$                              1,000.00$                     

1000 - Administration
1200 - Administration - 
Election Management

220 - Professional and 
Technical Services

1000 - Administration:1200 - Administration - Election Management::220 - Professional and 
Technical Services:::

(2,500.00)$                  -$                              2,500.00$                     

1000 - Administration
1200 - Administration - 
Election Management

500 - Public Notices and 
Publications

1000 - Administration:1200 - Administration - Election Management::500 - Public Notices and 
Publications:::

(500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::210 - Legal Services::: (500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

221 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Auditor

1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::221 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Auditor:::

(12,500.00)$                -$                              12,500.00$                   

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

222 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Tax 
Assessor

1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::222 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Tax Assessor:::

(5,000.00)$                  (651.99)$                       4,348.01$                     

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

223 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Appraisal District

1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::223 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Appraisal District:::

(5,000.00)$                  (3,004.57)$                    1,995.43$                     

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

224 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Accountant

1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::224 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Accountant:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

500 - Public Notices and 
Publications

1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::500 - Public Notices and 
Publications:::

(1,000.00)$                  (787.40)$                       212.60$                        

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::210 - Legal Services::: (500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 

410 - Equipment 1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::410 - Equipment::: (2,000.00)$                  -$                              2,000.00$                     

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 

420 - Software 1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::420 - Software::: (930.00)$                     (230.24)$                       699.76$                        

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 

430 - Technology 
Services

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::430 - Technology 
Services:::

(100.00)$                     (176.36)$                       (76.36)$                         

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 
Management

432 - Technology 
Services - Workflow 
System

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::432 - Technology 
Services - Workflow System:::

(1,200.00)$                  (543.66)$                       656.34$                        

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 
Management

434 - Technology 
Services - Website and 
Email System

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::434 - Technology 
Services - Website and Email System:::

(250.00)$                     (1,098.04)$                    (848.04)$                       

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 
Management

435 - Technology 
Services - Phone 
System

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::435 - Technology 
Services - Phone System:::

(2,000.00)$                  (468.08)$                       1,531.92$                     

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 
Management

436 - Technology 
Services - Internet

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::436 - Technology 
Services - Internet:::

(2,400.00)$                  (21.66)$                         2,378.34$                     

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 

450 - Maintenance and 
Repair

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::450 - Maintenance and 
Repair:::

(500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1500 - Administration - 
Meeting Management

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1500 - Administration - Meeting Management::210 - Legal Services::: (3,000.00)$                  (180.00)$                       2,820.00$                     

1000 - Administration
1500 - Administration - 
Meeting Management

500 - Public Notices and 
Publications

1000 - Administration:1500 - Administration - Meeting Management::500 - Public Notices and 
Publications:::

(200.00)$                     -$                              200.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::210 - Legal Services::: (750.00)$                     -$                              750.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - VCGCD:::

(11,237.50)$                (5,107.18)$                    6,130.32$                     

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

230 - Insurance and 
Bonds

1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::230 - Insurance and 
Bonds:::

(1,500.00)$                  (864.36)$                       635.64$                        

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

310 - Supplies 1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::310 - Supplies::: (400.00)$                     (1,535.41)$                    (1,135.41)$                    

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Performance - FY22 Page 3 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 201 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Budget Performance Report as of March 31, 2023
Program Function Category Budget Line Item Budget Actual Performance

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps

1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::315 - Certified Mail 
and Stamps:::

(250.00)$                     -$                              250.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

900 - Miscellaneous 1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::900 - Miscellaneous::: (500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1900 - Administration - 
Records Management

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1900 - Administration - Records Management::210 - Legal Services::: (2,000.00)$                  -$                              2,000.00$                     

1000 - Administration
1900 - Administration - 
Records Management

433 - Technology 
Services - Record 
Archival System

1000 - Administration:1900 - Administration - Records Management::433 - Technology Services - 
Record Archival System:::

(2,000.00)$                  -$                              2,000.00$                     

2000 - Groundwater 
Conservation

2100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 2000 - Groundwater Conservation:2100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

2000 - Groundwater 
Conservation

2100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

2000 - Groundwater Conservation:2100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

2000 - Groundwater 
Conservation

2100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

2000 - Groundwater Conservation:2100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - VCGCD:::

(10,237.50)$                (5,107.18)$                    5,130.32$                     

2000 - Groundwater 
Conservation

2100 - Program 
Implementation

363 - Sponsorships and 
Cost-Sharing - 
Conservation Promotion

2000 - Groundwater Conservation:2100 - Program Implementation::363 - Sponsorships and Cost-
Sharing - Conservation Promotion:::

(3,200.00)$                  (2,006.48)$                    1,193.52$                     

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: (15,000.00)$                -$                              15,000.00$                   

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Hydrogeologist

3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Hydrogeologist:::

(10,000.00)$                (2,500.00)$                    7,500.00$                     

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - VCGCD:::

(10,737.50)$                (5,107.18)$                    5,630.32$                     

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

310 - Supplies 3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::310 - Supplies::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps

3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps:::

(250.00)$                     -$                              250.00$                        

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

500 - Public Notices and 
Publications

3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::500 - Public Notices and 
Publications:::

(2,000.00)$                  -$                              2,000.00$                     

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

220 - Professional and 
Technical Services

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::220 - Professional and 
Technical Services:::

(2,000.00)$                  (233.89)$                       1,766.11$                     

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Hydrogeologist

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Hydrogeologist:::

(6,000.00)$                  -$                              6,000.00$                     

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - VCGCD:::

(10,737.50)$                (5,107.18)$                    5,630.32$                     

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

310 - Supplies 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::310 - Supplies::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps:::

(250.00)$                     -$                              250.00$                        

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

410 - Equipment 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::410 - Equipment::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

450 - Maintenance and 
Repair

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::450 - Maintenance and Repair::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

900 - Miscellaneous 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::900 - Miscellaneous::: (1,000.00)$                  -$                              1,000.00$                     

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4200 - Monitoring 
Network Development

210 - Legal Services 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4200 - Monitoring Network Development::210 - Legal Services::: (500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4200 - Monitoring 
Network Development

410 - Equipment 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4200 - Monitoring Network Development::410 - Equipment::: (20,000.00)$                -$                              20,000.00$                   

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4200 - Monitoring 
Network Development

450 - Maintenance and 
Repair

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4200 - Monitoring Network Development::450 - Maintenance and 
Repair:::

(2,000.00)$                  -$                              2,000.00$                     

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Performance - FY22 Page 4 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 202 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Budget Performance Report as of March 31, 2023
Program Function Category Budget Line Item Budget Actual Performance
5000 - Groundwater 
Policy

5100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 5000 - Groundwater Policy:5100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: (5,000.00)$                  -$                              5,000.00$                     

5000 - Groundwater 
Policy

5100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

5000 - Groundwater Policy:5100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and Administrative 
Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

5000 - Groundwater 
Policy

5100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

5000 - Groundwater Policy:5100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and Technical 
Services - VCGCD:::

(10,237.50)$                (5,107.18)$                    5,130.32$                     

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: (2,500.00)$                  -$                              2,500.00$                     

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Hydrogeologist

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::225 - Professional and Technical 
Services - Hydrogeologist:::

(2,500.00)$                  -$                              2,500.00$                     

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and Technical 
Services - VCGCD:::

(10,737.50)$                (5,107.18)$                    5,630.32$                     

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

310 - Supplies 6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::310 - Supplies::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps:::

(100.00)$                     -$                              100.00$                        

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

361 - Sponsorships and 
Cost-Sharing - Well 
Plugging

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::361 - Sponsorships and Cost-
Sharing - Well Plugging:::

(500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

362 - Sponsorships and 
Cost-Sharing - Borehole 
Logging

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::362 - Sponsorships and Cost-
Sharing - Borehole Logging:::

(2,500.00)$                  -$                              2,500.00$                     

7000 - Groundwater 
Research

7100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

7000 - Groundwater Research:7100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

7000 - Groundwater 
Research

7100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

7000 - Groundwater Research:7100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and Technical 
Services - VCGCD:::

(10,237.50)$                -$                              10,237.50$                   

8000 - Groundwater 
Resource Planning

8100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning:8100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: (1,000.00)$                  -$                              1,000.00$                     

8000 - Groundwater 
Resource Planning

8100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning:8100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

8000 - Groundwater 
Resource Planning

8100 - Program 
Implementation

225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Hydrogeologist

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning:8100 - Program Implementation::225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Hydrogeologist:::

(5,000.00)$                  -$                              5,000.00$                     

8000 - Groundwater 
Resource Planning

8100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning:8100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - VCGCD:::

(10,237.50)$                (6,438.61)$                    3,798.89$                     

8000 - Groundwater 
Resource Planning

8100 - Program 
Implementation

500 - Public Notices and 
Publications

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning:8100 - Program Implementation::500 - Public Notices 
and Publications:::

(1,200.00)$                  -$                              1,200.00$                     

54,492.53$                 217,863.25$                 

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Performance - FY22 Page 5 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 203 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Budget Performance related to Revenue Function Report as of March 31, 2023

Row Labels Sum of Budget Sum of Actual Sum of Performance
1000 - Administration 210,155.03$    254,578.13$   44,423.10$                 
2000 - Groundwater Conservation (13,437.50)$     (7,113.66)$      6,323.84$                   
3000 - Groundwater Management (37,987.50)$     (7,607.18)$      30,380.32$                 
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring (42,487.50)$     (5,341.07)$      37,146.43$                 
5000 - Groundwater Policy (15,237.50)$     (5,107.18)$      10,130.32$                 
6000 - Groundwater Protection (18,837.50)$     (5,107.18)$      13,730.32$                 
7000 - Groundwater Research (10,237.50)$     -$                10,237.50$                 
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning (17,437.50)$     (6,438.61)$      10,998.89$                 
Grand Total 54,492.53$      217,863.25$   163,370.72$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Func. Performance - FY22 Page 6 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 204 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Budget Performance by Category Report as of March 31, 2023

Row Labels Sum of Budget Sum of Actual Sum of Performance
0120 - Tax Collections 267,372.53$    259,969.98$   (7,402.55)$                 
0130 - Interest Income 1,500.00$        7,452.75$       5,952.75$                   
0143 - District Fees - Permitting 1,000.00$        1,824.35$       824.35$                      
210 - Legal Services (31,750.00)$     (180.00)$         31,570.00$                 
215 - Legislative and Administrative Action Representation Services -$                 -$                -$                           
220 - Professional and Technical Services (4,500.00)$       (233.89)$         4,266.11$                   
221 - Professional and Technical Services - Auditor (12,500.00)$     -$                12,500.00$                 
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor (5,000.00)$       (651.99)$         4,348.01$                   
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District (5,000.00)$       (3,004.57)$      1,995.43$                   
224 - Professional and Technical Services - Accountant -$                 -$                -$                           
225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist (23,500.00)$     (2,500.00)$      21,000.00$                 
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD (84,400.00)$     (37,081.69)$    47,318.31$                 
230 - Insurance and Bonds (1,500.00)$       (864.36)$         635.64$                      
310 - Supplies (400.00)$          (1,535.41)$      (1,135.41)$                 
315 - Certified Mail and Stamps (850.00)$          -$                850.00$                      
361 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Well Plugging (500.00)$          -$                500.00$                      
362 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Borehole Logging (2,500.00)$       -$                2,500.00$                   
363 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Conservation Promotion (3,200.00)$       (2,006.48)$      1,193.52$                   
410 - Equipment (22,000.00)$     -$                22,000.00$                 
420 - Software (930.00)$          (230.24)$         699.76$                      
430 - Technology Services (100.00)$          (483.49)$         (383.49)$                    
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System (1,200.00)$       (543.66)$         656.34$                      
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (2,000.00)$       -$                2,000.00$                   
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (250.00)$          (790.91)$         (540.91)$                    
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (2,000.00)$       (478.91)$         1,521.09$                   
436 - Technology Services - Internet (2,400.00)$       (10.83)$           2,389.17$                   
450 - Maintenance and Repair (2,500.00)$       -$                2,500.00$                   
500 - Public Notices and Publications (4,900.00)$       (787.40)$         4,112.60$                   
900 - Miscellaneous (1,500.00)$       -$                1,500.00$                   
Grand Total 54,492.53$      217,863.25$   163,370.72$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Cate. Performance - FY22 Page 7 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 205 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Bank Account, Transaction Type

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount
Prosperity 7512 (51,110.43)$               

Credit 273.40$                      
Debit (51,383.83)$               

Prosperity 9448 (231,026.32)$             
Credit 268,973.68$               
Debit (500,000.00)$             

Prosperity CD 0515 250,000.00$               
Credit 250,000.00$               

Prosperity CD 0517 250,000.00$               
Credit 250,000.00$               

Grand Total 217,863.25$               

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q1 2023 

Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

202320222021

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary by Account Page 8 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 206 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Budget Program, Function, Category

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0120 - Tax Collections $259,969.98
0130 - Interest Income $7,452.75
0143 - District Fees - Permitting $1,824.35

1300 - Administration - Financial Management
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor ($651.99)
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District ($3,004.57)
500 - Public Notices and Publications ($787.40)

1400 - Administration - Information Management
420 - Software ($230.24)
430 - Technology Services ($176.36)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($543.66)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($1,098.04)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($468.08)
436 - Technology Services - Internet ($21.66)

1500 - Administration - Meeting Management
210 - Legal Services ($180.00)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($5,107.18)
230 - Insurance and Bonds ($864.36)
310 - Supplies ($1,535.41)
900 - Miscellaneous $0.00

2000 - Groundwater Conservation
2100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($5,107.18)
363 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Conservation Promotion ($2,006.48)

3000 - Groundwater Management
3100 - Program Implementation

225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist ($2,500.00)

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q1 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary by Budget Page 9 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 207 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Budget Program, Function, Category

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q1 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($5,107.18)
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
220 - Professional and Technical Services ($233.89)
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($5,107.18)

5000 - Groundwater Policy
5100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($5,107.18)
6000 - Groundwater Protection

6100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($5,107.18)

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning
8100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($6,438.61)
Grand Total $217,863.25

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary by Budget Page 10 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 208 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount
Prosperity 7512

TR-20220923-04-D ($1,532.14)
Jackson Central Appraisal District

Operating
1000 - Administration

1300 - Administration - Financial Management
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District ($1,532.14)

TR-20221011-01-C $200.00
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0143 - District Fees - Permitting $200.00

TR-20221021-01-D ($2,006.48)
VCGCD

Operating
2000 - Groundwater Conservation

2100 - Program Implementation
363 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Conservation Promotion ($2,006.48)

TR-20221021-02-D ($2,500.00)
VCGCD

Operating
3000 - Groundwater Management

3100 - Program Implementation
225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist ($2,500.00)

TR-20221021-03-D ($864.36)
TML 

Operating
1000 - Administration

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
230 - Insurance and Bonds ($864.36)

TR-20221021-04-D ($1,002.20)
Prosperity Bank

Operating

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q1 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 11 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 209 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q1 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - Information Management

420 - Software ($57.56)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($121.72)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($63.41)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
310 - Supplies ($674.23)

Prosperity Bank Visa 
Operating

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - Information Management

432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($85.28)
TR-20221021-05-D ($6,998.87)

VCGCD
Operating

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)
2000 - Groundwater Conservation

2100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)

3000 - Groundwater Management
3100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)

5000 - Groundwater Policy
5100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)
6000 - Groundwater Protection

6100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 12 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 210 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q1 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

8100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.83)

TR-20221021-06-D ($6,911.44)
VCGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)

2000 - Groundwater Conservation
2100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)
3000 - Groundwater Management

3100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring
4100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)
5000 - Groundwater Policy

5100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)

6000 - Groundwater Protection
6100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning

8100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.34)

TR-20221031-02-C $16.55
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $16.55

TR-20221123-01-D ($364.09)
Prosperity Bank Visa 

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 13 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 211 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q1 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Operating
1000 - Administration

1400 - Administration - Information Management
430 - Technology Services ($57.56)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($85.28)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($24.65)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($80.57)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
310 - Supplies ($116.03)

TR-20221123-03-D ($125.98)
Pace Analytical 

Operating
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
220 - Professional and Technical Services ($125.98)

TR-20221123-04-D ($107.91)
Pace Analytical 

Operating
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
220 - Professional and Technical Services ($107.91)

TR-20221123-05-D ($651.99)
JCTAC 

Operating
1000 - Administration

1300 - Administration - Financial Management
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor ($651.99)

TR-20221130-02-C $11.89
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $11.89

TR-20221220-03-C $10.86

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 14 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 212 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q1 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $10.86
TR-20221222-01-D ($254.06)

Prosperity Bank Visa 
Operating

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - Information Management

420 - Software ($57.56)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($85.28)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($10.83)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($80.57)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
310 - Supplies ($19.82)

TR-20221231-02-C $11.75
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $11.75

TR-20230119-01-D ($927.78)
Prosperity Bank Visa 

Operating
1000 - Administration

1400 - Administration - Information Management
420 - Software ($57.56)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($95.94)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($633.71)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($80.57)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
310 - Supplies ($60.00)

TR-20230123-01-D ($6.00)

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 15 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 213 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q1 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Jackson County Clerk 
Operating

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - Financial Management

500 - Public Notices and Publications ($6.00)
TR-20230123-02-D ($1,472.43)

Jackson Central Appraisal District
Operating

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - Financial Management

223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District ($1,472.43)
TR-20230123-03-D ($7,309.79)

VCGCD
Operating

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)
2000 - Groundwater Conservation

2100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)

3000 - Groundwater Management
3100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)

5000 - Groundwater Policy
5100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)
6000 - Groundwater Protection

6100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning
8100 - Program Implementation

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 16 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 214 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q1 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.23)
TR-20230123-04-D ($7,266.98)

VCGCD
Operating

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)
2000 - Groundwater Conservation

2100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)

3000 - Groundwater Management
3100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)

5000 - Groundwater Policy
5100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)
6000 - Groundwater Protection

6100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning
8100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)
TR-20230123-05-D ($7,263.13)

VCGCD
Operating

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)
2000 - Groundwater Conservation

2100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 17 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 215 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q1 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

3000 - Groundwater Management
3100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)

5000 - Groundwater Policy
5100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)
6000 - Groundwater Protection

6100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning
8100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)
TR-20230123-06-D ($961.40)

Allison, Bass and Magee, L.L.P
Operating

1000 - Administration
1500 - Administration - Meeting Management

210 - Legal Services ($180.00)
Victoria Advocate

Operating
1000 - Administration

1300 - Administration - Financial Management
500 - Public Notices and Publications ($781.40)

TR-20230123-07-D ($1,331.48)
VCGCD

Operating
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning

8100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,331.48)

TR-20230131-02-C $10.71
TGCD

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 18 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 216 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q1 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $10.71

TR-20230221-01-D ($911.14)
Prosperity Bank 

Operating
1000 - Administration

1400 - Administration - Information Management
420 - Software ($57.56)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($95.94)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($81.48)
436 - Technology Services - Internet ($10.83)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
310 - Supplies ($665.33)

TR-20230228-02-C $5.77
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $5.77

TR-20230326-01-D ($614.18)
Prosperity Bank 

Operating
1000 - Administration

1400 - Administration - Information Management
430 - Technology Services ($118.80)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($95.94)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($307.13)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($81.48)
436 - Technology Services - Internet ($10.83)

TR-20230331-02-C $5.87
TGCD

Operating

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 19 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 217 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q1 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income $5.87
Prosperity 9448

TR-20221011-02-C $742.83
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0120 - Tax Collections $742.83

TR-20221031-01-C $702.91
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $702.91

TR-20221109-01-C $1,303.65
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0120 - Tax Collections $1,303.65

TR-20221110-01-C $250.00
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0143 - District Fees - Permitting $250.00

TR-20221123-02-C $5,740.94
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0120 - Tax Collections $5,740.94

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 20 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 218 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q1 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

TR-20221130-01-C $1,115.50
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $1,115.50

TR-20221208-01-C $6,837.49
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0120 - Tax Collections $6,837.49

TR-20221208-02-C $31.16
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0120 - Tax Collections $31.16

TR-20221220-01-C $8,126.81
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0120 - Tax Collections $8,126.81

TR-20221220-02-C $3,992.22
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0120 - Tax Collections $3,992.22

TR-20221231-01-C $1,183.66
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 21 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 219 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q1 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $1,183.66

TR-20230104-01-C $17,475.26
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0120 - Tax Collections $17,475.26

TR-20230111-01-C $35,936.06
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0120 - Tax Collections $35,936.06

TR-20230119-01-C $5,301.12
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0120 - Tax Collections $5,301.12

TR-20230124-01-C $8,422.01
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0120 - Tax Collections $8,422.01

TR-20230131-01-C $1,333.81
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $1,333.81

TR-20230206-01-C $150,201.20
TGCD

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 22 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 220 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q1 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0120 - Tax Collections $150,201.20

TR-20230221-01-C $13,900.16
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0120 - Tax Collections $13,900.16

TR-20230228-01-C $1,442.57
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $1,442.57

TR-20230302-01-C $1,948.21
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0120 - Tax Collections $1,948.21

TR-20230328-01-C $1,374.35
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0143 - District Fees - Permitting $1,374.35

TR-20230329-01-D ($500,000.00)
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
900 - Miscellaneous ($500,000.00)

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 23 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 221 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 5/11/2023: 1:41 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q1 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

TR-20230331-01-C $1,611.76
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $1,611.76

Prosperity CD 0515
TR-20230329-01-C $250,000.00

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

900 - Miscellaneous $250,000.00
Prosperity CD 0517

TR-20230329-02-C $250,000.00
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
900 - Miscellaneous $250,000.00

Grand Total $217,863.25

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 24 of 24TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 222 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 223 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 224 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Bank Account Balance Report as of April 30, 2023

Bank Account
Reconciled Bank 
Statement

Fund
Reported Balance as of  

October 1 , 2022
Total Credits Total Debits

Calculated 
Balance

Current 
Reported 

Balance

Unreconciled 
Balance

Prosperity 7512 BS-20230430-02 Operating 78,238.13$                        100,296.49$       (86,955.82)$        91,578.80$          91,578.80$         -$               

Prosperity 9448 BS-20230430-01 Reserve 691,964.21$                      276,995.84$       (600,000.00)$      368,960.05$        368,960.05$       -$               

Prosperity CD 0515 BS-20230331-03 Reserve -$                                   250,000.00$       -$                    250,000.00$        250,000.00$       -$               

Prosperity CD 0517 BS-20230331-04 Reserve -$                                   250,000.00$       -$                    250,000.00$        250,000.00$       -$               
Total 770,202.34$                      877,292.33$       (686,955.82)$      960,538.85$        960,538.85$       

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Bank Account Balances Report Page 1 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 225 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

FDIC Insurance and Collateral Report as of April 30, 2023

Institution Type CUSIP Description
Safekeeping 
Location

Safekeeping 
Receipt

Credit 
Rating

Market Value

Prosperity Bank FDIC Insurance N/A N/A N/A N/A 250,000.00$     
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WDYL9 FNMA #AS4314 FHLB AA+ 189,082.86$     
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138X6MR3 FNMA CRA #AU6667 FHLB 134,017.60$     
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3133KYUZ0 FR #RB5100 FHLB AA+ 132,408.46$     
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418DZ54 FNMA #MA4363 FHLB AA+ 498,985.98$     
Total 1,204,494.90$  

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Collateral Report Page 2 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 226 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Budget Performance Report as of April 30, 2023
Program Function Category Budget Line Item Budget Actual Performance

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - 
Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections 1000 - Administration:1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration::0120 - Tax Collections::: 267,372.53$               267,129.35$                 (243.18)$                       

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - 
Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income 1000 - Administration:1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration::0130 - Interest Income::: 1,500.00$                   8,338.63$                     6,838.63$                     

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - 
Revenue Administration

0143 - District Fees - 
Permitting

1000 - Administration:1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration::0143 - District Fees - 
Permitting:::

1,000.00$                   1,824.35$                     824.35$                        

1000 - Administration
1200 - Administration - 
Election Management

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1200 - Administration - Election Management::210 - Legal Services::: (1,000.00)$                  -$                              1,000.00$                     

1000 - Administration
1200 - Administration - 
Election Management

220 - Professional and 
Technical Services

1000 - Administration:1200 - Administration - Election Management::220 - Professional and 
Technical Services:::

(2,500.00)$                  -$                              2,500.00$                     

1000 - Administration
1200 - Administration - 
Election Management

500 - Public Notices and 
Publications

1000 - Administration:1200 - Administration - Election Management::500 - Public Notices and 
Publications:::

(500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::210 - Legal Services::: (500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

221 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Auditor

1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::221 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Auditor:::

(12,500.00)$                -$                              12,500.00$                   

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

222 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Tax 
Assessor

1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::222 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Tax Assessor:::

(5,000.00)$                  (651.99)$                       4,348.01$                     

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

223 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Appraisal District

1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::223 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Appraisal District:::

(5,000.00)$                  (3,004.57)$                    1,995.43$                     

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

224 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Accountant

1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::224 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Accountant:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - 
Financial Management

500 - Public Notices and 
Publications

1000 - Administration:1300 - Administration - Financial Management::500 - Public Notices and 
Publications:::

(1,000.00)$                  (787.40)$                       212.60$                        

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::210 - Legal Services::: (500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 

410 - Equipment 1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::410 - Equipment::: (2,000.00)$                  -$                              2,000.00$                     

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 

420 - Software 1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::420 - Software::: (930.00)$                     (230.24)$                       699.76$                        

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 

430 - Technology 
Services

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::430 - Technology 
Services:::

(100.00)$                     (176.36)$                       (76.36)$                         

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 
Management

432 - Technology 
Services - Workflow 
System

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::432 - Technology 
Services - Workflow System:::

(1,200.00)$                  (543.66)$                       656.34$                        

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 
Management

434 - Technology 
Services - Website and 
Email System

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::434 - Technology 
Services - Website and Email System:::

(250.00)$                     (1,098.04)$                    (848.04)$                       

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 
Management

435 - Technology 
Services - Phone 
System

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::435 - Technology 
Services - Phone System:::

(2,000.00)$                  (468.08)$                       1,531.92$                     

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 
Management

436 - Technology 
Services - Internet

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::436 - Technology 
Services - Internet:::

(2,400.00)$                  (21.66)$                         2,378.34$                     

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - 
Information 

450 - Maintenance and 
Repair

1000 - Administration:1400 - Administration - Information Management::450 - Maintenance and 
Repair:::

(500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1500 - Administration - 
Meeting Management

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1500 - Administration - Meeting Management::210 - Legal Services::: (3,000.00)$                  (180.00)$                       2,820.00$                     

1000 - Administration
1500 - Administration - 
Meeting Management

500 - Public Notices and 
Publications

1000 - Administration:1500 - Administration - Meeting Management::500 - Public Notices and 
Publications:::

(200.00)$                     -$                              200.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::210 - Legal Services::: (750.00)$                     -$                              750.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - VCGCD:::

(11,237.50)$                (8,224.59)$                    3,012.91$                     

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

230 - Insurance and 
Bonds

1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::230 - Insurance and 
Bonds:::

(1,500.00)$                  (864.36)$                       635.64$                        

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

310 - Supplies 1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::310 - Supplies::: (400.00)$                     (1,535.41)$                    (1,135.41)$                    

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Performance - FY22 Page 3 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 227 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Budget Performance Report as of April 30, 2023
Program Function Category Budget Line Item Budget Actual Performance

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps

1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::315 - Certified Mail 
and Stamps:::

(250.00)$                     -$                              250.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - 
Organizational 
Management

900 - Miscellaneous 1000 - Administration:1700 - Administration - Organizational Management::900 - Miscellaneous::: (500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

1000 - Administration
1900 - Administration - 
Records Management

210 - Legal Services 1000 - Administration:1900 - Administration - Records Management::210 - Legal Services::: (2,000.00)$                  -$                              2,000.00$                     

1000 - Administration
1900 - Administration - 
Records Management

433 - Technology 
Services - Record 
Archival System

1000 - Administration:1900 - Administration - Records Management::433 - Technology Services - 
Record Archival System:::

(2,000.00)$                  -$                              2,000.00$                     

2000 - Groundwater 
Conservation

2100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 2000 - Groundwater Conservation:2100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

2000 - Groundwater 
Conservation

2100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

2000 - Groundwater Conservation:2100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

2000 - Groundwater 
Conservation

2100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

2000 - Groundwater Conservation:2100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - VCGCD:::

(10,237.50)$                (8,224.61)$                    2,012.89$                     

2000 - Groundwater 
Conservation

2100 - Program 
Implementation

363 - Sponsorships and 
Cost-Sharing - 
Conservation Promotion

2000 - Groundwater Conservation:2100 - Program Implementation::363 - Sponsorships and Cost-
Sharing - Conservation Promotion:::

(3,200.00)$                  (2,006.48)$                    1,193.52$                     

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: (15,000.00)$                -$                              15,000.00$                   

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Hydrogeologist

3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Hydrogeologist:::

(10,000.00)$                (10,250.00)$                  (250.00)$                       

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - VCGCD:::

(10,737.50)$                (8,224.61)$                    2,512.89$                     

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

310 - Supplies 3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::310 - Supplies::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps

3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps:::

(250.00)$                     -$                              250.00$                        

3000 - Groundwater 
Management

3100 - Program 
Implementation

500 - Public Notices and 
Publications

3000 - Groundwater Management:3100 - Program Implementation::500 - Public Notices and 
Publications:::

(2,000.00)$                  -$                              2,000.00$                     

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

220 - Professional and 
Technical Services

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::220 - Professional and 
Technical Services:::

(2,000.00)$                  (233.89)$                       1,766.11$                     

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Hydrogeologist

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Hydrogeologist:::

(6,000.00)$                  (6,000.00)$                    -$                              

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - VCGCD:::

(10,737.50)$                (8,224.61)$                    2,512.89$                     

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

310 - Supplies 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::310 - Supplies::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps:::

(250.00)$                     -$                              250.00$                        

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

410 - Equipment 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::410 - Equipment::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

450 - Maintenance and 
Repair

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::450 - Maintenance and Repair::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4100 - Program 
Implementation

900 - Miscellaneous 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4100 - Program Implementation::900 - Miscellaneous::: (1,000.00)$                  -$                              1,000.00$                     

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4200 - Monitoring 
Network Development

210 - Legal Services 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4200 - Monitoring Network Development::210 - Legal Services::: (500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4200 - Monitoring 
Network Development

410 - Equipment 4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4200 - Monitoring Network Development::410 - Equipment::: (20,000.00)$                -$                              20,000.00$                   

4000 - Groundwater 
Monitoring

4200 - Monitoring 
Network Development

450 - Maintenance and 
Repair

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring:4200 - Monitoring Network Development::450 - Maintenance and 
Repair:::

(2,000.00)$                  -$                              2,000.00$                     

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Performance - FY22 Page 4 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 228 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Budget Performance Report as of April 30, 2023
Program Function Category Budget Line Item Budget Actual Performance
5000 - Groundwater 
Policy

5100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 5000 - Groundwater Policy:5100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: (5,000.00)$                  -$                              5,000.00$                     

5000 - Groundwater 
Policy

5100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

5000 - Groundwater Policy:5100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and Administrative 
Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

5000 - Groundwater 
Policy

5100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

5000 - Groundwater Policy:5100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and Technical 
Services - VCGCD:::

(10,237.50)$                (8,224.61)$                    2,012.89$                     

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: (2,500.00)$                  -$                              2,500.00$                     

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Hydrogeologist

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::225 - Professional and Technical 
Services - Hydrogeologist:::

(2,500.00)$                  -$                              2,500.00$                     

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and Technical 
Services - VCGCD:::

(10,737.50)$                (8,224.61)$                    2,512.89$                     

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

310 - Supplies 6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::310 - Supplies::: -$                            -$                              -$                              

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::315 - Certified Mail and 
Stamps:::

(100.00)$                     -$                              100.00$                        

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

361 - Sponsorships and 
Cost-Sharing - Well 
Plugging

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::361 - Sponsorships and Cost-
Sharing - Well Plugging:::

(500.00)$                     -$                              500.00$                        

6000 - Groundwater 
Protection

6100 - Program 
Implementation

362 - Sponsorships and 
Cost-Sharing - Borehole 
Logging

6000 - Groundwater Protection:6100 - Program Implementation::362 - Sponsorships and Cost-
Sharing - Borehole Logging:::

(2,500.00)$                  -$                              2,500.00$                     

7000 - Groundwater 
Research

7100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

7000 - Groundwater Research:7100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

7000 - Groundwater 
Research

7100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

7000 - Groundwater Research:7100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and Technical 
Services - VCGCD:::

(10,237.50)$                -$                              10,237.50$                   

8000 - Groundwater 
Resource Planning

8100 - Program 
Implementation

210 - Legal Services 8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning:8100 - Program Implementation::210 - Legal Services::: (1,000.00)$                  -$                              1,000.00$                     

8000 - Groundwater 
Resource Planning

8100 - Program 
Implementation

215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action 
Representation Services

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning:8100 - Program Implementation::215 - Legislative and 
Administrative Action Representation Services:::

-$                            -$                              -$                              

8000 - Groundwater 
Resource Planning

8100 - Program 
Implementation

225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
Hydrogeologist

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning:8100 - Program Implementation::225 - Professional and 
Technical Services - Hydrogeologist:::

(5,000.00)$                  -$                              5,000.00$                     

8000 - Groundwater 
Resource Planning

8100 - Program 
Implementation

227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - 
VCGCD

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning:8100 - Program Implementation::227 - Professional and 
Technical Services - VCGCD:::

(10,237.50)$                (9,556.04)$                    681.46$                        

8000 - Groundwater 
Resource Planning

8100 - Program 
Implementation

500 - Public Notices and 
Publications

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning:8100 - Program Implementation::500 - Public Notices 
and Publications:::

(1,200.00)$                  -$                              1,200.00$                     

54,492.53$                 190,336.51$                 

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Performance - FY22 Page 5 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 229 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Budget Performance related to Revenue Function Report as of April 30, 2023

Row Labels Sum of Budget Sum of Actual Sum of Performance
1000 - Administration 210,155.03$    259,505.97$   49,350.94$                 
2000 - Groundwater Conservation (13,437.50)$     (10,231.09)$    3,206.41$                   
3000 - Groundwater Management (37,987.50)$     (17,599.61)$    20,387.89$                 
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring (42,487.50)$     (15,333.50)$    27,154.00$                 
5000 - Groundwater Policy (15,237.50)$     (8,224.61)$      7,012.89$                   
6000 - Groundwater Protection (18,837.50)$     (8,224.61)$      10,612.89$                 
7000 - Groundwater Research (10,237.50)$     -$                10,237.50$                 
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning (17,437.50)$     (9,556.04)$      7,881.46$                   
Grand Total 54,492.53$      190,336.51$   135,843.98$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Func. Performance - FY22 Page 6 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 230 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Budget Performance by Category Report as of April 30, 2023

Row Labels Sum of Budget Sum of Actual Sum of Performance
0120 - Tax Collections 267,372.53$    267,129.35$   (243.18)$                    
0130 - Interest Income 1,500.00$        8,338.63$       6,838.63$                   
0143 - District Fees - Permitting 1,000.00$        1,824.35$       824.35$                      
210 - Legal Services (31,750.00)$     (180.00)$         31,570.00$                 
215 - Legislative and Administrative Action Representation Services -$                 -$                -$                           
220 - Professional and Technical Services (4,500.00)$       (233.89)$         4,266.11$                   
221 - Professional and Technical Services - Auditor (12,500.00)$     -$                12,500.00$                 
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor (5,000.00)$       (651.99)$         4,348.01$                   
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District (5,000.00)$       (3,004.57)$      1,995.43$                   
224 - Professional and Technical Services - Accountant -$                 -$                -$                           
225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist (23,500.00)$     (16,250.00)$    7,250.00$                   
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD (84,400.00)$     (58,903.68)$    25,496.32$                 
230 - Insurance and Bonds (1,500.00)$       (864.36)$         635.64$                      
310 - Supplies (400.00)$          (1,535.41)$      (1,135.41)$                 
315 - Certified Mail and Stamps (850.00)$          -$                850.00$                      
361 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Well Plugging (500.00)$          -$                500.00$                      
362 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Borehole Logging (2,500.00)$       -$                2,500.00$                   
363 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Conservation Promotion (3,200.00)$       (2,006.48)$      1,193.52$                   
410 - Equipment (22,000.00)$     -$                22,000.00$                 
420 - Software (930.00)$          (230.24)$         699.76$                      
430 - Technology Services (100.00)$          (176.36)$         (76.36)$                      
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System (1,200.00)$       (543.66)$         656.34$                      
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (2,000.00)$       -$                2,000.00$                   
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (250.00)$          (1,098.04)$      (848.04)$                    
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (2,000.00)$       (468.08)$         1,531.92$                   
436 - Technology Services - Internet (2,400.00)$       (21.66)$           2,378.34$                   
450 - Maintenance and Repair (2,500.00)$       -$                2,500.00$                   
500 - Public Notices and Publications (4,900.00)$       (787.40)$         4,112.60$                   
900 - Miscellaneous (1,500.00)$       -$                1,500.00$                   
Grand Total 54,492.53$      190,336.51$   135,843.98$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Cate. Performance - FY22 Page 7 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 231 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Bank Account, Transaction Type

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount
Prosperity 7512 13,340.67$                 

Credit 100,296.49$               
Debit (86,955.82)$               

Prosperity 9448 (323,004.16)$             
Credit 276,995.84$               
Debit (600,000.00)$             

Prosperity CD 0515 250,000.00$               
Credit 250,000.00$               

Prosperity CD 0517 250,000.00$               
Credit 250,000.00$               

Grand Total 190,336.51$               

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

202320222021

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary by Account Page 8 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 232 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Budget Program, Function, Category

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0120 - Tax Collections $267,129.35
0130 - Interest Income $8,338.63
0143 - District Fees - Permitting $1,824.35

1300 - Administration - Financial Management
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor ($651.99)
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District ($3,004.57)
500 - Public Notices and Publications ($787.40)

1400 - Administration - Information Management
420 - Software ($230.24)
430 - Technology Services ($176.36)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($543.66)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($1,098.04)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($468.08)
436 - Technology Services - Internet ($21.66)

1500 - Administration - Meeting Management
210 - Legal Services ($180.00)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($8,224.59)
230 - Insurance and Bonds ($864.36)
310 - Supplies ($1,535.41)
900 - Miscellaneous $0.00

2000 - Groundwater Conservation
2100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($8,224.61)
363 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Conservation Promotion ($2,006.48)

3000 - Groundwater Management
3100 - Program Implementation

225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist ($10,250.00)

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary by Budget Page 9 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 233 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Budget Program, Function, Category

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($8,224.61)
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
220 - Professional and Technical Services ($233.89)
225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist ($6,000.00)
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($8,224.61)

5000 - Groundwater Policy
5100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($8,224.61)
6000 - Groundwater Protection

6100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($8,224.61)

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning
8100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($9,556.04)
Grand Total $190,336.51

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary by Budget Page 10 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 234 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount
Prosperity 7512

TR-20220923-04-D ($1,532.14)
Jackson Central Appraisal District

Operating
1000 - Administration

1300 - Administration - Financial Management
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District ($1,532.14)

TR-20221011-01-C $200.00
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0143 - District Fees - Permitting $200.00

TR-20221021-01-D ($2,006.48)
VCGCD

Operating
2000 - Groundwater Conservation

2100 - Program Implementation
363 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Conservation Promotion ($2,006.48)

TR-20221021-02-D ($2,500.00)
VCGCD

Operating
3000 - Groundwater Management

3100 - Program Implementation
225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist ($2,500.00)

TR-20221021-03-D ($864.36)
TML 

Operating
1000 - Administration

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
230 - Insurance and Bonds ($864.36)

TR-20221021-04-D ($1,002.20)
Prosperity Bank

Operating

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 11 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 235 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - Information Management

420 - Software ($57.56)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($121.72)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($63.41)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
310 - Supplies ($674.23)

Prosperity Bank Visa 
Operating

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - Information Management

432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($85.28)
TR-20221021-05-D ($6,998.87)

VCGCD
Operating

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)
2000 - Groundwater Conservation

2100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)

3000 - Groundwater Management
3100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)

5000 - Groundwater Policy
5100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)
6000 - Groundwater Protection

6100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.84)

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 12 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 236 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

8100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($999.83)

TR-20221021-06-D ($6,911.44)
VCGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)

2000 - Groundwater Conservation
2100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)
3000 - Groundwater Management

3100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring
4100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)
5000 - Groundwater Policy

5100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)

6000 - Groundwater Protection
6100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.35)
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning

8100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($987.34)

TR-20221031-02-C $16.55
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $16.55

TR-20221123-01-D ($364.09)
Prosperity Bank Visa 

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 13 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 237 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Operating
1000 - Administration

1400 - Administration - Information Management
430 - Technology Services ($57.56)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($85.28)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($24.65)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($80.57)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
310 - Supplies ($116.03)

TR-20221123-03-D ($125.98)
Pace Analytical 

Operating
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
220 - Professional and Technical Services ($125.98)

TR-20221123-04-D ($107.91)
Pace Analytical 

Operating
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
220 - Professional and Technical Services ($107.91)

TR-20221123-05-D ($651.99)
JCTAC 

Operating
1000 - Administration

1300 - Administration - Financial Management
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor ($651.99)

TR-20221130-02-C $11.89
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $11.89

TR-20221220-03-C $10.86

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 14 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 238 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $10.86
TR-20221222-01-D ($254.06)

Prosperity Bank Visa 
Operating

1000 - Administration
1400 - Administration - Information Management

420 - Software ($57.56)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($85.28)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($10.83)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($80.57)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
310 - Supplies ($19.82)

TR-20221231-02-C $11.75
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $11.75

TR-20230119-01-D ($927.78)
Prosperity Bank Visa 

Operating
1000 - Administration

1400 - Administration - Information Management
420 - Software ($57.56)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($95.94)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($633.71)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($80.57)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
310 - Supplies ($60.00)

TR-20230123-01-D ($6.00)

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 15 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 239 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Jackson County Clerk 
Operating

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - Financial Management

500 - Public Notices and Publications ($6.00)
TR-20230123-02-D ($1,472.43)

Jackson Central Appraisal District
Operating

1000 - Administration
1300 - Administration - Financial Management

223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District ($1,472.43)
TR-20230123-03-D ($7,309.79)

VCGCD
Operating

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)
2000 - Groundwater Conservation

2100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)

3000 - Groundwater Management
3100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)

5000 - Groundwater Policy
5100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)
6000 - Groundwater Protection

6100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.26)

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning
8100 - Program Implementation

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 16 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 240 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.23)
TR-20230123-04-D ($7,266.98)

VCGCD
Operating

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)
2000 - Groundwater Conservation

2100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)

3000 - Groundwater Management
3100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)

5000 - Groundwater Policy
5100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)
6000 - Groundwater Protection

6100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning
8100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.14)
TR-20230123-05-D ($7,263.13)

VCGCD
Operating

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)
2000 - Groundwater Conservation

2100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 17 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 241 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

3000 - Groundwater Management
3100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)

5000 - Groundwater Policy
5100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)
6000 - Groundwater Protection

6100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)

8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning
8100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,037.59)
TR-20230123-06-D ($961.40)

Allison, Bass and Magee, L.L.P
Operating

1000 - Administration
1500 - Administration - Meeting Management

210 - Legal Services ($180.00)
Victoria Advocate

Operating
1000 - Administration

1300 - Administration - Financial Management
500 - Public Notices and Publications ($781.40)

TR-20230123-07-D ($1,331.48)
VCGCD

Operating
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning

8100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,331.48)

TR-20230131-02-C $10.71
TGCD

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 18 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 242 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $10.71

TR-20230221-01-D ($911.14)
Prosperity Bank 

Operating
1000 - Administration

1400 - Administration - Information Management
420 - Software ($57.56)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($95.94)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($81.48)
436 - Technology Services - Internet ($10.83)

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
310 - Supplies ($665.33)

TR-20230228-02-C $5.77
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $5.77

TR-20230326-01-D ($614.18)
Prosperity Bank 

Operating
1000 - Administration

1400 - Administration - Information Management
430 - Technology Services ($118.80)
432 - Technology Services - Workflow System ($95.94)
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System ($307.13)
435 - Technology Services - Phone System ($81.48)
436 - Technology Services - Internet ($10.83)

TR-20230331-02-C $5.87
TGCD

Operating

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 19 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 243 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income $5.87
TR-20230404-01-C $100,000.00

TGCD
Operating

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $100,000.00
TR-20230420-02-D ($13,750.00)

VCGCD
Operating

3000 - Groundwater Management
3100 - Program Implementation

225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist ($7,750.00)
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring

4100 - Program Implementation
225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist ($6,000.00)

TR-20230420-03-D ($7,269.90)
VCGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.54)

2000 - Groundwater Conservation
2100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.56)
3000 - Groundwater Management

3100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.56)

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring
4100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.56)
5000 - Groundwater Policy

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 20 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 244 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

5100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.56)

6000 - Groundwater Protection
6100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.56)
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning

8100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,038.56)

TR-20230420-04-D ($7,238.79)
VCGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,034.13)

2000 - Groundwater Conservation
2100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,034.11)
3000 - Groundwater Management

3100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,034.11)

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring
4100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,034.11)
5000 - Groundwater Policy

5100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,034.11)

6000 - Groundwater Protection
6100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,034.11)
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning

8100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,034.11)

TR-20230420-05-D ($7,313.30)
VCGCD

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 21 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 245 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

Operating
1000 - Administration

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.74)

2000 - Groundwater Conservation
2100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.76)
3000 - Groundwater Management

3100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.76)

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring
4100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.76)
5000 - Groundwater Policy

5100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.76)

6000 - Groundwater Protection
6100 - Program Implementation

227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.76)
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning

8100 - Program Implementation
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD ($1,044.76)

TR-20230430-02-C $23.09
TGCD

Operating
1000 - Administration

1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration
0130 - Interest Income $23.09

Prosperity 9448
TR-20221011-02-C $742.83

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 22 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 246 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

0120 - Tax Collections $742.83
TR-20221031-01-C $702.91

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income $702.91
TR-20221109-01-C $1,303.65

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $1,303.65
TR-20221110-01-C $250.00

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0143 - District Fees - Permitting $250.00
TR-20221123-02-C $5,740.94

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $5,740.94
TR-20221130-01-C $1,115.50

TGCD
Operating

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income $1,115.50
TR-20221208-01-C $6,837.49

TGCD
Reserve

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 23 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 247 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $6,837.49
TR-20221208-02-C $31.16

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $31.16
TR-20221220-01-C $8,126.81

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $8,126.81
TR-20221220-02-C $3,992.22

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $3,992.22
TR-20221231-01-C $1,183.66

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income $1,183.66
TR-20230104-01-C $17,475.26

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $17,475.26
TR-20230111-01-C $35,936.06

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 24 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 248 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $35,936.06
TR-20230119-01-C $5,301.12

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $5,301.12
TR-20230124-01-C $8,422.01

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $8,422.01
TR-20230131-01-C $1,333.81

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income $1,333.81
TR-20230206-01-C $150,201.20

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $150,201.20
TR-20230221-01-C $13,900.16

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 25 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 249 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

0120 - Tax Collections $13,900.16
TR-20230228-01-C $1,442.57

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income $1,442.57
TR-20230302-01-C $1,948.21

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $1,948.21
TR-20230328-01-C $1,374.35

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0143 - District Fees - Permitting $1,374.35
TR-20230329-01-D ($500,000.00)

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

900 - Miscellaneous ($500,000.00)
TR-20230331-01-C $1,611.76

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income $1,611.76
TR-20230404-01-D ($100,000.00)

TGCD
Reserve

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 26 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 250 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections ($100,000.00)
TR-20230410-01-C $3,088.75

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $3,088.75
TR-20230424-01-C $4,070.62

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0120 - Tax Collections $4,070.62
TR-20230430-01-C $862.79

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1001 - Administration - Revenue Administration

0130 - Interest Income $862.79
Prosperity CD 0515

TR-20230329-01-C $250,000.00
TGCD

Reserve
1000 - Administration

1700 - Administration - Organizational Management
900 - Miscellaneous $250,000.00

Prosperity CD 0517
TR-20230329-02-C $250,000.00

TGCD
Reserve

1000 - Administration
1700 - Administration - Organizational Management

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 27 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 251 of 268



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - 20230424-01- Master 6/21/2023: 2:26 PM

Transaction Summary Report by Program, Function, Category

 

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount

Statement Reconciliation Date

QUARTERSQ4 2022 - Q2 2023 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

202320222021

900 - Miscellaneous $250,000.00
Grand Total $190,336.51

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transactions Summary - List Page 28 of 28TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 252 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 253 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 254 of 268



 
TGCD - Investment Report - IR-20230331-01 - FY23M06 - March 2023.doc Page 1 of 2 
  

 

Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
INVESTMENT REPORT 
Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023 
As of March 31, 2023 

 
Detailed Description of Investment Position - PFIA 2256.023(b)(1) 
The investment position of the Texana Groundwater Conservation District (District) during the 
reporting period was restricted to 1) cash deposited into an interest-bearing, demand deposit 
account for the purposes of holding monies of the Operating Fund, and 2) cash deposited into an 
interest-bearing, money-market account for the purposes of holding monies of the Operating 
Fund and Reserve Fund.   

 
During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, demand deposit 
account at Prosperity Bank (Account Number: 217837512) for the purpose of holding monies of 
the Operating Fund, receiving interest deposits of the account, receiving deposits of district fees, 
and paying of bills and invoices of the District. 
 
During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, money market 
account at Prosperity Bank (Number: 219189448) for the purpose of holding monies of the 
Operating Fund and the Reserve Fund, receiving interest deposits of the account, and receiving 
ad valorem tax revenue deposits.   
 
During the reporting period, the District held money of the Reserve Fund in a certificate of deposit 
(Number: 9570010515) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving 
interest deposits of the account. 
 
During the reporting period, the District held money of the Reserve Fund in a certificate of deposit 
(Number: 9570010517) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving 
interest deposits of the account. 
 
The accounts are secured by FDIC insurance and pledged collateral in accordance with state law 
and the Investment Policy of the District. 
 
Summary of Pooled Fund Groups – PFIA 2256.023(b)(4)(A-D) 
The District did not invest any portion of its funds in any pooled fund groups during the reporting 
period. 

Beginning Market Value of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups:  $0.00 
Additions and Changes to the Market Value of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups:  $0.00 

Ending Market Value of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups: $0.00 
Fully Accrued Interest of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups: $0.00 

 
 
Book and Market Values by Asset Type and Fund Type Statement – PFIA 2256.023(b)(5) 

Asset Type Institution Fund  
Types 

Yield Book  
Value 

Market 
 Value 

Interest- Prosperity Operating 0.25% $27,127.70 $27,127.70 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 255 of 268



 
TGCD - Investment Report - IR-20230331-01 - FY23M06 - March 2023.doc Page 2 of 2 
  

 

Bearing 
Demand 
Deposit Bank 
Account* 

Bank 
(217837512) 

Interest-
Bearing 
Money Market 
Bank Account* 

Prosperity 
Bank 
(219189448) 

Operating 
and Reserve 

2.11% $460,937.89 
 

$460,937.89 
 

Interest-
Bearing 
Certificate of 
Deposit Bank 
Account* 

Prosperity 
Bank 
(9570010515) 

Reserve 3.35% $250,000.00 $250,000.00 

Interest-
Bearing 
Certificate of 
Deposit Bank 
Account* 

Prosperity 
Bank 
(9570010517) 

Reserve 3.25% $250,000.00 $250,000.00 

                                                                        Total: $988,065.59  $988,065.59 
* Based on monthly statements provided by banking institutions.   
 
Summary of Insurance and Collateral by Institution 

Institution FDIC Insurance Market Value of Pledged 
Securities as Collateral 

Total Insurance and 
Pledged Securities 

Prosperity Bank $250,000.00 $972,112.17 $1,222,112.17 

* Based on statements provided by banking institutions.   
 
Asset Maturity Date Statement – PFIA 2256.0023(b)(6) 

Asset Maturity Date 
Operating Funds in Interest-Bearing Demand Deposit Account N/A 

Reserve Funds in Interest-Bearing Money Market Account N/A 
Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #: 9570010515 3/29/2025 
Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #: 9570010517 3/29/2024 

 
Investments for Funds Statement – PFIA 2256.0023(b)(7) 

Investment Fund 
Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Demand Deposit Account Operating 

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Money Market Account Reserve 
Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account Reserve 
Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account Reserve 

 
Statement of Compliance – PFIA 2256.0023(b)(8) 
The portfolio of the District is believed to be in compliance with the District’s Investment Strategy 
expressed in the District’s Investment Policy and the Public Funds Investment Act. 
 
Statement regarding Report Preparation – PFIA 2256.0023(b)(2-3) 
By my signature, I represent that 1) this report was written under my direct supervision; 2) I have 
thoroughly reviewed all the information contained within and used to develop this report; and 3) I 
believe this report to be true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 
 
 
 
__________________________________________  __________ 
Timothy A. Andruss, TGCD Investment Officer   Date 

6/18/23

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 256 of 268



 
TGCD - Investment Report - IR-20230430-01 - FY23M07 - April 2023.doc Page 1 of 2 
  

 

Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
INVESTMENT REPORT 
Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023 

As of April 30, 2023 
 

Detailed Description of Investment Position - PFIA 2256.023(b)(1) 
The investment position of the Texana Groundwater Conservation District (District) during the 
reporting period was restricted to 1) cash deposited into an interest-bearing, demand deposit 
account for the purposes of holding monies of the Operating Fund, and 2) cash deposited into an 
interest-bearing, money-market account for the purposes of holding monies of the Operating 
Fund and Reserve Fund.   

 
During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, demand deposit 
account at Prosperity Bank (Account Number: 217837512) for the purpose of holding monies of 
the Operating Fund, receiving interest deposits of the account, receiving deposits of district fees, 
and paying of bills and invoices of the District. 
 
During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, money market 
account at Prosperity Bank (Number: 219189448) for the purpose of holding monies of the 
Operating Fund and the Reserve Fund, receiving interest deposits of the account, and receiving 
ad valorem tax revenue deposits.   
 
During the reporting period, the District held money of the Reserve Fund in a certificate of deposit 
(Number: 9570010515) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving 
interest deposits of the account. 
 
During the reporting period, the District held money of the Reserve Fund in a certificate of deposit 
(Number: 9570010517) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving 
interest deposits of the account. 
 
The accounts are secured by FDIC insurance and pledged collateral in accordance with state law 
and the Investment Policy of the District. 
 
Summary of Pooled Fund Groups – PFIA 2256.023(b)(4)(A-D) 
The District did not invest any portion of its funds in any pooled fund groups during the reporting 
period. 

Beginning Market Value of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups:  $0.00 
Additions and Changes to the Market Value of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups:  $0.00 

Ending Market Value of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups: $0.00 
Fully Accrued Interest of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups: $0.00 

 
 
Book and Market Values by Asset Type and Fund Type Statement – PFIA 2256.023(b)(5) 

Asset Type Institution Fund  
Types 

Yield Book  
Value 

Market 
 Value 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 257 of 268



 
TGCD - Investment Report - IR-20230430-01 - FY23M07 - April 2023.doc Page 2 of 2 
  

 

Interest-
Bearing 
Demand 
Deposit Bank 
Account* 

Prosperity 
Bank 
(217837512) 

Operating 0.25% $91,578.80 $91,578.80 

Interest-
Bearing 
Money Market 
Bank Account* 

Prosperity 
Bank 
(219189448) 

Operating 
and Reserve 

2.84% $368,960.05 
 

$368,960.05 
 

Interest-
Bearing 
Certificate of 
Deposit Bank 
Account* 

Prosperity 
Bank 
(9570010515) 

Reserve 3.35% $250,000.00 $250,000.00 

Interest-
Bearing 
Certificate of 
Deposit Bank 
Account* 

Prosperity 
Bank 
(9570010517) 

Reserve 3.25% $250,000.00 $250,000.00 

                                                                        Total: $960,538.85  $960,538.85 
* Based on monthly statements provided by banking institutions.   
 
Summary of Insurance and Collateral by Institution 

Institution FDIC Insurance Market Value of Pledged 
Securities as Collateral 

Total Insurance and 
Pledged Securities 

Prosperity Bank $250,000.00 $954,494.90 $1,204,494.90 

* Based on statements provided by banking institutions.   
 
Asset Maturity Date Statement – PFIA 2256.0023(b)(6) 

Asset Maturity Date 
Operating Funds in Interest-Bearing Demand Deposit Account N/A 

Reserve Funds in Interest-Bearing Money Market Account N/A 
Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #: 9570010515 3/29/2025 
Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #: 9570010517 3/29/2024 

 
Investments for Funds Statement – PFIA 2256.0023(b)(7) 

Investment Fund 
Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Demand Deposit Account Operating 

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Money Market Account Reserve 
Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account Reserve 
Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account Reserve 

 
Statement of Compliance – PFIA 2256.0023(b)(8) 
The portfolio of the District is believed to be in compliance with the District’s Investment Strategy 
expressed in the District’s Investment Policy and the Public Funds Investment Act. 
 
Statement regarding Report Preparation – PFIA 2256.0023(b)(2-3) 
By my signature, I represent that 1) this report was written under my direct supervision; 2) I have 
thoroughly reviewed all the information contained within and used to develop this report; and 3) I 
believe this report to be true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 
 
 
 
__________________________________________  __________ 
Timothy A. Andruss, TGCD Investment Officer   Date 

7/6/2023

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 258 of 268



 
TGCD - Investment Report Page 1 of 2 
  

 

Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
INVESTMENT REPORT 
Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023 

As of May 31, 2023 
 

Detailed Description of Investment Position - PFIA 2256.023(b)(1) 
The investment position of the Texana Groundwater Conservation District (District) during the 
reporting period was restricted to 1) cash deposited into an interest-bearing, demand deposit 
account for the purposes of holding monies of the Operating Fund, and 2) cash deposited into an 
interest-bearing, money-market account for the purposes of holding monies of the Operating 
Fund and Reserve Fund.   

 
During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, demand deposit 
account at Prosperity Bank (Account Number: 217837512) for the purpose of holding monies of 
the Operating Fund, receiving interest deposits of the account, receiving deposits of district fees, 
and paying of bills and invoices of the District. 
 
During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, money market 
account at Prosperity Bank (Number: 219189448) for the purpose of holding monies of the 
Operating Fund and the Reserve Fund, receiving interest deposits of the account, and receiving 
ad valorem tax revenue deposits.   
 
During the reporting period, the District held money of the Reserve Fund in a certificate of deposit 
(Number: 9570010515) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving 
interest deposits of the account. 
 
During the reporting period, the District held money of the Reserve Fund in a certificate of deposit 
(Number: 9570010517) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving 
interest deposits of the account. 
 
The accounts are secured by FDIC insurance and pledged collateral in accordance with state law 
and the Investment Policy of the District. 
 
Summary of Pooled Fund Groups – PFIA 2256.023(b)(4)(A-D) 
The District did not invest any portion of its funds in any pooled fund groups during the reporting 
period. 

Beginning Market Value of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups:  $0.00 
Additions and Changes to the Market Value of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups:  $0.00 

Ending Market Value of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups: $0.00 
Fully Accrued Interest of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups: $0.00 

 
 
Book and Market Values by Asset Type and Fund Type Statement – PFIA 2256.023(b)(5) 

Asset Type Institution Fund  
Types 

Yield Book  
Value 

Market 
 Value 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 259 of 268



 
TGCD - Investment Report Page 2 of 2 
  

 

Interest-
Bearing 
Demand 
Deposit Bank 
Account* 

Prosperity 
Bank 
(217837512) 

Operating 0.25% $90,524.34 $90,524.34 

Interest-
Bearing 
Money Market 
Bank Account* 

Prosperity 
Bank 
(219189448) 

Operating 
and Reserve 

3.08% $370,388.43 
 

$370,388.43 
 

Interest-
Bearing 
Certificate of 
Deposit Bank 
Account* 

Prosperity 
Bank 
(9570010515) 

Reserve 3.35% $250,000.00 $250,000.00 

Interest-
Bearing 
Certificate of 
Deposit Bank 
Account* 

Prosperity 
Bank 
(9570010517) 

Reserve 3.25% $250,000.00 $250,000.00 

                                                                        Total: $960,912.77  $960,912.77 
* Based on monthly statements provided by banking institutions.   
 
Summary of Insurance and Collateral by Institution 

Institution FDIC Insurance Market Value of Pledged 
Securities as Collateral 

Total Insurance and 
Pledged Securities 

Prosperity Bank $250,000.00 $937,643.28 $1,187,643.28 

* Based on statements provided by banking institutions.   
 
Asset Maturity Date Statement – PFIA 2256.0023(b)(6) 

Asset Maturity Date 
Operating Funds in Interest-Bearing Demand Deposit Account N/A 

Reserve Funds in Interest-Bearing Money Market Account N/A 
Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #: 9570010515 3/29/2025 
Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #: 9570010517 3/29/2024 

 
Investments for Funds Statement – PFIA 2256.0023(b)(7) 

Investment Fund 
Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Demand Deposit Account Operating 

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Money Market Account Reserve 
Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account Reserve 
Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account Reserve 

 
Statement of Compliance – PFIA 2256.0023(b)(8) 
The portfolio of the District is believed to be in compliance with the District’s Investment Strategy 
expressed in the District’s Investment Policy and the Public Funds Investment Act. 
 
Statement regarding Report Preparation – PFIA 2256.0023(b)(2-3) 
By my signature, I represent that 1) this report was written under my direct supervision; 2) I have 
thoroughly reviewed all the information contained within and used to develop this report; and 3) I 
believe this report to be true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 
 
 
 
__________________________________________  __________ 
Timothy A. Andruss, TGCD Investment Officer   Date 

7/14/2023

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 260 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 261 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 262 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 263 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 264 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 265 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 266 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 267 of 268



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 20, 2023 - Supplemental Documents | Page 268 of 268


	3.3.1 TGCD - AVW-20220912-04 - The Ranches at Mustang Creek, LLC - 20220912
	3.3.2 TGCD - The Ranches at Mustang Creek - Imagery 19960123
	3.3.3 TGCD - The Ranches at Mustang Creek - Imagery 20070411
	3.3.4 TGCD - AVW-20220912-04 - Revised Affidavit Karl Reckaway - 20230220
	3.3.5 TGCD - Permit Hearing Notice - 20230420 - Posted
	3.3.6 PC20-008_BURLINGAME 70 AC 011422
	3.3.7 PC20-008_BURLINGAME 743.35 AC 011422
	3.3.8 Vicinity Map - TGCD - PRC Boundary - 20230418
	3.3.9 Vicinity Map - TGCD - Land Ownership Boundary - 20230418
	3.3.10 Vicinity Map - TGCD - GW Ownership Boundary - 20230418
	3.3.12 TGCD - Parcel Information for TRAMC - 20230418
	3.4.1 TGCD - Notice of Intent to Contest a Application  - PRC-20230321-01 - AAPC-20230321-01
	3.4.2 TGCD - AAPC-20230329-01 - Bowers and Saha Aquaculture - Revised 20230329
	3.4.3 TGCD - Notice of Intent to Contest a Application  - PRC-20230321-01 - AAPC-20230329-01
	3.5.1 TGCD - Application Bundle - PRC-20230620-01
	3.6.1 Texana GCD - Order of Enforcement - ECV-20230421-01
	3.7.1 Texana GCD - Order of Enforcement - ECV-20230421-02
	3.8.1 Texana GCD - Order of Enforcement - ECV-20230421-07
	3.9.1 Texana GCD - Order of Enforcement - ECV-20230421-08
	3.11 TGCD - Parcels within PRC Boundaries - 20230418
	5.0.1 TGCD - Water Data of Texas - Drought Monitor Map - 20230716
	5.3.1 TGCD - Water Quality Lab Report - WQLR-20220722.0840 - L1514212
	Cp: Cover Page
	Tc: Table of Contents
	Ss: Sample Summary
	Cn: Case Narrative
	Sr: Sample Results
	2846486296358078    L1514212-01
	Gravimetric Analysis by Method 2540C
	Wet Chemistry by Method 2320B
	Wet Chemistry by Method 9040C
	Wet Chemistry by Method 9050
	Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A
	Mercury by Method 7470
	Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020
	TPH by TCEQ Method 1005

	9635500128465914    L1514212-02
	Gravimetric Analysis by Method 2540C
	Wet Chemistry by Method 2320B
	Wet Chemistry by Method 9040C
	Wet Chemistry by Method 9050
	Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A
	Mercury by Method 7470
	Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020
	TPH by TCEQ Method 1005

	9637541228445014    L1514212-03
	Gravimetric Analysis by Method 2540C
	Wet Chemistry by Method 2320B
	Wet Chemistry by Method 9040C
	Wet Chemistry by Method 9050
	Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A
	Mercury by Method 7470
	Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020
	TPH by TCEQ Method 1005

	9638047828465916    L1514212-04
	Gravimetric Analysis by Method 2540C
	Wet Chemistry by Method 2320B
	Wet Chemistry by Method 9040C
	Wet Chemistry by Method 9050
	Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A
	Mercury by Method 7470
	Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020
	TPH by TCEQ Method 1005

	9637274128470956    L1514212-05
	Gravimetric Analysis by Method 2540C
	Wet Chemistry by Method 2320B
	Wet Chemistry by Method 9040C
	Wet Chemistry by Method 9050
	Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A
	Mercury by Method 7470
	Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020
	TPH by TCEQ Method 1005


	Qc: Quality Control Summary
	Gravimetric Analysis by Method 2540C
	WG1895001

	Wet Chemistry by Method 2320B
	WG1892955

	Wet Chemistry by Method 9040C
	WG1892939
	WG1897053

	Wet Chemistry by Method 9050
	WG1894914

	Wet Chemistry by Method 9056A
	WG1894499

	Mercury by Method 7470
	WG1896123

	Metals (ICPMS) by Method 6020
	WG1895977

	TPH by TCEQ Method 1005
	WG1897412


	Gl: Glossary of Terms
	Al: Accreditations & Locations
	Sc: Sample Chain of Custody

	5.4.1 Wellntel Overview 2023
	WELLNTEL
	information system
	problem: WATER UNCERTAINTY
	solution: WELLNTEL
	Wellntel groundwater information system
	ANALYTICS DASHBOARD
	Wellntel sensor technology
	applications
	food & beverage
	Agriculture
	Rural water utilities


	5.4.2 Wellntel Spec Sheet 2023
	5.4.3 Wellntel Introduction 2023 - TAndruss
	5.4.4 Wellntel - Texana-Victoria-Calhoun-Refugio Monitoring Network Cost Estimate
	5.5.1 Intera Proposal_Update_water_levels_2022
	6.0.1 TGCD - AOS-20230621-01 - PISD J Duncum - East Side Elementary School - 2023 September
	TGCD - AOS-20230621-01 - PISD J Duncum - East Side Elementary School - 2023 September
	TGCD - ARS-20230608-01 - PISD J Duncum - East Side Elementary School - 2023 September

	7.1.1 GMA 15 - By-Laws of the GMA-15 Committee - Rev 20230413 - Adopted 20230413
	7.1.2 GMA 15 - Interlocal Agreement for Cost-Sharing - Rev 20230413a - Adopted 20230413
	7.1.3 VCGCD - RFP for Technical Services for GMA 15 - 20230627
	9.1.1 TGCD - Meeting Minutes - 20230420 - Final
	9.2. 6TGCD - Internal Financial Report - May 2023
	9.2.1 TGCD - ICRR - March 2023
	9.2.2 TGCD - Internal Financial Report - March 2023
	9.2.3 TGCD - ICRR - April 2023
	9.2.4 TGCD - Internal Financial Report - April 2023
	9.2.5 TGCD - ICRR - May 2023
	9.3.1 TGCD - Investment Report - IR-20230331-01 - FY23M06 - March 2023
	9.3.2 TGCD - Investment Report - IR-20230430-01 - FY23M07 - April 2023
	9.3.3 TGCD - Investment Report - IR-20230531-01 - FY23M08 - May 2023
	9.6.1 TGCD - Letter of Resignation - Johnny Dugger - 20230330
	9.7.1 TGCD - 2023 Contractual Agreement - JCTAC - 20230517-01

	690009_btnNav-Cp1: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc1: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss1: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn1: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr1: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc1: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl1: 
	690009_btnNav-Al1: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc1: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp2: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc2: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss2: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn2: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr2: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc2: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl2: 
	690009_btnNav-Al2: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc2: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp3: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc3: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss3: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn3: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr3: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc3: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl3: 
	690009_btnNav-Al3: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc3: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp4: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc4: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss4: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn4: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr4: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc4: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl4: 
	690009_btnNav-Al4: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc4: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp5: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc5: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss5: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn5: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr5: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc5: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl5: 
	690009_btnNav-Al5: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc5: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-2-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-2-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-8-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-8-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w5;-18-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w5;-18-5: 
	690009_btn-120-180+q2;w5;-21-2: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-27-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-27-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-36-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-36-6: 
	690009_btn-120-180+q2;w6;-39-2: 
	690009_btn-120-180+q2;w6;-40-2: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-46-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-46-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-52-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-52-6: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp6: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc6: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss6: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn6: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr6: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc6: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl6: 
	690009_btnNav-Al6: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-66-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-66-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-73-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-73-6: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp7: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc7: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss7: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn7: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr7: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc7: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl7: 
	690009_btnNav-Al7: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc7: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-84-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-84-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-90-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-90-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w5;-100-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w5;-100-5: 
	690009_btn-120-180+q2;w5;-103-2: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-109-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-109-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-118-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-118-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-128-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-128-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-134-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-134-6: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp8: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc8: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss8: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn8: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr8: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc8: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl8: 
	690009_btnNav-Al8: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc8: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-148-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-148-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-155-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-155-6: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp9: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc9: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss9: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn9: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr9: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc9: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl9: 
	690009_btnNav-Al9: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc9: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-166-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-166-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-172-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-172-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w5;-182-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w5;-182-5: 
	690009_btn-120-180+q2;w5;-185-2: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-191-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-191-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-200-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-200-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-210-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-210-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-216-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-216-6: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp10: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc10: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss10: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn10: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr10: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc10: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl10: 
	690009_btnNav-Al10: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc10: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-230-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-230-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-237-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-237-6: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp11: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc11: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss11: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn11: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr11: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc11: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl11: 
	690009_btnNav-Al11: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc11: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-248-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-248-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-254-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-254-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w5;-264-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w5;-264-5: 
	690009_btn-120-180+q2;w5;-267-2: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-273-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-273-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-282-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-282-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-292-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-292-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-298-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-298-6: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp12: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc12: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss12: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn12: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr12: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc12: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl12: 
	690009_btnNav-Al12: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc12: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-312-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-312-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-319-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-319-6: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp13: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc13: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss13: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn13: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr13: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc13: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl13: 
	690009_btnNav-Al13: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc13: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-330-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-330-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-336-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-336-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w5;-346-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w5;-346-5: 
	690009_btn-120-180+q2;w5;-349-2: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-355-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-355-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-364-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-364-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-374-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-374-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-380-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-380-6: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp14: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc14: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss14: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn14: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr14: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc14: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl14: 
	690009_btnNav-Al14: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc14: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-394-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-394-6: 
	690009_btnQ-120-180+q2;w6;-401-2: 
	690009_btnB-690009_120-180+q2;w6;-401-6: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp15: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc15: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss15: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn15: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr15: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc15: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl15: 
	690009_btnNav-Al15: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc15: 
	690009_btnQ-2-3-2: 
	690009_btnQ-5-10-5: 
	690009_btnQ-5-17-5: 
	690009_btnQ-5-24-5: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp16: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc16: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss16: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn16: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr16: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc16: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl16: 
	690009_btnNav-Al16: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc16: 
	690009_btnQ-2-31-2: 
	690009_btnQ-5-42-5: 
	690009_btnQ-5-49-5: 
	690009_btnQ-5-56-5: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp17: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc17: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss17: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn17: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr17: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc17: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl17: 
	690009_btnNav-Al17: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc17: 
	690009_btnQ-5-63-5: 
	690009_btnQ-5-74-5: 
	690009_btnQ-5-85-5: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp18: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc18: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss18: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn18: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr18: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc18: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl18: 
	690009_btnNav-Al18: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc18: 
	690009_btnQ-5-95-5: 
	690009_btnQ-5-106-5: 
	690009_btnQ-5-117-5: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp19: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc19: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss19: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn19: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr19: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc19: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl19: 
	690009_btnNav-Al19: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc19: 
	690009_btnQ-2-127-2: 
	690009_btnQ-5-137-5: 
	690009_btnQ-5-148-5: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp20: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc20: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss20: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn20: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr20: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc20: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl20: 
	690009_btnNav-Al20: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc20: 
	690009_btnQ-2-158-2: 
	690009_btnQ-5-169-5: 
	690009_btnQ-9;10-180-9: 
	690009_btnQ-9;10-180-10: 
	690009_btn-9;10-183-10: 
	690009_btnQ-9;10-187-9: 
	690009_btnQ-9;10-187-10: 
	690009_btn-9;10-190-9: 
	690009_btn-9;10-190-10: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp21: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc21: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss21: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn21: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr21: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc21: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl21: 
	690009_btnNav-Al21: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc21: 
	690009_btnQ-2-197-2: 
	690009_btnQ-5-204-5: 
	690009_btnQ-9;10-211-9: 
	690009_btnQ-9;10-211-10: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp22: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc22: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss22: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn22: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr22: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc22: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl22: 
	690009_btnNav-Al22: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc22: 
	690009_btnQ-2-218-2: 
	690009_btnQ-2-233-2: 
	690009_btnQ-5-241-5: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp23: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc23: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss23: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn23: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr23: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc23: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl23: 
	690009_btnNav-Al23: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc23: 
	690009_btnQ-5-256-5: 
	690009_btnQ-9;10-264-9: 
	690009_btnQ-9;10-264-10: 
	690009_btn-9;10-272-10: 
	690009_btn-9;10-273-10: 
	690009_btnQ-9;10-279-9: 
	690009_btnQ-9;10-279-10: 
	690009_btn-9;10-282-9: 
	690009_btn-9;10-282-10: 
	690009_btn-9;10-283-9: 
	690009_btn-9;10-283-10: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp24: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc24: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss24: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn24: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr24: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc24: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl24: 
	690009_btnNav-Al24: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc24: 
	690009_btnQ-2-287-2: 
	690009_btnQ-7;8-299-7: 
	690009_btnQ-7;8-299-8: 
	690009_btnQ-9;10-310-9: 
	690009_btnQ-9;10-310-10: 
	690009_btn-9;10-313-9: 
	690009_btn-9;10-313-10: 
	690009_btn-9;10-314-9: 
	690009_btn-9;10-314-10: 
	690009_btn-9;10-315-9: 
	690009_btn-9;10-315-10: 
	690009_btn-9;10-316-9: 
	690009_btn-9;10-316-10: 
	690009_btn-9;10-317-9: 
	690009_btn-9;10-317-10: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp25: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc25: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss25: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn25: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr25: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc25: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl25: 
	690009_btnNav-Al25: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc25: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp26: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc26: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss26: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn26: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr26: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc26: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl26: 
	690009_btnNav-Al26: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc26: 
	690009_btnNav-Cp27: 
	690009_btnNav-Tc27: 
	690009_btnNav-Ss27: 
	690009_btnNav-Cn27: 
	690009_btnNav-Sr27: 
	690009_btnNav-Qc27: 
	690009_btnNav-Gl27: 
	690009_btnNav-Al27: 
	690009_btnNav-Sc27: 


